

R E P U B L I C O F T U R K E Y MINISTRY OF FOREIGN AFFAIRS DIRECTORATE FOR EU AFFAIRS





R E P U B L I C O F T U R K E Y MINISTRY OF FOREIGN AFFAIRS **DIRECTORATE FOR EU AFFAIRS**

TURKEY'S NATIONAL ACTION PLAN FOR THE EU ACCESSION

January 2021- December 2023

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1-FREE MOVEMENT OF GOODS	
2- FREEDOM OF MOVEMENT FOR WORKERS	31
3-RIGHT OF ESTABLISHMENT AND FREEDOM TO PROVIDE SERVICES	34
4- FREE MOVEMENT OF CAPITAL	38
6- COMPANY LAW	40
7- INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY LAW	42
8- COMPETITION POLICY	
9- FINANCIAL SERVICES	56
10- INFORMATION SOCIETY AND MEDIA	60
11- AGRICULTURE AND RURAL DEVELOPMENT	64
12- FOOD SAFETY, VETERINARY AND PHYTOSANITARY POLICY	71
13- FISHERIES	88
14- TRANSPORT POLICY	99
15- ENERGY	106
17- ECONOMIC AND MONETARY POLICY	121
18- STATISTICS	123
19- SOCIAL POLICY AND EMPLOYMENT	126
20- ENTERPRISE AND INDUSTRIAL POLICY	142
22- REGIONAL POLICY AND COORDINATION OF STRUCTURAL INSTRUMENTS	144
23- JUDICIARY AND FUNDAMENTAL RIGHTS	148
24- JUSTICE, FREEDOM AND SECURITY	197
26- EDUCATION AND CULTURE	228
27- ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE CHANGE	237
28- CONSUMER AND HEALTH PROTECTION	258
29- CUSTOMS UNION	264
30- EXTERNAL RELATIONS	269
32- FINANCIAL CONTROL	271

1- FREE MOVEMENT OF GOODS

Screening Report for Chapter 1 on Free Movements of Goods was communicated to Turkey on 17 October 2007 by the Portuguese Presidency. The Chapter is one of the 8 chapters that are blocked due to the Council Decision requiring full implementation of the Additional Protocol. Regarding this chapter, there are 4 technical opening benchmarks:

- 1. Removal of import permits or license requirements, as well as disproportionate requirements for certificates, for the products covered by the Customs Union, other than motor vehicles, and with particular reference to alcoholic beverages. Submission to the Commission of a plan for removing import permits on used motor vehicles.
- 2. Completing the internal screening of measures contrary to Article 28-30 of the EC Treaty (concerning the abolishment of quotas between the Member States in exports and imports), provides a plan for their removal and introduces the mutual recognition clause in its legal order.
- 3. Presenting an action plan with milestones for the remaining alignment in the areas of horizontal and procedural measures, as well as pharmaceuticals.
- 4. Presenting to the Commission a comprehensive strategy with milestones for the upgrade of administrative capacity necessary for the implementation of the EU legislation on market surveillance.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
LEG	AL ARRANGEM	ENTS					
1.	1- Free Movement of Goods	By-law on CE Marking	Regulation (EU) 2019/1020 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 June 2019 on market surveillance and compliance of products Regulation (EC) No 765/2008 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 9 July 2008 setting out the requirements for accreditation and market surveillance relating to the marketing of products Decision No 768/2008/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 9 July 2008 on a common framework for the marketing of products, and repealing Council Decision 93/465/EEC	11th Development Plan 313.1. Necessary arrangements will be introduced to carry out activities in coordination with the metrology, standardization, conformity assessment, accreditation and technical regulations and to strengthen the perception of high-quality goods made in Turkey, to ensure that our products do not encounter technical barriers in entering global markets, as well as to prevent the entry of low- quality and unsafe products into Turkey. The 2019 Presidential Annual Program Measure 272. The legislation on product safety and technical	Updating the by-laws on implementation by taking the relevant EU legislation into account The Law No. 7223 on Product Safety and Technical Regulations, which aims at complying with the changes introduced by the New Legislative Framework published by the EU in 2008 and the Goods Package published in 2019, was published in the Official Gazette No. 31066 of 5 March 2020.	Ministry of Trade	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
				regulations will be updated.			
2.	1- Free Movement of Goods	By-law on Mutual Recognition in Non-Harmonised Area	Regulation (EU) 2019/515 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 19 March 2019 on the mutual recognition of goods lawfully marketed in another Member State and repealing Regulation (EC) No 764/2008	11th Development Plan 313.1. Necessary arrangements will be introduced to carry out activities in coordination with the metrology, standardization, conformity assessment, accreditation and technical regulations and to strengthen the perception of high-quality goods made in Turkey, to ensure that our products do not encounter technical barriers in entering global markets, as well as to prevent the entry of low- quality and unsafe products into Turkey. The 2019 Presidential Annual Program Measure 272. The legislation on product safety and technical	Updating the by-laws on implementation by taking the relevant EU legislation into account The Law No. 7223 on Product Safety and Technical Regulations, which aims at complying with the changes introduced by the New Legislative Framework published by the EU in 2008 and the Goods Package published in 2019, was published in the Official Gazette No. 31066 of 5 March 2020.	Ministry of Trade	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
				regulations will be updated.			
3.	1- Free Movement of Goods	By-law on the Notification of Technical Regulations in Non-Harmonised Area between Turkey and the European Union	Directive (EU) 2015/1535 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 9 September 2015 laying down a procedure for the provision of information in the field of technical regulations and of rules on Information Society services	313.1. Necessary arrangements will be introduced to carry out activities in coordination with the metrology, standardization, conformity assessment, accreditation and technical regulations and to strengthen the perception of high-quality goods made in Turkey, to ensure that our products do not encounter technical barriers in entering global markets, as well as to prevent the entry of low- quality and unsafe products into Turkey. The 2019 Presidential Annual Program Measure 272. The legislation on product	Updating the by-laws on implementation by taking the relevant EU legislation into account The new legislation published by the EU in 2015 introduced drastic changes to the rules on the free movement of goods in non-harmonised area that Turkey already aligned or had been obliged to align. The Law No. 7223 on Product Safety and Technical Regulations, which aims at complying with the changes introduced by the relevant EU legislation, was published in the Official Gazette No. 31066 of 5 March 2020.	Ministry of Trade	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
				safety and technical regulations will be updated.			
4.	1- Free Movement of Goods	By-law on General Product Safety ¹	Directive 2001/95/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 3 December 2001 on general product safety	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program Measure 272. The legislation on product safety and technical regulations will be updated.	Efficiently enforcing the Law No. 7223 on Product Safety and Technical Regulations with the expansion of the protection shield over the consumer products and the harmonization with the relevant EU legislation.	Ministry of Trade	2021
5.	1- Free Movement of Goods	By-law on Market Surveillance ²	Regulation (EC) No 765/2008 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 9 July 2008 setting out the requirements for accreditation and market surveillance relating to the marketing of products	11th Development Plan 313.11. In the field of Market Surveillance and Inspection (MSI), the duties and responsibilities of the related institutions will be clarified, and the effectiveness and efficiency of the MSI activities will be improved by enhancing the cooperation of the private	implementation by taking the relevant EU legislation into account The Law No. 7223 on Product Safety and Technical Regulations, which aims at complying with the changes	Ministry of Trade	2021

 $^{^1}$ By-law on General Product Safety is also referred to in Chapter 28 on Consumer and Health Protection. 2 By-law on Market Surveillance is also referred to in Chapter 28 on Consumer and Health Protection.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Regulation (EU) 2019/1020 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 June 2019 on market surveillance and compliance of products and amending Directive 2004/42/EC and Regulations (EC) No 765/2008 and (EU) No 305/2011	sector and NGOs with authorized bodies. 313.12. The efficient use of national and international databases will be ensured to increase efficiency in MSI activities for the products that do not comply with technical legislation. The 2019 Presidential Annual Program Measure 272. The legislation on product safety and technical regulations will be updated.	published by the EU in 2008 and the Goods Package published in 2019, was published in the Official Gazette No. 31066 of 5 March 2020.		
6.	1- Free Movement of Goods	By-law on Conformity Assessment Bodies and Notified Bodies	Regulation (EU) 2019/1020 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 June 2019 on market surveillance and compliance of products Regulation (EC) No 765/2008 of the	11th Development Plan 313.1. Necessary arrangements will be introduced to carry out activities in coordination with the metrology, standardization, conformity assessment, accreditation and technical	Updating the by-laws on implementation by taking the relevant EU legislation into account The Law No. 7223 on Product Safety and Technical Regulations, which aims at complying with the changes	Ministry of Trade	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			European Parliament and of the Council of 9 July 2008 setting out the requirements for accreditation and market surveillance relating to the marketing of products Decision No 768/2008/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 9 July 2008 on a common framework for the marketing of products, and repealing Council Decision 93/465/EEC	regulations and to strengthen the perception of high-quality goods made in Turkey, to ensure that our products do not encounter technical barriers in entering global markets, as well as to prevent the entry of low-quality and unsafe products into Turkey. The 2019 Presidential Annual Program Measure 272. The legislation on product safety and technical regulations will be updated.	introduced by the three New Horizontal Legislative Frameworks published by the EU in 2008 and the Goods Package published in 2019, was published in the Official Gazette No. 31066 of 5 March 2020.		
7.	1- Free Movement of Goods	By-law on Conformity Assessment Procedures	Regulation (EU) 2019/1020 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 June 2019 on market surveillance and compliance of products Regulation (EC) No 765/2008 of the	11th Development Plan 313.1. Necessary arrangements will be introduced to carry out activities in coordination with the metrology, standardization, conformity assessment, accreditation and technical	Updating the by-laws on implementation by taking the relevant EU legislation into account The Law No. 7223 on Product Safety and Technical Regulations, which aims at complying with the changes	Ministry of Trade	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			European Parliament and of the Council of 9 July 2008 setting out the requirements for accreditation and market surveillance relating to the marketing of products Decision No 768/2008/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 9 July 2008 on a common framework for the marketing of products, and repealing Council Decision 93/465/EEC	regulations and to strengthen the perception of high-quality goods made in Turkey, to ensure that our products do not encounter technical barriers in entering global markets, as well as to prevent the entry of low-quality and unsafe products into Turkey.	introduced by the New Legislative Framework published by the EU in 2008 and the Goods Package published in 2019, was published in the Official Gazette No. 31066 of 5 March 2020.		
8.	1- Free Movement of Goods	By-law on the Administrative Requirements for the Approval and Market Surveillance of Motor Vehicles and Their Trailers, and of Systems,	Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) 2020/683 of 15 April 2020 with regards to the administrative requirements for the approval and market surveillance of motor vehicles and their		Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
		Components and Separate Technical Units Intended for Such Vehicles	trailers, and of systems, components and separate technical units intended for such vehicles				
9.	1- Free Movement of Goods	By-law amending the By-law as regards type- approval requirements for masses and dimensions of motor vehicles and their trailers	Commission Regulation (EU) 2019/1892 of 31 October 2019 as regards type-approval requirements for certain motor vehicles fitted with elongated cabs and for aerodynamic devices and equipment for motor vehicles and their trailers		Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
10.	1- Free Movement of Goods	By-law on the Labelling of Tyres with respect to Fuel Efficiency and Other Parameters ³	Regulation (EU) 2020/740 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 25 May 2020 on the labelling of tyres with respect to fuel efficiency and other parameters,		Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

³ By-law on the Labelling of Tyres with respect to Fuel Efficiency and Other Parameters is also referred to in Chapter 15 on Energy.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			amending Regulation (EU) 2017/1369 and repealing Regulation (EC) No 1222/2009				
11.	1- Free Movement of Goods		Commission Regulation (EU) No 722/2012 of 8 August 2012 concerning particular requirements as regards the requirements laid down in Council Directives 90/385/EEC and 93/42/EEC with respect to active implantable medical devices and medical devices manufactured utilising tissues of animal origin	11th Development Plan 362. The main objective is to increase the competitiveness in the global market in the pharmaceutical and medical devices sector and to move our country to a higher position in the value chain. 364.1. Personnel will be trained as to be qualified to take part in laboratory testing and analysis processes and product certification processes in compliance with the new EU medical device directives to be implemented in 2020.	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Health Turkish Medicines and Medical Devices Agency	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
12.		By-law on Medical Devices	Regulation (EU) 2017/745 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 5 April 2017 on medical devices, amending Directive 2001/83/EC, Regulation (EC) No 178/2002 and Regulation (EC) No 1223/2009 and repealing Council Directives 90/385/EEC and 93/42/EEC	11th Development Plan 362. The main objective is to increase the competitiveness in the global market in the pharmaceutical and medical devices sector and to move our country to a higher position in the value chain. 364.1. Personnel will be trained as to be qualified to take part in laboratory testing and analysis processes and product certification processes in compliance with the new EU medical device directives to be implemented in 2020.	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Health Turkish Medicines and Medical Devices Agency	2021
13.	1- Free Movement of Goods	By-law on In Vitro Diagnostic Medical Devices	Regulation (EU) 2017/746 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 5 April 2017 on in vitro diagnostic medical devices and repealing	11th Development Plan 362. The main objective is to increase the competitiveness in the global market in the pharmaceutical and	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Health Turkish Medicines and Medical Devices Agency	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Directive 98/79/EC and Commission Decision 2010/227/EU	medical devices sector and to move our country to a higher position in the value chain. 364.1. Personnel will be trained as to be qualified to take part in laboratory testing and analysis processes and product certification processes in compliance with the new EU medical device directives to be implemented in 2020.			
14.4	1- Free Movement of Goods	By-law on Setting a Framework for Energy Labelling	Regulation (EU) 2017/1369 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 4 July 2017 setting a framework for energy labelling and repealing Directive 2010/30/EU	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

 $^{^{\}rm 4}$ The measures between 14-40 are also referred to in Chapter 15 on Energy

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
15.	1- Free Movement of Goods	By-law on Eco- design Requirements for Energy-related Products	Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 21 October 2009 establishing a framework for the setting of eco-design requirements for energy-related products	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
16	1- Free Movement of Goods	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Computers and Computer Servers	June 2013 implementing Directive	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
17.	1- Free Movement of Goods	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Refrigerating Appliances with a	Commission Regulation (EU) 2019/2024 of 1 October 2019 laying down ecodesign requirements for refrigerating appliances with a direct sales	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
		Direct Sales Function	function pursuant to Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council				
18.	1- Free Movement of Goods	Communiqué on Energy Labelling of Refrigerating Appliances with a Direct Sales Function	Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/2018 of 11 March 2019 supplementing Regulation (EU) 2017/1369 of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to energy labelling of refrigerating appliances with a direct sales function	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
19.	1- Free Movement of Goods	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Electric Motors and Variable Speed Drives	Commission Regulation (EU) 2019/1781 of 1 October 2019 laying down ecodesign requirements for electric motors and variable speed drives pursuant to Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			and of the Council, amending Regulation (EC) No 641/2009 with regard to ecodesign requirements for glandless standalone circulators and glandless circulators integrated in products and repealing Commission Regulation (EC) No 640/2009				
20.	Goods	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Electronic Displays	Commission Regulation (EU) 2019/2021 of 1 October 2019 laying down ecodesign requirements for electronic displays pursuant to Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council, amending Commission Regulation (EC) No 1275/2008 and repealing Commission	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Regulation (EC) No 642/2009				
21.	1- Free Movement of Goods	Communiqué on Energy Labelling of Electronic Displays	Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/2013 of 11 March 2019 supplementing Regulation (EU) 2017/1369 of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to energy labelling of electronic displays and repealing Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 1062/2010	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
22.	1- Free Movement of Goods	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Household Dishwashers	Commission Regulation (EU) 2019/2022 of 1 October 2019 laying down ecodesign requirements for household dishwashers pursuant to Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council amending Commission	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Regulation (EC) No 1275/2008 and repealing Commission Regulation (EU) No 1016/2010				
23.	1- Free Movement of Goods	Communiqué on Energy Labelling of Household Dishwashers	Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/2017 of 11 March 2019 supplementing Regulation (EU) 2017/1369 of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to energy labelling of household dishwashers and repealing Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 1059/2010	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
24.	1- Free Movement of Goods	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Household Washing Machines and	Commission Regulation (EU) 2019/2023 of 1 October 2019 laying down ecodesign requirements for household washing machines and household washerdryers pursuant to	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
		Household Washer-dryers	Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council, amending Commission Regulation (EC) No 1275/2008 and repealing Commission Regulation (EU) No 1015/2010				
25.	Goods	Communiqué on Energy Labelling of Household Washing Machines and Household Washer-dryers	Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/2014 of 11 March 2019 supplementing Regulation (EU) 2017/1369 of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to energy labelling of household washing machines and household washerdryers and repealing Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 1061/2010 and Commission Directive 96/60/EC	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
26.		Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Standby and Off Mode Electric Power Consumption of Electrical and Electronic Household and Office Equipment	Commission Regulation (EC) No 1275/2008 of 17 December 2008 implementing Directive 2005/32/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to ecodesign requirements for standby and off mode electric power consumption of electrical and electronic household and office equipment	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
27.		Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Energy-related Products, with regard to Ecodesign Requirements for Air Heating Products, Cooling Products, High Temperature	Commission Regulation (EU) 2016/2281 of 30 November 2016 implementing Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council establishing a framework for the setting of ecodesign requirements for energy-related products, with regard to ecodesign requirements for air heating products,	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
		Process Chillers and Fan Coil Units	cooling products, high temperature process chillers and fan coil units				
28.	1- Free Movement of Goods	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Ventilation Units	Commission Regulation (EU) No 1253/2014 of 7 July 2014 implementing Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to ecodesign requirements for ventilation units	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
29.	1- Free Movement of Goods	Communiqué on Energy Labelling of Light Sources	Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/2015 of 11 March 2019 supplementing Regulation (EU) 2017/1369 of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to energy labelling of light sources and repealing Commission Delegated	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Regulation (EU) No 874/2012				
30.	1- Free Movement of Goods	-	Commission Regulation (EU) 2019/2020 of 1 October 2019 laying down ecodesign requirements for light sources and separate control gears pursuant to Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council and repealing Commission Regulations (EC) No 244/2009, (EC) No 245/2009 and (EU) No 1194/2012	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
31.	1- Free Movement of Goods	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Solid Fuel Boilers	Commission Regulation (EU) 2015/1189 of 28 April 2015 implementing Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to ecodesign	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			requirements for solid fuel boilers				
32.	1- Free Movement of Goods	Communiqué on Energy Labelling of Solid Fuel Boilers and Packages of a Solid Fuel Boiler, Supplementary Heaters, Temperature Controls and Solar Devices	Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/1187 of 27 April 2015 supplementing Directive 2010/30/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to energy labelling of solid fuel boilers and packages of a solid fuel boiler, supplementary heaters, temperature controls and solar devices	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
33.	Goods	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Solid Fuel Local Space Heaters	Commission Regulation (EU) 2015/1185 of 24 April 2015 implementing Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to ecodesign	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			requirements for solid fuel local space heaters				
34.	1- Free Movement of Goods	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Welding Equipment	Commission Regulation (EU) 2019/1784 of 1 October 2019 laying down ecodesign requirements for welding equipment pursuant to Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
35.	1- Free Movement of Goods	Communiqué on Energy Labelling of Residential Ventilation Units	Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 1254/2014 of 11 July 2014 supplementing Directive 2010/30/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to energy labelling of residential ventilation units	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
36.	1- Free Movement of Goods	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Local Space Heaters	Commission Regulation (EU) 2015/1188 of 28 April 2015 implementing Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to ecodesign requirements for local space heaters	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
37.	1- Free Movement of Goods	Communiqué on Energy Labelling of Local Space Heaters	Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/1186 of 24 April 2015 supplementing Directive 2010/30/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to the energy labelling of local space heaters	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
38.	Movement of Goods	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Refrigerating Appliances	Commission Regulation (EU) 2019/2019 of 1 October 2019 laying down ecodesign requirements for refrigerating appliances pursuant to Directive	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council and repealing Commission Regulation (EC) No 643/2009				
39.	Goods	Communiqué on Energy Labelling of Refrigerating Appliances	Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/2016 of 11 March 2019 supplementing Regulation (EU) 2017/1369 of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to energy labelling of refrigerating appliances and repealing Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 1060/2010	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
40.	Goods	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Servers and Data Storage Products	Commission Regulation (EU) 2019/424 of 15 March 2019 laying down ecodesign requirements for servers and data storage products	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			pursuant to Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council and amending Commission Regulation (EU) No 617/2013				
41.	1- Free Movement of Goods	sgm-2013/5) on type approval of motor vehicles with respect to emissions from heavy duty vehicles (Euro VI) and on access to	Commission Regulation (EU) 2019/1939 of 7 November 2019 amending Regulation (EU) No 582/2011 as regards Auxiliary Emission Strategies (AES), access to vehicle OBD information and vehicle repair and maintenance information, measurement of emissions during cold engine start periods and use of portable emissions measurement systems (PEMS) to measure particle		Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			numbers, with respect to heavy duty vehicles				
42.	1- Free Movement of Goods	Communiqué on Type-approval of Motor Vehicles with respect to Emissions from Light Passenger and Commercial Vehicles (Euro 5 and Euro 6) and on Access to Vehicle Repair and Maintenance Information	Commission Regulations (EU)2018/1832, (EU) 2017/1347, (EU)2017/1221, (EU)2017/1154 and (EU)2017/1151 on type-approval of motor vehicles with respect to emissions from light passenger and commercial vehicles (Euro 5 and Euro 6) and on access to vehicle repair and maintenance information		Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
43.	1- Free Movement of Goods	By-law amending the By-law on Veterinary Medicinal Products	Regulation (EU) 2019/6 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 11 December 2018 on veterinary medicinal products and repealing Directive 2001/82/EC		Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2022

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
44.	1- Free Movement of Goods	Amending the Cosmetics Law No. 5324 of 24.3.2005	Regulation (EC) No 1223/2009 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 30 November 2009 on cosmetic products		Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Health Turkish Medicines and Medical Devices Agency	2023
45.	1- Free Movement of Goods	Amending the Bylaw on Pharmaceutical Warehouses and Products in Pharmaceutical Warehouses (OG: 20.10.1999/ 23852)	Directive 2001/83/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 6 November 2001 on the Community code relating to medicinal products for human use Guidelines of 5 November 2013 on Good Distribution Practice of medicinal products for human use (2013/C 343/01)	National Action Plan (2016-2019)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Health Turkish Medicines and Medical Devices Agency	2023
46.	1- Free Movement of Goods	Amending the Bylaw on Marine Equipment (OG: 23.10.2005/2597 5 and Amendment OG:	Directive 2014/90/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23 July 2014 on marine equipment		Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Transport and Infrastructure	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
		15.01.2019/3065 6)					
47.	1- Free Movement of Goods	Amending the Bylaw on Cosmetics (OG: 23.05.2005/2582 3)	Regulation (EC) No 1223/2009 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 30 November 2009 on cosmetic products		Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Health Turkish Medicines and Medical Devices Agency	2023
48.	1- Free Movement of Goods	Amending the Bylaw on Variations to Medicinal Products for Human Use that are Registered or Applied for Registration (OG: 23.05.2005/2582 3)	Commission Regulation (EU) No 712/2012 of 3 August 2012 amending Regulation (EC) No 1234/2008 concerning the examination of variations to the terms of marketing authorisations for medicinal products for human use and veterinary medicinal products	National Action Plan (2016-2019)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Health Turkish Medicines and Medical Devices Agency	2023
49.	1- Free Movement of Goods	Guidelines of Good Distribution Practice of Medicinal	Guidelines of 5 November 2013 on Good Distribution Practice of medicinal	National Action Plan (2016-2019)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Health Turkish Medicines and	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
		Products for Human Use	products for human use (2013/C 343/01)			Medical Devices Agency	
50.	Movement of Goods	Guidelines on Good Distribution Practice of Active Substances	Guidelines of 19 March 2015 on principles of Good Distribution Practice of active substances for medicinal products for human use (2015/C 95/01)	National Action Plan (2016-2019)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Health Turkish Medicines and Medical Devices Agency	2023

2- FREEDOM OF MOVEMENT FOR WORKERS

The Screening Report has not been approved yet by the Council of the European Union. This Chapter is unilaterally blocked by the Greek Cypriot Administration of Southern Cyprus.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
LEC	GAL ARRANGEMENT	ΓS					
1.	2- Freedom of Movement for Workers	Conclusion of the Labour Force Agreement with Malta	Regulation (EC) No 883/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 29 April 2004 on the coordination of social security systems		Facilitating temporary employment of the citizens of both countries on a mutual basis and safeguarding the rights and interests of temporary workers	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2021
2.	2- Freedom of Movement for Workers	Conclusion of an Administrative Agreement concerning the Implementation of the Social Security Agreement between Turkey and Italy	Regulation (EC) No 883/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 29 April 2004 on the coordination of social security systems		Determining the principles regarding the implementation of the Social Security Agreement signed in Rome on 8 May 2012	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2021
3.	2- Freedom of Movement for Workers	Amendment to the Social Security Agreement between Turkey and France	Regulation (EC) No 883/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 29 April 2004 on the coordination of social security systems		Amending the Social Security Agreement signed in Paris on 20 January 1972 and the Administrative Agreement so as to cover the changes in the social security legislation and	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Ohiective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
LEC	GAL ARRANGEMENT	'S					
					improving the rights and interests of the insured people by means of the new agreement		
4.	2- Freedom of Movement for Workers	Conclusion of a Social Security Agreement with Slovenia	Regulation (EC) No 883/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 29 April 2004 on the coordination of social security systems		Safeguarding and improving the rights and interests of the insured persons which arise from their services in accordance with the social security legislation of two countries	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2022

3- RIGHT OF ESTABLISHMENT AND FREEDOM TO PROVIDE SERVICES

Screening Report for Chapter 3 on Right of Establishment and Freedom to Provide Services was communicated to Turkey on 31 October 2007 by the Portuguese Presidency. The Chapter is one of the 8 chapters that are blocked due to the Council Decision requiring full implementation of the Additional Protocol. Regarding this chapter, there is 1 technical opening benchmark:

1. Turkey should submit to the Commission a detailed strategy, including the timing of all steps to be taken in the framework of the legal arrangement and institutional set-up to ensure compliance with the acquis under this chapter.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
LEC	AL ARRANGEMENTS						
1.	3- Right of Establishment and Freedom to Provide Services	By-law on Retail Information System (PERBIS)		11th Development Plan 519.1. The Retail Information System (PERBIS) will be completed and the By- law on PERBIS will be prepared and put into practice. The 2020 Presidential Annual Program Measure 519.1 The Retail Information System (PERBIS) will be completed and the By- law on PERBIS will be prepared and put into practice.	Setting up of PERBIS and laying down the procedures and principles on the information to be accessed through the system	Ministry of Trade	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/R elated Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure					
INS	NSTITUTIONAL SET-UP AND OTHER WORK											
1.	3- Right of Establishment and Freedom to Provide Services	Implementing Turkey Qualifications Framework in compliance with the European Qualifications Framework ⁵	Recommendation of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23 April 2008 on the establishment of the European Qualifications Framework for lifelong learning (2008/C 111/01)		Promoting transparency of qualifications and its recognition among different countries and enabling a comparison with other National Qualifications Frameworks by means of revising the Referencing Report in accordance with the current international developments, associating Turkey's Competency Database (TYVT) with the Europass portal and drafting Turkey's Report on the Validation of Non-formal and Informal Learning	Vocational Qualifications Authority Council of Higher Education Ministry of National Education	2023					
2.	3- Right of Establishment and Freedom to Provide Services	Implementation and spreading of Europass ⁶	Decision (EU) 2018/646 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 18 April 2018 on a common framework for		Providing services in 29 languages free of charge for individuals on how to store all their learning histories and experiences in a secure	Vocational Qualifications Authority	2023					

⁵ Implementing Turkey Qualifications Framework in compliance with the European Qualifications Framework is also referred to in Chapter 26 on Education and Culture.

⁶ Implementation and spreading of Europass is also referred to in Chapter 26 on Education and Culture.

N	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/R elated Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			the provision of better services for skills and qualifications (Europass) and repealing Decision No 2241/2004/EC		online environment, how to prepare e-portfolios and CVs and on how to share these with third parties; and facilitating individuals' access to information, data, tools and services as well as to the relevant national authorities and organizations with regard to establishment, working, education and living in Europe through the Europass Portal and promoting the mobility	Council of Higher Education Ministry of National Education	

4- FREE MOVEMENT OF CAPITAL

Chapter 4 on Free Movement of Capital was opened to accession negotiations on 19 December 2008 during the French Presidency. Regarding this chapter, there are 4 technical closing benchmarks:

- 1. With respect to capital movements and payments, Turkey makes significant progress in its legislative alignment with the acquis, as indicated in the Action Plan.
- 2. With respect to real estate acquisition by natural and legal persons of the EU Member States, Turkey presents an Action Plan including concrete measures and a timetable for the gradual liberalization of the acquisition of real estate by foreigners in line with the acquis.
- 3. With respect to anti-money laundering, including confiscation, Turkey advances its legislative alignment with the acquis, as well as with the recommendations of the Financial Action Task Force.
- 4. Turkey demonstrates through a track record that it has at its disposal an adequate administrative capacity to properly implement and enforce the relevant legislation in all areas related to anti-money laundering including confiscation.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
LE	GAL ARRANGEMENTS						
1.	4- Free Movement of Capital	Secondary Legislation regarding the Law No. 5549 on	on combating money laundering	11th Development Plan	Increasing the efficiency in combating money laundering and the financing of terrorism at the national and international level and thus contributing to the closing benchmark of the Chapter	Ministry of Treasury and Finance	2021

6- COMPANY LAW

Chapter 6 on Company Law was opened to accession negotiations on 17 June 2008 during the Slovenian Presidency. Regarding this chapter, there are 5 technical closing benchmarks:

- 1. Turkey adopts the Draft Turkish Commercial Code, the Draft Law on the Entry into Force and Implementation of the Turkish Commercial Code aligning with the acquis, as well as all relevant legislation aligning with the EU acquis.
- 2. Turkey modifies the Capital Markets Law in line with the relevant acquis.
- 3. Turkey fully aligns its accounting, financial reporting and audit legislation, including its secondary legislation, with the acquis.
- 4. Turkey sets up the Turkish Auditing Standards Authority as the sole supreme authority in determining auditing standards and ethics, authorising independent auditors and audit companies under a public oversight system and monitoring their activities within the frame of quality assurance. (Fulfilled with the establishment of the Turkish Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority.)
- 5. Turkey reinforces its capacity to appropriately implement and enforce the acquis under Company law.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
LEC	GAL ARRANGEMENTS						
1.	6- Company Law	Communique on Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Micro Companies	Directive 2013/34/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 on the annual financial statements, consolidated financial statements and related reports of certain types of undertakings		Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Turkish Public Oversight, Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority	2021
2.	6- Company Law	Law Amending the Turkish Commercial Code (OG: 14/02/2011/27846)	Directive (EU) 2017/1132 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 14 June 2017 relating to certain aspects of company law		Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Trade	2023

7- INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY LAW

Chapter 7 on Intellectual Property Law was opened to accession negotiations on 17 June 2008 during the Slovenian Presidency. Regarding this chapter, there are 4 technical closing benchmarks:

- 1. Engaging a successful dialogue on Intellectual Property Rights (IPR) issues according to the terms of reference submitted by the Commission to Turkey on 3 April 2008.
- 2. Ensuring sufficient administrative capacity for the enforcing institutions with a view to enforcing the rights concerning the fight against piracy and counterfeit.
- 3. Providing a satisfactory track record of investigations, prosecutions and judicial treatment of violations and an improved performance concerning the effective enforcement of Intellectual Property Law by Turkey, including a substantial reduction in the volume of counterfeited and pirated goods exported to the EU.
- 4. Completing the alignment with the Community acquis concerning the community exhaustion of rights and the introduction of supplementary protection certificates, and ensuring the enforcement of these rights by accession.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
LEC	GAL ARRANGEMENTS						
1.	7- Intellectual Property Law	Amending the By-law on Collecting Societies and Federations of Intellectual and Artistic Work Owners and Related Right Holders	European Parliament and of the Council of 26 February 2014 on collective management of copyright and related rights and multiterritorial licensing of rights in musical works for online use in the internal market	11th Development Plan Measure No. 460: Copyright revenues will be increased by improving the collective rights management system for copyrights and creating a nationwide and fair licensing system Measure No.460.1: The applicable legislation will be updated in order to enable the collecting societies to operate more efficiently and transparently. Measure No.460.2: A guideline will be prepared and implemented in order to increase the	There is a separate section for IPR in the 11th Development Plan. Under this section, there are 9 policy areas and 43 sub-policy areas including the legal arrangements in the field of copyright. Increasing the efficiency in the functioning of collecting societies and increasing the royalties by improving the collective rights management system	Ministry of Culture and Tourism	2022

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
				institutional capacity of collecting societies on collective rights management including professional management, data production, human resources and digital environment			
2.	7- Intellectual Property Law	Amending Customs Law No.4458 (OG: 04.11.1999/23866	and of the Council of 12 June 2013 concerning customs enforcement of intellectual property rights and repealing Council Regulation (EC) No 1383/2003	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Trade The Strategic Plan includes the risk of decrease in the competitiveness of the tradesman in the EU market and in the countries where the EU has signed an FTA in case the EU Customs Legislation is not undertaken.	Making necessary arrangements in order to comply with the EU legislation concerning customs enforcement of intellectual property rights, through the New Customs Law	Ministry of Trade	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
				2019-2023 Strategic			
				Plan of the Ministry			
				of Trade			
				Objective 5.3.			
				Smooth and effective			
				functioning of the			
				preferential regime			
				on agricultural			
				products and the			
				existing Customs			
				Union between			
				Turkey and the EU			
				will be ensured and			
				efforts to update the Customs Union will			
				continue.			
				Performance			
				Indicator 5.3.3:			
				Alignment with the			
				Union Customs Code			
				will be ensured.			
				Alignment with the			
				implementing			
				regulations of the			

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
				Union Customs Code will be ensured.			
3.	7- Intellectual Property Law	Amending the By-law on Customs (OG: 07.10.2009/27369-bis)	Regulation (EU) No 608/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 12 June 2013 concerning customs enforcement of intellectual property rights and repealing Council Regulation (EC) No 1383/2003	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Trade The Strategic Plan includes the risk of decrease in the competitiveness of the tradesman in the EU market and in the countries where the EU has signed an FTA in case the EU Customs Legislation is not undertaken. 2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Trade Objective 5.3. Smooth and effective functioning of the preferential regime on agricultural products and the	Determining the implementation procedures through the secondary legislation which will be issued following the amendment to the Customs Law	Ministry of Trade	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
				existing Customs Union between Turkey and the EU will be ensured and efforts to update the Customs Union will continue. Performance Indicator 5.3.3: Alignment with the Union Customs Code will be ensured. Alignment with the implementing regulations of the Union Customs Code will be ensured.			

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
INST	TITUTIONAL SET-UP A	AND OTHER WORK					
1.	7- Intellectual Property Law	With a view to increasing efficiency in the fight against piracy, provincial inspection commissions and other relevant stakeholders will be provided with training on a regular basis.		11th Development Plan Measure No. 454.3: Modular and certified trainings will be provided to the interested groups and awareness raising and information activities will be carried out within the Intellectual Property Academy. Measure No.456.15: Regular trainings will be provided to the commission members to ensure uniformity in implementation and inform them about the legislation in order to increase the	Strengthening institutional capacity and raising awareness of those working in the field of fighting against piracy and of other relevant stakeholders	Ministry of Culture and Tourism Directorate General for Copyright	2021-20237

 $^{^{7}\,\}mathrm{Regular}$ trainings will be carried out within the Copyright Training Center.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
				effectiveness of provincial inspection commissions			

8- COMPETITION POLICY

Screening Report for Competition Policy Chapter has been conveyed to Turkey by the Austrian Presidency on 28 June 2006. Regarding this Chapter, there are 6 technical opening benchmarks:

- 1. Transparency in the area of state aid is ensured by providing a comprehensive inventory of all state aid measures covered by the Association Council Decision No. 1/95 on implementing the final phase of the Customs Union.
- 2. Detailed information is provided on the evolution of capacity in the steel sector and state aid given to each company since 2001.
- 3. A state aid law is adopted setting out general conditions and rules for authorization, monitoring the implementation and the recovery of state aid, for the purpose of implementing the obligations resulting from existing bilateral agreements between Turkey and the EU.
- 4. An operationally independent state aid authority is set up with the powers necessary for the full application of the state aid rules resulting from existing bilateral agreements. This authority has the power to authorize state aid schemes and individual aid grants, as well as the power for the recovery of the unlawfully granted aid. Until then, in line with the requirements of the Customs Union Agreement, the adoption of new aid schemes or extension of existing ones is avoided.
- 5. An action plan, accepted by the Commission, is presented with a clear timetable for the alignment of all remaining aid schemes or equivalent measures identified as incompatible with the obligations resulting from existing bilateral agreements between Turkey and the EU.
- 6. All necessary measures are adopted to ensure that no steel company benefits from state aid given in breach of the Agreement between the ECSC and Turkey on trade in coal and steel products. Such state aids given since 2001 could be accepted by the Council under strict conditions to be inserted in a national restructuring programme (NRP). Such restructuring programme is adopted before 1 September 2006, in order to meet those strict conditions in the best manner.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
1.	8- Competition Policy	By-law on the Settlement Procedures and Principles	Commission Regulation (EC) No 622/2008 of 30 June 2008 amending Regulation (EC) No 773/2004, as regards the conduct of settlement procedures in cartel cases Commission Notice on the conduct of settlement procedures in view of the adoption of Decisions pursuant to Article 7 and Article 23 of Council Regulation (EC) No 1/2003 in cartel cases (2008/C 167/01)		Within the framework of the provisions on settlement procedures added to the Article 43 of the Law No.4054 on the Protection of Competition as amended by the Law No.7246; determining the procedures and principles regarding the settlement process to be implemented to those that acknowledge the existence and scope of the violation among the undertakings and association of undertakings against which an investigation was initiated with respect to the behaviours prohibited within the scope of the Articles 4 and 6 of the Law No.4054.	Competition Authority	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
2.	8- Competition Policy	Communique on Agreements, Concerted Practices, Act and Conducts of Association of Undertakings which do not Appreciably Restrict Competition	Communication from the Commission — Notice on agreements of minor importance which do not appreciably restrict competition under Article 101(1) of the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union (De Minimis Notice) 2014/C 291/01		Determining the procedures and principles regarding the implementation of the provision added to the Article 41 of the Law No. 4054 on the Protection of Competition as amended by the Law No. 7246, that the Competition Board, on the basis of criteria such as market share and turn over, may not investigate agreements, concerted actions and decisions and actions of association of undertakings that do not appreciably restrict competition in the market, except for clear and serious infringements	Competition Authority	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
3.	8- Competition Policy	Communique on Commitments to be Submitted in Preliminary Investigations and Investigations for Agreements, Concerted Actions and Decisions Restricting Competition and Abuse of Dominant Position	Council Regulation (EC) No 1/2003 of 16 December 2002 on the implementation of the rules on competition laid down in Articles 81 and 82 of the Treaty Commission notice on best practices for the conduct of proceedings concerning Articles 101 and 102 TFEU (Text with EEA relevance) 2011/C 308/06		Within the framework of the provisions on commitment procedures added to the Article 43 of the Law No. 4054 on the Protection of Competition as amended by the Law No. 7246, determining the procedures and principles related to the submission of commitments by the relevant undertakings or the association of undertakings to remove the problems on competition that occur within the scope of Article 4 or 6 of Law No. 4054 during the process of a preliminary investigation or investigation process, making these commitments binding by the Competition Board and their monitoring	Competition Authority	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
4.	8- Competition Policy	Amending the Legislation on the Control of Mergers and Acquisitions	Council Regulation (EC) No 139/2004 of 20 January 2004 on the control of concentrations between undertakings (the EC Merger Regulation) Commission Consolidated Jurisdictional Notice under Council Regulation (EC) No 139/2004 on the control of concentrations between undertakings Commission notice on remedies acceptable under Council Regulation (EC) No 139/2004 and under Commission Regulation (EC) No 802/2004 (2008/C 267/01) Guidelines on the assessment of horizontal mergers under the Council Regulation on the		Within the framework of the implementation challenges faced following the amendment made regarding the test used in the evaluation of mergers and acquisitions in the Article 7 of the Law No.4054 on the Protection of Competition as amended by the Law No.7246, complying with the amendment made to the Article 7 of the Law through reviewing the Communique No.2010/4 on Mergers and Acquisitions Requiring the Approval of the Competition Board and the relevant guidelines, and overcoming challenges in the implementation.	Competition Authority	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			control of concentrations between undertakings (2004/C 31/03) Guidelines on the assessment of non-horizontal mergers under the Council Regulation on the control of concentrations between undertakings (2008/C 265/07) Commission Notice on restrictions directly related and necessary to concentrations (2005/C 56/03)				

9- FINANCIAL SERVICES

The Screening Report for Chapter 9 on Financial Services was communicated to Turkey on 25 June 2007 by the German Presidency. Regarding this chapter, there are no technical opening benchmarks. The Chapter is one of the 8 chapters that are blocked due to the Council Decision requiring full implementation of the Additional Protocol.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure	
LEG	EGAL ARRANGEMENTS							
1.	9- Financial Services	Amendment to the Banking Law No:5411 (OG: 01.11.2005/25983-bis)	Directive 2014/59/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 15 May 2014 establishing a framework for the recovery and resolution of credit institutions and investment firms and amending Council Directive 82/891/EEC, and Directives 2001/24/EC, 2002/47/EC, 2004/25/EC, 2005/56/EC, 2007/36/EC, 2011/35/EU, 2012/30/EU and 2013/36/EU, and Regulations (EU) No 1093/2010 and (EU) No 648/2012, of the European Parliament and of the Council		Aligning with the EU acquis through comprehensive amendments to the current resolution regime	Savings Deposit Insurance Fund	2021	
2.	9- Financial Services	Amendment to the Banking Law No:5411 (OG: 01.11.2005/25983- bis)	Directive 2014/49/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 April 2014 on deposit guarantee schemes		Aligning with the EU legislation through extending guarantee schemes to cover commercial deposits as well	Savings Deposit Insurance Fund	2021	

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
3.	9- Financial Services	Drafting new By-laws in line with the amendments to be made to the Banking Law No.5411 regarding the Recovery and Resolution Regime	Directive 2014/59/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 15 May 2014 establishing a framework for the recovery and resolution of credit institutions and investment firms and amending Council Directive 82/891/EEC, and Directives 2001/24/EC, 2002/47/EC, 2004/25/EC, 2005/56/EC, 2007/36/EC, 2011/35/EU, 2012/30/EU and 2013/36/EU, and Regulations (EU) No 1093/2010 and (EU) No 648/2012, of the European Parliament and of the Council		Aligning with the EU acquis through comprehensive amendments to the current recovery and resolution regime	Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency Savings Deposit Insurance Fund	2021
4.	9- Financial Services	Amending the By-law on Principles and Procedures regarding Payment and Liquidation of the Insured Deposits and Insured Participation Funds in Banks with a Revoked Operating	Directive 2014/49/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 April 2014 on deposit guarantee schemes		Aligning with the EU acquis by gradually reducing the repayment period of insured deposits to 7 working days and making amendments in the transition period to make advance deposit payments to the depositors in an amount	Savings Deposit Insurance Fund	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
		License (OG: 23.02.2007/26443)			to meet their minimum needs of 5 working days in cases when the payment can not be made within 7 working days		
5.	9- Financial Services	Amending the By-law on Payment Services and Electronic Money Issuance, Payment Institutions and Electronic Money Institutions (OG: 27.06.2014/29043)	Directive (EU) 2015/2366 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 25 November 2015 on payment services in the internal market, amending Directives 2002/65/EC, 2009/110/EC and 2013/36/EU and Regulation (EU) No 1093/2010, and repealing Directive 2007/64/EC		Aligning with the EU acquis by updating procedures and principles related to the payment services with the aim of strengthening the legal background of open banking	Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey	2021

10- INFORMATION SOCIETY AND MEDIA

Chapter 10 on Information Society and Media was opened to accession negotiations on 19 December 2008 during the French Presidency. Regarding this chapter, there are 5 technical closing benchmarks:

- 1. Turkey completes the legislative alignment with the acquis on electronic communications, in particular on universal service, consumer rights and spectrum management (including harmonisation of radiofrequency allocation), and with the acquis on information society services.
- 2. Turkey, following the market analyses, secures implementation of competitive safeguard measures for operators with significant market power and the general authorisation regime in line with the acquis. In particular, Turkey adopts an attitude based on experiences on the protection of the rights of new entrants on the electronic communications market.
- 3. Turkey ensures sufficient administrative capacity to enforce the acquis in the field of electronic communications, as well as the transparency, predictability and independence of the telecommunications regulator.
- 4. Turkey adopts legislation aimed at aligning with the acquis in the field of audiovisual policy, notably the Audiovisual Media Services Directive, including measures to ensure that the national legal framework complies with the principle of freedom of reception and retransmission of television broadcasts.
- 5. Turkey completes public consultation with the relevant stakeholders as regards the impact of the measures adopted in view of enhancing the transparency of the audiovisual regulatory process and the independence of the competent regulatory body, and reflects the findings as appropriate.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
LEC	GAL ARRANGEME	NTS					
1.	10- Information Society and Media	Legal arrangement and By-law on Security of Network and Information Systems	Directive (EU) 2016/1148 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 6 July 2016 concerning measures for a high common level of security of network and information systems across the Union	11th Development Plan (2019-2023) 474.2. Work will be conducted to ensure harmonization with EU's Directive on Security of Network and Information Systems (NIS)	Determining the legal framework for the work to be carried out in the field of security of network and information systems, establishing the necessary mechanisms and authorizing the relevant institutions	Information and Communication Technologies Authority	2022
2.	10- Information Society and Media	Legal Arrangement and Relevant Secondary Legislation	Regulation (EU) No 910/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23 July 2014 on electronic identification and trust services for electronic transactions in the internal market and repealing Directive 1999/93/EC (eIDAS Regulation)	11th Development Plan (2019-2023) 477.2 Regulations for trust services (e-seal, SSL certificates, e-signature, PEP) will be updated to ensure compliance with the EU Trust Services and Electronic Identification Regulation.	Updating the relevant legislation, particularly the Electronic Signature Law No. 5070 in order to extend the use of electronic signature and registered electronic mail system and carrying out the work on establishing the legal background with regard to the services based on electronic certificates such as electronic seal and web page authentication	Ministry of Transport and Infrastructure Information and Communication Technologies Authority	2022

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
3.	10- Information	Amending the Law	Directive (EU)		Updating the primary	Radio and	2023
	Society and	No.6112 on the	2018/1808 of the		and, if necessary, the	Television	
	Media	Establishment of	European Parliament		secondary legislation by	Supreme	
		Radio and	and of the Council of		examining the titles	Council	
		Television	14 November 2018		amended and the new		
		Enterprises and	amending Directive		titles inserted within the		
		Their Broadcasting	2010/13/EU on the		scope of the new		
		Services	coordination of certain		Directive		
			provisions laid down				
			by law, regulation or				
			administrative action				
			in Member States				
			concerning the				
			provision of				
			audiovisual media				
			services (Audiovisual				
			Media Services				
			Directive) in view of				
			changing market				
			realities				

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure				
INS	INSTITUTIONAL SET-UP AND OTHER WORK										
1.	10- Information Society and Media	National Broadband Strategy (2021- 2023)	Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, "Connectivity for a Competitive Digital Single Market - Towards a European Gigabit Society"	11th Development Plan (2019-2023) 464. The fixed and mobile broadband infrastructures providing high speed and high quality access will be expanded and the joint use of physical infrastructures will be encouraged. 465. Broadband infrastructures will be established and operated with government support in commercially inaccessible regions.	Expanding high speed and high capacity broadband infrastructures/servic es throughout the country and carrying out the work to increase the broadband internet use	Ministry of Transport and Infrastructure Information and Communicatio n Technologies Authority	2021				

11- AGRICULTURE AND RURAL DEVELOPMENT

The Screening Report for Chapter 11 on Agriculture and Rural Development was communicated to Turkey on 24 January 2007 by the German Presidency. Chapter 11 is one of the 8 chapters that are blocked due to the Council Decision requiring full implementation of the Additional Protocol. Regarding this chapter, there are 5 technical opening benchmarks:

- 1. Turkey establishes an IPARD Agency (Instrument for Pre-accession Assistance in Rural Development) accredited in compliance with EU requirements.
- 2. Turkey presents to the Commission a strategy to reverse the tendency of recent years of increasing importance of coupled direct support payments and price support measures in the agriculture budget, in favour of decoupled direct support in line with the current trend of the Common Agricultural Policy. This strategy should also include steps towards the alignment of public support for state economic enterprises with EU state aid rules, as well as the respect by such enterprises of the EU rules on transparency.
- 3. Turkey presents to the Commission a detailed strategy referring also to sensitive products such as cereals, sugar, milk, livestock, fruit and vegetables (including targets, deadlines, responsible authority and cost estimates) to ensure sound and reliable statistical information about agriculture and rural development, in order to reach a satisfactory level to start negotiations.
- 4. Turkey presents to the Commission a strategy on how it intends to further develop the system of land identification and the National Farmer Registration System to prepare for controls on agricultural land.
- 5. Turkey lifts restrictions on trade in beef meat, live bovine animals and derivate products.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure				
LEG	EGAL ARRANGEMENTS										
1.	11- Agriculture and Rural Development	By-law on the Integrated Administration and Control System	Regulation (EU) No 1306/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 17 December 2013 on the financing, management and monitoring of the common agricultural policy and repealing Council Regulations (EEC) No 352/78, (EC) No 165/94, (EC) No 2799/98, (EC) No 814/2000, (EC) No 1290/2005 and (EC) No 485/2008	2.2.2.1 Agriculture 2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	Establishing an Integrated Administration and Control System, which shall ensure the management and control of farmer applications for various support schemes to be provided within the scope of EU's Common Agricultural Policy, and determining the cross compliance rules	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2021				

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
2.	11- Agriculture and Rural Development	Amending the Law No.1163 on Cooperatives (OG: 10.05.1969/13195, Law No.5200 on Agricultural Producers Unions (OG:06.07.2004/25514, and the Law No.5957 on the Regulation of the rules and procedures of the commerce of fruits and vegetables and other goods to be determined according to their supply and demand (OG:26.03.2010/27533)	Regulation (EU) No 1308/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 17 December 2013 establishing a common organisation of the markets in agricultural products and repealing Council Regulations (EEC) No 922/72, (EEC) No 234/79, (EC) No 1037/2001 and (EC) No 1234/2007	11th Development Plan 2.2.2.1 Agriculture 2.4.6 Rural Development 2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry 3. Final Declaration of the Agriculture and Forestry Council	Developing an organizational structure and function in line with the EU for agricultural producer organisations in Turkey through amending existing laws or making a new legal arrangement; and establishing a system in line with EU for the recognition of the producer organizations by the competent public authority in this respect		2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure			
INS	INSTITUTIONAL SET-UP AND OTHER WORK									
1.	11- Agriculture and Rural Development	Strategy to Improve the Turkish Agricultural Statistics System ⁸		11th Development Plan 2.5.2.2. Strategic Management in the Public Sector 2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	Fulfilling the third opening benchmark of the Chapter and ensuring production of reliable statistical data for use in accession negotiations with the EU	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2021			
2.	11- Agriculture and Rural Development	Strategy on Agricultural Supports		11th Development Plan 2.2.2.1 Agriculture 2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	Fulfilling the second opening benchmark of the Chapter by finalising and presenting to the Commission the draft Strategy on Agricultural Supports drafted within the scope of ESEI project on "Capacity Building and Support to the Preparation of a Regulatory Impact Assessment (RIA) for Decoupled Agricultural Support "	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2021			

 $^{^8}$ Strategy to Improve the Turkish Agricultural Statistics System is also referred to in Chapter 18 on Statistics. 67

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
					conducted under the 2013 Financial Cooperation Programme		
3.	11- Agriculture and Rural Development	Establishing Farm Advisory System (FAS) in Turkey		11th Development Plan 2.4.6 Rural Development 2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	Aligning the farm advisory system in Turkey with EU standards	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2021
4.	11- Agriculture and Rural Development	Extending the "Implementation of Local Development Strategies – the LEADER approach" measure under rural development programmes		11th Development Plan 2.4.6 Rural Development	Improving cooperation among local actors involved in rural development under the umbrella of the Local Action Groups and strengthening local capacity for identifying development priority	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2022

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
5.	11- Agriculture and	Extending the		11th Development	areas and targets by local actors Extending the	Ministry of	2022
5.	Rural Development	Extending the implementation of agri-environment measures under rural development programmes		Plan 2.2.2.1 Agriculture 2.4.6 Rural Development 2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	implementation of the measures by completing preparatory work related to water protection, biodiversity, organic farming, as well as ground cover management and soil erosion control, currently implemented as pilot sub-measures under the IPARD Programme Increasing environmental supports for the extension of the measures to mitigate the adverse impact of agricultural activities		2022

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
					on soil and water resources		
6.	11- Agriculture and Rural Development	System and covers arrangements needed within this scope	Regulation (EU) No 1308/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 17 December 2013 establishing a common organisation of the markets in agricultural products and repealing Council Regulations (EEC) No 922/72, (EEC) No 234/79, (EC) No 1037/2001 and (EC) No 1234/2007	11th Development Plan 2.2.2.1 Agriculture 2.4.6 Rural Development 2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry 3. Final Declaration of the Agriculture and Forestry Council	Developing an organizational structure and function in line with the EU for agricultural producer organisations in Turkey through amending existing laws or making a new legal arrangement; and establishing a system in line with the EU for the recognition of the producer organizations by the competent public authority	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023

12- FOOD SAFETY, VETERINARY AND PHYTOSANITARY POLICY

Chapter 12 on Food Safety, Veterinary and Phytosanitary Policy was opened to accession negotiations on 30 June 2010 during the Spanish Presidency. Regarding this chapter, there are 6 technical closing benchmarks:

- 1. Turkey implements systems for identification and registration of animals that are compliant with the EU acquis and fully operational, including through implementing its commitments made in view of meeting the relevant opening benchmark.
- 2. Turkey submits an approved national programme for the upgrading of establishments for products of animal origin, including establishments for animal by-products. This programme includes a precise plan for the monitoring by the Turkish authorities of the process of upgrading establishments. This national programme includes a strategy for the use of non-compliant raw milk. Turkey also demonstrates sufficient progress in the implementation of this national programme. Furthermore, Turkey demonstrates that it has devoted sufficient human and financial resources for monitoring the process of upgrading the establishments covered by the national programme.
- 3. Turkey fulfils its obligations related to animal disease notification, ensuring satisfactory cooperation with the EU Member States. Surveillance and control measures for animal diseases notifiable to the EU and contingency plans for major epizootic diseases as provided for under the acquis are implemented and the acquis in the area of Foot and Mouth Disease (FMD) is fully applied by implementing a detailed eradication plan established in advance.
- 4. Turkey aligns and implements an effective system for the control of Transmissible Spongiform Encephalopathies (TSEs): feed ban, control of specified risk materials, TSEs testings.
- 5. Turkey aligns the EU animal welfare legislation and ensures that the sector is aware and prepared, sufficiently in advance, for efficient implementation at the latest by accession.
- 6. Turkey continues to set up and develop, in accordance with the acquis, the relevant administrative structures, in particular in order to implement a fully EU-compliant system for all relevant official controls, in particular operational Border Inspection Posts, including the funding of this system; Turkey further increases its administrative capacities and infrastructures; Turkey demonstrates that it will have sufficient administrative capacity to correctly implement and apply all the acquis covered by this Chapter by accession.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
LEG.	AL ARRANGEMENTS						
1.	12- Food Safety, Veterinary and Phytosanitary Policy	Instruction on criteria for the inspection of official controls under the Law No. 5996 on Veterinary Services, Phytosanitary, Food and Feed	Commission Decision 2006/677/EC of 29 September 2006 setting out the guidelines laying down criteria for the conduct of audits under Regulation (EC) No 882/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council on official controls to verify compliance with feed and food law, animal health and animal welfare rules (notified under document number C(2006) 4026) (Text with EEA relevance)	Legislation	Identifying criteria for the inspection of official controls under the Law No. 5996 on Veterinary Services, Phytosanitary, Food and Feed	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
2.	12- Food Safety, Veterinary and Phytosanitary Policy	Turkish Food Codex By-law on Novel Foods	Regulation (EU) 2015/2283 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 25 November 2015 on novel foods, amending Regulation (EU) No 1169/2011 of the European Parliament and of the Council and repealing Regulation (EC) No 258/97 of the European Parliament and of the Council and Commission Regulation (EC) No 1852/2001 (Text with EEA relevance) Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) 2017/2470 of 20 December 2017 establishing the Union list of novel foods in accordance with Regulation (EU)	Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	Determining the application procedures and principles for novel foods and establishing a novel foods list	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			2015/2283 of the European Parliament and of the Council on novel foods				
3.	12- Food Safety, Veterinary and Phytosanitary Policy	Amending the Bylaw on Feed Hygiene (OG: 27.12.2011/28155)	Commission Regulation (EU) 2015/1905 of 22 October 2015 amending Annex II to Regulation (EC) No 183/2005 of the European Parliament and of the Council as regards the dioxin testing of oils, fats and products derived thereof (Text with EEA relevance) Regulation (EU) 2019/4 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 11 December 2018 on the manufacture, placing on the market and use of medicated feed,		Aligning provisions on the manufacture and use of medicated feed with the amendment to the Annex II to Regulation (EC) No 183/2005	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2022

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			amending Regulation (EC) No 183/2005 of the European Parliament and of the Council and repealing Council Directive 90/167/EEC (Text with EEA relevance)				
4.	12- Food Safety, Veterinary and Phytosanitary Policy	Instruction on Multi- Annual National Control Plan	Commission Decision 2007/363/EC of 21 May 2007 on guidelines to assist Member States in preparing the single integrated multi- annual national control plan provided for in Regulation (EC) No 882/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council (notified under document number	Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	Preparing the multi- annual national control plan	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2022

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			C(2007) 2099) (Text with EEA relevance)				
5.	12- Food Safety, Veterinary and Phytosanitary Policy	By-Law on Animal Health Requirements Applicable to Imports of Deep- Frozen Semens of Bovine Species	Regulation (EU) 2016/429 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 9 March 2016 on transmissible animal diseases and amending and repealing certain acts in the area of animal health ('Animal Health Law') (Text with EEA relevance) Commission Implementing Decision 2011/630/EU of 20 September 2011 on imports into the Union of semen of domestic animals of the bovine species (notified under document C (2011)		Identifying animal health requirements applicable to imports of deep-frozen semens of bovine species.	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			6426) (Text with EEA relevance)				
6.	12- Food Safety, Veterinary and Phytosanitary Policy	By-law on the Implementation of Animal Health Requirements Applicable to Imports of Embryos of Bovine Species	Regulation (EU) 2016/429 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 9 March 2016 on Transmissible Animal Diseases and amending and repealing certain acts in the area of animal health (Animal Health Law) (Text with EEA relevance)	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	Identifying the implementation criteria for animal health requirements applicable to imports of embryos of bovine species.	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023
7.	12- Food Safety, Veterinary and Phytosanitary Policy	By-law on Animal Health Conditions and Veterinary Certification Requirements for Imports of Bovine Embryos	Commission Decision 2006/168/EC of 4 January 2006 establishing the animal health and veterinary certification requirements for imports into the	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	Identifying animal health conditions and veterinary certification requirements for imports of bovine embryos	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Community of bovine embryos and repealing Decision 2005/217/EC (notified under document number C (2005) 5796) (Text with EEA relevance)				
8.	12- Food Safety, Veterinary and Phytosanitary Policy	By-law on Animal Health Conditions Governing the Introduction of Ovine and Caprine Animals into the Country	Regulation (EU) 2016/429 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 9 March 2016 on Transmissible Animal Diseases and amending and repealing certain acts in the area of animal health (Animal Health Law) (Text with EEA relevance)	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	Identifying animal health conditions for the imports of ovine and caprine animals	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023
9.	12- Food Safety, Veterinary and Phytosanitary Policy	By-Law on Health and Quarantine Conditions for	Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No 139/2013 of 7 January 2013 laying		Identifying health and quarantine conditions for	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
		Imports of Certain Birds	down animal health conditions for imports of certain birds into the Union and the quarantine conditions thereof		imports of certain birds		
10.	12- Food Safety, Veterinary and Phytosanitary Policy	Revising the Seed Law No. 5553 and relevant legislation	Commission Directive 93/61/EEC of 2 July 1993 setting out the schedules indicating the conditions to be met by vegetable propagating and planting material, other than seed pursuant to Council Directive 92/33/EEC Commission Directive 93/62/EEC of 5 July 1993 setting out the implementing measures concerning the supervision and	of Agriculture and Forestry	Increasing the quality of certified seeds and propagating materials and aligning with the EU	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			monitoring of suppliers and establishments pursuant to Council Directive 92/33/EEC on the marketing of vegetable propagating and planting material, other than seed Commission Implementing Directive 2014/96/EU of 15 October 2014 on the requirements for the labelling, sealing and packaging of fruit plant propagating material and fruit plants intended for fruit production, falling within the scope of Council				

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Directive 2008/90/EC Commission Implementing Directive 2014/97/EU of 15 October 2014 implementing Council Directive 2008/90/EC as regards the registration of suppliers and of varieties and the common list of varieties Commission Implementing Directive 2014/98/EU of 15 October 2014 implementing Council Directive 2008/90/EC as regards specific				

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			requirements for the genus and species of fruit plants referred to in Annex I thereto, specific requirements to be met by suppliers and detailed rules concerning official inspections				
11.	12- Food Safety, Veterinary and Phytosanitary Policy	Communiqué on Animal Health Conditions Governing Imports of Day Old Chicks and Hatching Eggs	Regulation (EU) 2016/429 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 9 March 2016 on transmissible animal diseases and amending and repealing certain acts in the area of animal health	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	Setting out animal health conditions governing imports of day old chicks and hatching eggs	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023
12.	12- Food Safety, Veterinary and Phytosanitary Policy	Communiqué on a List of Countries, Territories, Zones or Compartments From Which Day Old	Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2020/692 of 30 January 2020 supplementing	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	Identifying the list of countries, territories, zones or compartments from which day old chicks		2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
		Chicks and Hatching Eggs may be Imported into and Transit and the Veterinary Certification Requirements	Regulation (EU) 2016/429 of the European Parliament and of the Council as regards rules for entry into the Union, and the movement and handling after entry of consignments of certain animals, germinal products and products of animal origin (Text with EEA relevance)		and hatching eggs may be imported into and transit and the veterinary certification requirements		
13.	12- Food Safety, Veterinary and Phytosanitary Policy	Communiqué on Requirements for Import and Certification of Aquaculture Animals and Products	Commission Regulation (EC) No 1251/2008 of 12 December 2008 implementing Council Directive 2006/88/EC as regards conditions and certification requirements for the placing on the market and the import into the	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	Identifying requirements for the import and certification of aquaculture animals and products	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Community of aquaculture animals and products thereof and laying down a list of vector species (Text with EEA relevance)				
14.	12- Food Safety, Veterinary and Phytosanitary Policy	Communiqué on Animal Health Conditions and Veterinary Certifications for the Import of Animal Casings	Commission Decision of 31 October 2003 laying down animal health requirements and the veterinary certification for the import of animal casings from third countries (Text with EEA relevance) (notified under document number C (2003) 3988)	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	Identifying animal health conditions and veterinary certifications for the import of animal casings	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023
15.	12- Food Safety, Veterinary and Phytosanitary Policy	Circular on an Internet-Based Information Page for Aquaculture Production Businesses and Authorised	Regulation (EU) 2016/429 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 9 March 2016 on transmissible animal diseases and	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	Making arrangements needed for the use of an internet-based information page for aquaculture production	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
		Processing Establishments	amending and repealing certain acts in the area of animal health Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2020/691 of 30 January 2020 supplementing Regulation (EU) 2016/429 of the European Parliament and of Council as regards rules for aquaculture establishments and transporters of aquatic animals (Text with EEA relevance) (Text with EEA relevance)		businesses and authorised processing establishments		

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
INS	ΓΙΤUTIONAL SET-UP A	AND OTHER WORK					
1.	12- Food Safety, Veterinary and Phytosanitary Policy	Preparing the strategy and action plan aimed at establishing a system on collecting and processing of animal by-products		2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	Contributing to the work to be carried out within the framework of technical closing benchmark no. 4	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023
2.	12- Food Safety, Veterinary and Phytosanitary Policy	Building the capacity for collecting data to be used in the risk assessment		2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	Contributing to the work to be carried out within the framework of technical closing benchmark no. 6	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023
3.	12- Food Safety, Veterinary and Phytosanitary Policy	Drawing up the Risk Communication Strategy		2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	Contributing to the work to be carried out within the framework of technical closing benchmark no. 6	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023
4.	12- Food Safety, Veterinary and Phytosanitary Policy	Equipping the phytosanitary border inspection posts in line with the EU legislation		2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	Contributing to the work to be carried out within the framework of technical closing benchmark no. 6	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
5.	12- Food Safety, Veterinary and Phytosanitary Policy	Preparing an action plan to increase the quality of raw milk		2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	Controlling of brucellosis and tuberculosis diseases, aligning with the EU criteria of total number of bacteria in a raw milk on somatic cells and at 30°C Identifying necessary procedures for usage/disposal of the non-compliant raw milk	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023

13- FISHERIES

Screening Report for Chapter 13 on Fisheries has not been officially communicated to Turkey. The Chapter is one of the 8 chapters that are blocked due to the Council Decision requiring full implementation of the Additional Protocol.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure					
LEG	EGAL ARRANGEMENTS											
1.	13- Fisheries	By-law on Fisheries	Regulation (EU) No 1380/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 11 December 2013 on the Common Fisheries Policy, amending Council Regulations (EC) No 1954/2003 and (EC) No 1954/2009 and repealing Council Regulations (EC) No 2371/2002 and (EC) No 639/2004 and Council Decision 2004/585/EC Regulation (EU) No 1379/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 11 December 2013 on the common organisation of the markets in fishery and aquaculture products, amending Council Regulations (EC)		Determining the procedures and principles for the implementation of arrangements made in line with the amendments to the Fisheries Law	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2021					

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			No 1184/2006 and (EC) No 1224/2009 and repealing Council Regulation (EC) No 104/2000 Council Regulation (EC) No 1224/2009 of 20 November 2009 establishing a Community control system for ensuring compliance with the rules of the common fisheries policy, amending Regulations (EC) No 847/96, (EC) No 2371/2002, (EC) No 811/2004, (EC) No				
			768/2005, (EC) No 2115/2005, (EC) No 2166/2005, (EC) No 388/2006, (EC) No 509/2007, (EC) No 676/2007, (EC) No 1098/2007, (EC) No 1300/2008, (EC) No 1342/2008 and repealing				

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Regulations (EEC) No 2847/93, (EC) No 1627/94 and (EC) No 1966/2006 Council Regulation (EC) No 1967/2006 of 21 December 2006 concerning management measures for the sustainable exploitation of fishery resources in the Mediterranean Sea, amending Regulation (EEC) No 2847/93 and repealing Regulation (EC) No 1626/94 Council Regulation (EC) No 1005/2008 of 29 September 2008				the Measure
			establishing a Community system to prevent, deter and eliminate illegal, unreported and unregulated fishing, amending Regulations				

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			(EEC) No 2847/93, (EC) No 1936/2001 and (EC) No 601/2004 and repealing Regulations (EC) No 1093/94 and (EC) No 1093/94 and (EC) No 1447/1999 Council Regulation (EC) No 708/2007 of 11 June 2007 concerning use of alien and locally absent species in aquaculture Council Regulation (EC) No 2406/96 of 26 November 1996 laying down common marketing standards for certain fishery products Regulation (EU) 2017/1130 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 14 June 2017 defining characteristics for fishing vessels				

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
2.	13- Fisheries	By-law on Aquaculture	Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No 1418/2013 of 17 December 2013 concerning production and marketing plans pursuant to Regulation (EU) No 1379/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council on the common organisation of the markets in fishery and aquaculture products Council Regulation (EC) No 708/2007 of 11 June 2007 concerning use of alien and locally absent species in aquaculture	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	Determining the procedures and principles for aquaculture in line with the amendments to the Fisheries Law	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2021
3.	13- Fisheries	Amending the Law No. 1163 on Cooperatives for Restructuring of the Fisheries Producer Organization	Regulation (EU) No 1380/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 11 December 2013 on the Common Fisheries Policy, amending Council	11th Development Plan 1. 2.2.2.1 Agriculture	Developing an organizational structure and function in line with the EU for fisheries producer organisations in	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry Ministry of Trade	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
		(OG:10.05.1969/1 3195) and/or the Law No. 5200 on Agricultural Producers Union (OG:06.07.2004/2 5514)	Regulations (EC) No 1954/2003 and (EC) No 1224/2009 and repealing Council Regulations (EC) No 2371/2002 and (EC) No 639/2004 and Council Decision 2004/585/EC Regulation (EU) No 1379/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 11 December 2013 on the common organisation of the markets in fishery and aquaculture products, amending Council Regulations (EC) No 1184/2006 and (EC) No 1224/2009 and repealing Council Regulation (EC) No 104/2000 Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No 1418/2013 of 17	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry 3. Final Declaration of the Agriculture and Forestry Council	Turkey; for the provision and control of this goal, establishing a system in line with EU for the recognition of the producer organizations by the competent body		

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			December 2013 concerning production and marketing plans pursuant to Regulation (EU) No 1379/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council on the common organisation of the markets in fishery and aquaculture products Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No 1419/2013 of 17 December 2013 concerning the recognition of producer organisations and inter- branch organisations, the extension of the rules of producer organisations and inter-branch organisations and the publication of trigger prices as provided for by Regulation (EU) No 1379/2013 of the				

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			European Parliament and of the Council on the common organisation of the markets in fishery and aquaculture products Council Regulation (EC) No 2406/96 of 26 November 1996 laying down common marketing standards for certain fishery products Commission Recommendation 2014/117 of 3 March 2014 on the establishment and implementation of the Production and Marketing Plans pursuant to Regulation (EU) No 1379/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council				

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible /Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
INST	TITUTIONAL SET	Γ-UP AND OTHER WO	RK				
1.	13- Fisheries	Establishing an Internet Based (satellite aided) Centre (UBSİBİM) for Monitoring Fish reserves, Ecosystem and the Activities of Fisheries	Regulation (EU) No 1380/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 11 December 2013 on the Common Fisheries Policy, amending Council Regulations (EC) No 1954/2003 and (EC) No 1224/2009 and repealing Council Regulations (EC) No 2371/2002 and (EC) No 639/2004 and Council Decision 2004/585/EC	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	Monitoring constantly of the fish reserves by UBSİBİM (particularly of migrating pelagic fishes), collecting data and evaluating the data, within the framework of the alignment with Common Fisheries Policy	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2021
2.	13- Fisheries	Establishing Scientific Advisory Committee on Fisheries	Regulation (EU) No 1380/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 11 December 2013 on the Common Fisheries Policy, amending Council Regulations (EC) No 1954/2003 and (EC) No 1224/2009 and repealing Council Regulations (EC)	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	Making scientific recommendations on the management of the fisheries by means of a structure (pre-STECF) similar to EU Scientific, Technical and Economic Committee for Fisheries (STECF), within the framework of alignment	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2022

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible /Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			No 2371/2002 and (EC) No 639/2004 and Council Decision 2004/585/EC Commission Decision of 25 February 2016 setting up a Scientific, Technical and Economic Committee for Fisheries, published in the Official Journal No 2016/C 74/05		with Common Fisheries Policy		
3.	13- Fisheries	Preparing a strategy paper for the fisheries management			Aligning with the EU Common Fisheries Policy (CFP)	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023

14- TRANSPORT POLICY

Screening Report for Chapter 14 on Transport Policy has not been officially communicated to Turkey. The Chapter is one of the 8 chapters that are blocked due to the Council Decision requiring full implementation of the Additional Protocol.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
LEG	AL ARRANGEME	NTS					
1.	14- Transport Policy	By-law on Combined Transport of Goods	Council Directive 92/106/EEC of 7 December 1992 on the establishment of common rules for certain types of combined transport of goods between Member States	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program 11th Development Plan 2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Transport and Infrastructure	Establishing and ensuring dissemination of integrated, balanced, environment-friendly, safe and sustainable transport system by laying down rules, principles and procedures on combined transport activities in Turkey	Ministry of Transport and Infrastructure	2021
2.	14- Transport Policy	Instruction/By-law Laying Down Requirements on Air- Ground Voice Channel Spacing	Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No 1079/2012 of 16 November 2012 laying down Requirements for Voice Channels Spacing for the Single European Sky	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Directorate General of Civil Aviation	Regulating the requirements for airground voice channel spacing	Ministry of Transport and Infrastructure	2021
3.	14- Transport Policy	Instruction/By-law Laying Down Requirements for the Quality of Aeronautical Data and Aeronautical Information	Commission Regulation (EU) No 73/2010 of 26 January 2010 laying down requirements on the quality of aeronautical data and aeronautical information	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Directorate General of Civil Aviation	Regulating the requirements for the quality of aeronautical data and aeronautical information	Ministry of Transport and Infrastructure	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			for the single European sky Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No 1029/2014 of 26 September 2014 amending Regulation (EU) No 73/2010 of 26 January 2010 laying down requirements on the quality of aeronautical data and aeronautical information for the single European sky				
4.	14- Transport Policy	Instruction/By-law laying down requirements for the coordinated allocation and use of mode S interrogator codes	Commission Regulation (EC) No 262/2009 of 30 March 2009 laying down requirements for the coordinated allocation and use of Mode S interrogator codes for the single European sky Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) 2016/2345 of 14 December 2016 amending Regulation	Plan of the Directorate General of Civil Aviation	Regulating the requirements for the coordinated allocation and use of Mode S interrogator codes	Ministry of Transport and Infrastructure	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			(EC) No 262/2009 and Implementing Regulation (EU) No 1079/2012 as regards references to ICAO provisions				
5.	14- Transport Policy	By-law on Railway Interoperability	Directive (EU) 2016/797 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 11 May 2016 on the interoperability of the rail system within the European Union	11th Development Plan 2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Transport and Infrastructure	Placing on the market, putting into service and operating of interoperability components and subsystems	Ministry of Transport and Infrastructure	2022
6.	14- Transport Policy	Instruction/By-law laying down Requirements on Aircraft Identification for Surveillance	r 0 - 0	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Directorate General of Civil Aviation	Regulating the requirements on aircraft identification for surveillance	Ministry of Transport and Infrastructure	2022
7.	14- Transport Policy	Instruction/By-law laying down Requirements for the Performance and the Interoperability of Surveillance	Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No 1207/2011 of 22 November 2011 laying down requirements for the performance and the interoperability of	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Directorate General of Civil Aviation	Regulating the requirements for the performance and the interoperability of surveillance	Ministry of Transport and Infrastructure	2022

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			surveillance for the single European sky Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No 1028/2014 of 26 September 2014 amending Implementing Regulation (EU) No 1207/2011 of 22 November 2011 laying down requirements for the performance and the interoperability of surveillance for the single European sky Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No 2017/386 of 6 March 2017 amending Implementing Regulation (EU) No 1207/2011 of 22 November 2011 laying down requirements for the performance and the interoperability of surveillance for the single European sky				

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible /Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementatio n of the Measure
INST	ΓΙΤUTIONAL SET-	UP AND OTHER WOR	K				
1.	14- Transport Policy	2021-2030 Strategy Paper on Road Transport Safety and "2021-2023 "Vision 2023" Road Transport Safety Action Plan	Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, "Europe on the Move" (COM (2018) 293) Commission Staff Working Document (SWD (2019) 283 final) on "EU Road Safety Policy Framework 2021-2030 - Next steps towards Vision Zero"	11th Development Plan Ministry of Interior Road Transport Safety Implementation Policy Paper (2017) Road Transport Safety Strategy and Action Plan (2011-2020)	Establishing a road transport safety system by 2050 in order to achieve the goal of "Zero Deaths" and reducing road fatality and serious injury rates almost by 50% until 2030 in line with the "Vision Zero" and "Safe Systems" approaches	Ministry of Interior	2021
2.	14- Transport Policy	Re-evaluation of the Turkish Railway Legislation within the scope of alignment with the European Union		11th Development Plan The 2020 Presidential Annual Program	Revising the level of alignment of the legislation published during the liberalisation process with the EU acquis, as well as identifying deficiencies and adopting necessary legislation, including draft Railway Law, within this framework with a view to enhancing competitiveness and	Ministry of Transport and Infrastructur e	2022

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible /Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementatio n of the Measure
					completing the liberalisation process of Turkish railway sector in line with the European Union		
3.		Analysing transport legislation in Turkey in the process of alignment with the EU legislation		-	Based on an overall evaluation of the current state in the EU alignment process, comparing and identifying differences between Turkish transport legislation and EU acquis and preparing a Strategy Document and Action Plan on the legal arrangements needed in this respect	Ministry of Transport and Infrastructur e	2023

15- ENERGY

Screening Report for Chapter 15 on Energy has not been officially communicated to Turkey. This Chapter is one of those unilaterally blocked by the Greek Cypriot Administration of Southern Cyprus.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
LEGA	L ARRANGEM	ENTS					
1.	15- Energy	Law on Liability in the Field of Nuclear Energy	Council Decision 2004/294/EC of 8 March 2004 authorising the Member States which are Contracting Parties to the Paris Convention of 29 July 1960 on Third Party Liability in the Field of Nuclear Energy to ratify, in the interest of the European Community, the Protocol amending that Convention, or to accede to it	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources	Complying with the provisions of 2004 Protocol to Amend the Paris Convention on third party liability in the field of nuclear energy	Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources	2021
2.	15- Energy	Law on the Ratification of Protocol of 12 February 2004 amending the Paris Convention on Third- Party Liability in the Field of Nuclear Energy	Council Decision 2004/294/EC of 8 March 2004 authorising the Member States which are Contracting Parties to the Paris Convention of 29 July 1960 on Third Party Liability in the Field of Nuclear Energy to ratify, in the interest of the European Community, the Protocol amending that Convention, or to accede to it	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources	Complying with the provisions of 2004 Protocol to Amend the Paris Convention on third party liability in the field of nuclear energy	Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources	2021
3.	15- Energy	Law on the Ratification of Turkey's Participation to the Joint Convention on the Safety of Spent Fuel	Joint Convention on the Safety of Spent Fuel Management and on the Safety of Radioactive Waste Management	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources	Complying with the provisions of the Joint Convention concerning spent	Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
		Management and on the Safety of Radioactive Waste Management			fuel and radioactive waste		
4.	15- Energy	By-Law on Authorisation of Nuclear Installations	Council Directive 2014/87/Euratom of 8 July 2014 amending Directive 2009/71/Euratom establishing a Community framework for the nuclear safety of nuclear installations		Determining the procedures and principles regarding regulatory control of activities and their authorisations to establish and verify that activities regarding nuclear installations are conducted in line with radiation protection, safety and security principles	Nuclear Regulatory Authority	2021
5.	15- Energy	By-Law on Authorisation of Radiation Facilities and Radiation Practices	Council Directive 2013/59/Euratom of 5 December 2013 laying down basic safety standards for protection against the dangers arising from exposure to ionising radiation, and repealing Directives 89/618/Euratom, 90/641/Euratom,		Laying down procedures and principles on the regulatory control and authorisation of activities in order to establish and verify that any	Nuclear Regulatory Authority	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			96/29/Euratom, 97/43/Euratom and 2003/122/Euratom		activity related to radiation facilities and radiation practices is carried out in line with radiation protection, safety and security principles		
6.	15- Energy	Legislation on National Energy Efficiency Financing Mechanism	Directive (EU) 2018/2002 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 11 December 2018 amending Directive 2012/27/EU on energy efficiency	National Energy Efficiency Action Plan	Ensuring financing mechanisms for energy efficiency and increasing energy efficiency investments	Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources	2021
7.	15- Energy	By-law Amending the By-law on Energy Performance of Buildings	Directive 2010/31/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 19 May 2010 on the energy performance of buildings		Complying with the "Nearly Zero- Energy Building (NZEB)" standards on all newly constructed buildings and retrofitting of existing buildings	Ministry of Environment and Urbanization	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
8.9	15- Energy	By-law on Eco-design Requirements for Energy-related Products	Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 21 October 2009 establishing a framework for the setting of eco-design requirements for energy-related products	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
9.	15- Energy	By-law on Setting a Framework for Energy Labelling	Regulation (EU) 2017/1369 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 4 July 2017 setting a framework for energy labelling and repealing Directive 2010/30/EU	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
10.	15- Energy	By-law on Labelling of Tyres With Respect to Fuel Efficiency and Other Parameters	Regulation (EU) 2020/740 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 25 May 2020 on the labelling of tyres with respect to fuel efficiency and other parameters, amending Regulation (EU) 2017/1369 and repealing Regulation (EC) No 1222/2009		Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

 $^{^{\}rm 9}$ The measures between 8-35 are also referred to in Chapter 1 on Free Movement of Goods.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
11.	15- Energy	Communiqué on Energy Labelling of Electronic Displays	Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/2013 of 11 March 2019 supplementing Regulation (EU) 2017/1369 of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to energy labelling of electronic displays and repealing Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 1062/2010	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
12.	15- Energy	Communiqué on Energy Labelling of Refrigerating Appliances	Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/2016 of 11 March 2019 supplementing Regulation (EU) 2017/1369 of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to energy labelling of refrigerating appliances and repealing Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 1060/2010	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
13.	15- Energy	Communiqué on Energy Labelling of Refrigerating Appliances with a Direct Sales Function	Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/2018 of 11 March 2019 supplementing Regulation (EU) 2017/1369 of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to energy labelling of refrigerating appliances with a direct sales function	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
14.	15- Energy	Communiqué on Energy Labelling of Light Sources	Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/2015 of 11 March 2019 supplementing Regulation (EU) 2017/1369 of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to energy labelling of light sources and repealing Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 874/2012	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
15.	15- Energy	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Solid Fuel Local Space Heaters	Commission Regulation (EU) 2015/1185 of 24 April 2015 implementing Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to ecodesign requirements for solid fuel local space heaters	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
16.	15- Energy	Communiqué on Energy Labelling of Solid Fuel Boilers and Packages of a Solid Fuel Boiler, Supplementary Heaters, Temperature Controls and Solar Devices	Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/1187 of 27 April 2015 supplementing Directive 2010/30/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to energy labelling of solid fuel boilers and packages of a solid fuel boiler, supplementary heaters, temperature controls and solar devices	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
17.	15- Energy	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Solid Fuel Boilers	Commission Regulation (EU) 2015/1189 of 28 April 2015 implementing Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to ecodesign requirements for solid fuel boilers	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
18.	15- Energy	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Energy-related Products, with regard to Ecodesign Requirements for Air Heating Products, Cooling Products, High Temperature Process Chillers and Fan Coil Units	Commission Regulation (EU) 2016/2281 of 30 November 2016 implementing Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council establishing a framework for the setting of ecodesign requirements for energy-related products, with regard to ecodesign requirements for air heating products, cooling products, high temperature process chillers and fan coil units	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
19.	15- Energy	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Ventilation Units	Commission Regulation (EU) No 1253/2014 of 7 July 2014 implementing Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to ecodesign requirements for ventilation units	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
20.	15- Energy	Communiqué on Energy Labelling of Residential Ventilation Units	Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 1254/2014 of 11 July 2014 supplementing Directive 2010/30/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to energy labelling of residential ventilation units	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
21.	15- Energy	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Local Space Heaters	Commission Regulation (EU) 2015/1188 of 28 April 2015 implementing Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to ecodesign requirements for local space heaters	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
22.	15- Energy	Communiqué on Energy Labelling of Local Space Heaters	Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/1186 of 24 April 2015 supplementing Directive 2010/30/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to the energy labelling of local space heaters	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
23.	15- Energy	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Household Dishwashers	Commission Regulation (EU) 2019/2022 of 1 October 2019 laying down ecodesign requirements for household dishwashers pursuant to Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council amending Commission Regulation (EC) No 1275/2008 and repealing Commission Regulation (EU) No 1016/2010	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
24.	15- Energy	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Household Washing Machines and Household Washer- dryers	Commission Regulation (EU) 2019/2023 of 1 October 2019 laying down ecodesign requirements for household washing machines and household washer-dryers pursuant to Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council, amending Commission	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Regulation (EC) No 1275/2008 and repealing Commission Regulation (EU) No 1015/2010				
25.	15- Energy	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Electronic Displays	Commission Regulation (EU) 2019/2021 of 1 October 2019 laying down ecodesign requirements for electronic displays pursuant to Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council, amending Commission Regulation (EC) No 1275/2008 and repealing Commission Regulation (EC) No 642/2009	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
26.	15- Energy	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Refrigerating Appliances	Commission Regulation (EU) 2019/2019 of 1 October 2019 laying down ecodesign requirements for refrigerating appliances pursuant to Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council and repealing Commission Regulation (EC) No 643/2009	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
27.	15- Energy	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Refrigerating Appliances with a Direct Sales Function	Commission Regulation (EU) 2019/2024 of 1 October 2019 laying down ecodesign requirements for refrigerating appliances with a direct sales function pursuant to Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
28.	15- Energy	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Light Sources and Separate Control Gears	Commission Regulation (EU) 2019/2020 of 1 October 2019 laying down ecodesign requirements for light sources and separate control gears pursuant to Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council and repealing Commission Regulations (EC) No 244/2009, (EC) No 245/2009 and (EU) No 1194/2012	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
29.	15- Energy	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Standby and Off Mode Electric Power Consumption of Electrical and Electronic	Commission Regulation (EC) No 1275/2008 of 17 December 2008 implementing Directive 2005/32/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to ecodesign requirements for standby and off mode electric	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
		Household and Office Equipment	power consumption of electrical and electronic household and office equipment				
30.	15- Energy	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Computers and Computer Servers	Commission Regulation (EU) No 617/2013 of 26 June 2013 implementing Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to ecodesign requirements for computers and computer servers	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
31.	15- Energy	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Servers and Data Storage Products	Commission Regulation (EU) 2019/424 of 15 March 2019 laying down ecodesign requirements for servers and data storage products pursuant to Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council and amending Commission Regulation (EU) No 617/2013	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
32.	15- Energy	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for	Commission Regulation (EU) 2019/1781 of 1 October 2019 laying down ecodesign requirements for electric motors and variable speed drives	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
		Electric Motors and Variable Speed Drives	pursuant to Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council, amending Regulation (EC) No 641/2009 with regard to ecodesign requirements for glandless standalone circulators and glandless circulators integrated in products and repealing Commission Regulation (EC) No 640/2009	National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)			
33.	15- Energy	Communiqué on Ecodesign Requirements for Welding Equipment	Commission Regulation (EU) 2019/1784 of 1 October 2019 laying down ecodesign requirements for welding equipment pursuant to Directive 2009/125/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021
34.	15- Energy	Communiqué on Energy Labelling of Household Dishwashers	Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/2017 of 11 March 2019 supplementing Regulation (EU) 2017/1369 of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to energy labelling of household dishwashers and	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			repealing Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 1059/2010				
35.	15- Energy	Communiqué on Energy Labelling of Household Washing Machines and Household Washer- dryers	Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/2014 of 11 March 2019 supplementing Regulation (EU) 2017/1369 of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to energy labelling of household washing machines and household washer-dryers and repealing Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 1061/2010 and Commission Directive 96/60/EC	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program National Energy Efficiency Action Plan (2017-2023)	Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

17- ECONOMIC AND MONETARY POLICY

Chapter 17 on Economic and Monetary Policy was opened to accession negotiations on 14 December 2007 during the Presidency of Luxembourg. Regarding this chapter, there are 2 technical closing benchmarks:

- 1. Turkey aligns its legislative framework to ensure the independence of the Central Bank. Alignment process includes the prohibition of financing of the public sector by the central banks, prohibition of privileged access to financial institutions by the public sector, ensuring the integration of its central bank into the ESCB and compatibility of the Central Bank's objectives with the objectives of the ESCB.
- 2. Turkey aligns its legislative framework in order to ensure compliance with requirements for national budgetary frameworks as laid down in Council Directive 2011/85/EU.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
INST	FITUTIONAL SET-UP A	AND OTHER WORK					
1.	17- Economic and Monetary Policy	Making arrangements in the fields of logistics and storage in order to reduce the pressure of food prices on inflation, and establishing the institutional infrastructure of regional- and product-based planning in agriculture	Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union Protocol (No 13) on the Convergence Criteria	11th Development Plan	Reducing the pressure of food prices on inflation	Ministry of Trade Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023

18-STATISTICS

Chapter 18 on Statistics was opened to accession negotiations on 26 June 2007 during the German Presidency. Regarding this chapter, there are 2 technical closing benchmarks:

- 1. Turkey submits to the Commission (Eurostat) a detailed description on progress made in setting up the farm register, including a timetable and means for its completion. Moreover, Turkey submits a detailed description of the foreseen methodology and organisational set-up to be used for the collection of statistics on crop production statistics, livestock, meat production, milk production, dairy products and agro-monetary statistics as well as livestock, meat production, milk production and diary statistics, showing substantial progress towards the compliance with the acquis.
- 2. Turkey submits to the Commission (Eurostat) key national accounts indicators (GDP and GNI and main components) in accordance with ESA 95 (ESA 2010) together with a detailed description of the methodology used.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
INST	TITUTIONAL SET-UP A	AND OTHER WORK					
1.	18-Statistics	Strategy to Improve the Turkish Agricultural Statistics System ¹⁰	Regulation (EU) 2018/1091 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 18 July 2018 on integrated farm statistics and repealing Regulations (EC) No 1166/2008 and (EU) No 1337/2011	11th Development Plan 2.5.2.2. Strategic Management in Public Sector 2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	Contributing to the fulfilment of the closing benchmark specified for the agricultural statistics	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2021
2.	18-Statistics	Receiving data used in the production of statistics on the immigration (inward migration), emigration (outward migration), foreign population and foreign-born population within the scope of international	Regulation (EC) No 862/2007 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 11 July 2007 on Community statistics on migration and international protection and repealing Council Regulation (EEC) No 311/76 on the	Official Statistics Programme (2017- 2021)	Facilitating data exchange among public institutions and increasing the level of alignment in the field of migration statistics through administrative records	Turkish Statistical Institute Ministry of Interior Directorate General of Migration Management	2023

Strategy to Improve the Turkish Agricultural Statistics System is also referred to in Chapter 11 on Agriculture and Rural Development.
124

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
		migration statistics via web services provided by the Göç- Net system, in accordance with the signed protocol	compilation of statistics on foreign workers				

19- SOCIAL POLICY AND EMPLOYMENT

Screening Report for Chapter 19 on Social Policy and Employment was communicated to Turkey on 19 January 2007 by the German Presidency. Regarding this chapter, there are 2 technical opening benchmarks:

- 1. It is ensured that full trade union rights are respected in line with EU standards and the relevant ILO Conventions, in particular as regards the right to organise, the right to strike and the right to bargain collectively. To this effect, Turkey needs to eliminate existing restrictions and adopt fully revised legislation in this area for both private and public sectors.
- 2. The Commission is provided with an action plan for the gradual implementation and enforcement throughout the country of the acquis (as necessary) in each area covered by this Chapter for the benefit of the entire workforce including undeclared workers. The Action Plan includes, a) the economic and social analysis on undeclared work in Turkey, b) a timetable for the envisaged measures, c) identification of the allocated resources, d) identification of the relevant institutions and social parties involved (*This Action Plan was submitted to the European Commission on 30 April 2010*).

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure					
LEC	LEGAL ARRANGEMENTS											
1.		Amending the Maritime Labour Law (OG: 29.04.1967/12586)	Council Directive 1999/63/EC of 21 June 1999 concerning the Agreement on the organisation of working time of seafarers concluded by the European Community Shipowners' Association (ECSA) and the Federation of Transport Workers' Unions in the European Union (FST) Council Directive 2009/13/EC of 16 February 2009 implementing the Agreement concluded by the European Community Shipowners' Associations (ECSA) and the European Transport Workers' Federation (ETF) on the Maritime Labour Convention, 2006, and amending Directive 1999/63/EC		Amending the Maritime Labour Law for the implementation of the ILO Maritime Labour Convention following the enactment of the Law on its ratification	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services Ministry of Transport and Infrastructure Ministry of Health	2021					
2.	19- Social Policy and Employment	By-law on Principles and Procedures regarding the Exercise of the	Directive (EU) 2019/1158 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 June 2019 on worklife balance for parents and	11th Development Plan	Setting out procedures and principles with respect to exercise of the right to part-time working granted to the	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2021					

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
		Right to Part Time Working	carers and repealing Council Directive 2010/18/EU Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, "A Union of Equality: Gender Equality Strategy 2020-2025" (COM/2020/152 final)		parents who are civil servants in accordance with the Additional Clause 43 added to the Law No. 657 in 2016		
3.	19- Social Policy and Employment	Amending the By- law on the Health and Safety Requirements for the Use of Work Equipment	Directive 2009/104/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 September 2009 concerning the minimum safety and health requirements for the use of work equipment by workers at work (second individual Directive within the meaning of Article 16(1) of Directive 89/391/EEC)		Updating the health and safety requirements for the work equipment based on the amendments and removal of the standards referred to in the By-law and needs in line with the feedback received from the field	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2021
4.	19- Social Policy and Employment	By-law on Procedures and Principles of Employment of Children Working	Council Directive 94/33/EC of 22 June 1994 on the protection of young people at work		Regulating the procedures and principles regarding the activities to be carried out by children working	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
		in Art, Culture and Advertisement Activities			in art, culture and advertisement activities, their working time, rest period and payment		
5.	19- Social Policy and Employment	Harmonising the General Public Health Law and the Labour Law with regard to the working age of children	Council Directive 94/33/EC of 22 June 1994 on the protection of young people at work Commission Staff Working Document Accompanying Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, "Establishing a European Pillar of Social Rights" (COM/2017/0250 final) UN Convention on the Rights of the Child	Action Plan for the National Programme on the Elimination of Child Labour (2017-2023)	Eliminating the difference between the two laws regarding the working age of children.	Ministry of Health Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2023
6.	19- Social Policy and Employment	Amending the By- law on Procedures and Principles of Employment of Children and Young Workers	Council Directive 94/33/EC of 22 June 1994 on the protection of young people at work ILO Convention No. 182 on Worst Forms of Child Labour	Action Plan for the National Programme on the Elimination of Child Labour (2017-2023)	Clearly prohibiting paid child labour in seasonal agricultural work, except for family work in agriculture	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Commission Staff Working Document Accompanying Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, "Establishing a European Pillar of Social Rights" (COM/2017/0250 final) UN Convention on the Rights of the Child				
7.	19- Social Policy and Employment	Amending the By- law on Procedures and Principles of Employment of Children and Young Workers	Council Directive 94/33/EC of 22 June 1994 on the protection of young people at work ILO Convention No. 182 on Worst Forms of Child Labour Commission Staff Working Document Accompanying Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, "Establishing a	Action Plan for the National Programme on the Elimination of Child Labour (2017-2023)	Determining the procedures and principles for ensuring the withdrawal of children from work environment in cases of employment in activities inappropriate to their age, gender or tasks	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			European Pillar of Social Rights" (COM/2017/0250 final) UN Convention on the Rights of the Child				
8.	19- Social Policy and Employment	By-law on Child Adoption	Commission Staff Working Document Accompanying Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, "Establishing a European Pillar of Social Rights" (COM/2017/0250 final) UN Convention on the Rights of the Child	11th Development Plan 2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services Economic Reform Programme 2020- 2022	Having children benefit from family oriented services rather than institutional care	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2023
9.	19- Social Policy and Employment	By-law on Care Services	Commission Staff Working Document Accompanying Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, "Establishing a European Pillar of Social Rights" (COM/2017/0250 final)	11th Development Plan	Amending the By-law on Children Homes of General Directorate for Social Services and Child Protection (OG: 07.01.1999 /23576) and By-law on the Establishment and Operation of Orphanages (OG:	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2023

N	0	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
				UN Convention on the Rights of the Child		13.11.1995/22462) in order to modernize institutional care services for children		

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
INST	TITUTIONAL SET	T-UP AND OTHER WO	RK				
1.	19- Social Policy and Employment	Increasing the access of social assistance beneficiaries to public services	Commission Staff Working Document Accompanying Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, "Establishing a European Pillar of Social Rights" (COM/2017/0250 final)	New Economy Programme 2021- 2023	Increasing the access of social assistance beneficiaries to social services and other public services with a supply-oriented service approach	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2021
2.	19- Social Policy and Employment	Procedures and Principles on Tactile Walking Surface Application	Council Decision of 26 November 2009 concerning the conclusion, by the European Community, of the United Nations Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Commission Staff Working Document Accompanying Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, "Establishing a	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	Determining procedures and principles to ensure that the tactile surfaces used indoors and outdoor spaces are applied in accordance with the standards for a safe and comfortable use	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	()hiective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			European Pillar of Social Rights" (COM/2017/0250 final) Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, European Disability Strategy 2010-2020, "A Renewed Commitment to a Barrier-Free Europe" (COM/2010/0636 final)				
3.	19- Social Policy and Employment	Accessibility of Information and Communication Technologies	Council Decision of 26 November 2009 concerning the conclusion, by the European Community, of the United Nations Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union Directive (EU) 2016/2102 of the European Parliament and of	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	Increasing the accessibility of information and communication technologies for the disabled and expanding the scope of legislation in practice for the accessibility of information and communication	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			the Council of 26 October 2016 on the accessibility of the websites and mobile applications of public sector bodies Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, European Disability Strategy 2010-2020, "A Renewed Commitment to a Barrier-Free Europe" (COM/2010/0636 final) Commission Staff Working Document Accompanying Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, "Establishing a European Pillar of Social Rights" (COM/2017/0250 final)		technologies as well as increasing public awareness on the rights and responsibilities in this field, within the scope of implementation of the Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities		

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
4.	19- Social Policy and Employment	Increasing Social Inclusion for People with Mental / Psychological Disabilities	Council Decision of 26 November 2009 concerning the conclusion, by the European Community, of the United Nations Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, European Disability Strategy 2010-2020, "A Renewed Commitment to a Barrier-Free Europe" (COM/2010/0636 final)	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	Making contributions to the efforts to provide social inclusion for people with psychological / mental disabilities, as well as providing adequate community-based care for individuals with psychological/mental disabilities by increasing the comprehensive policy making, evidence-based decision-making and planning skills of central and provincial organizations, within the scope of the Social Inclusion Project for People with Mental/Psychological Disabilities and in line with Articles 12, 25 and 26 of United Nations Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
5.	19- Social Policy and Employment	Expanding family- friendly services and practices in social policies and family- oriented planning of the general budget and national action plans	Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union European Social Charter	11th Development Plan	Raising awareness on family friendly policies to protect and strengthen the family, promoting family-friendly services and practices, and family-oriented planning of actions to be included in budget executions and national action plans	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2023
6.	19- Social Policy and Employment	Barrier Free Vision Document and National Action Plan on Rights of the Persons with Disabilities ¹¹	United Nations Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Commission Staff Working Document Accompanying Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, Establishing a European Pillar of Social Rights (COM/2017/0250 final)	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	Ensuring and promoting full and equal enjoyment by persons with disabilities of human rights and fundamental freedoms and strengthening respect to human honour, in line with the Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2023

¹¹ Barrier Free Vision Document and National Action Plan on Rights of the Persons with Disabilities is also included in the Chapter 23 on Justice and Fundamental Rights.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union Council Decision of 26 November 2009 concerning the conclusion, by the European Community, of the United Nations Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, European Disability Strategy 2010-2020, "A Renewed Commitment to a Barrier-Free Europe" (COM/2010/0636 final)				
7.	19- Social Policy and Employment	Spreading of Daytime Service Model	Council Decision of 26 November 2009 concerning the conclusion, by the European Community, of the United Nations Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities	11th Development Plan	Spreading daytime services to promote community-based rehabilitation that will reduce the need for institutional care and increase the participation of families in	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Commission Staff Working Document Accompanying Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, "Establishing a European Pillar of Social Rights" (COM/2017/0250 final) Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, European Disability Strategy 2010-2020, "A Renewed Commitment to a Barrier-Free Europe" (COM/2010/0636 final)		employment with a view to ensuring psycho-social well-being and active participation of the disabled and elderly people in social life		
8.	19- Social Policy and Employment	National Strategy for Social Inclusion	Commission Staff Working Document Accompanying Communication from the		Enhancing participation of disadvantaged persons	Ministry of Family, Labour	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, "Establishing a European Pillar of Social Rights" (COM/2017/0250 final)		into economic and social life	and Social Services	
9.	19- Social Policy and Employment	Strategy and Action Plan on Anti- Discrimination	Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union Commission Staff Working Document Accompanying Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, "Establishing a European Pillar of Social Rights" (COM/2017/0250 final)		Increasing the coverage of anti-discrimination legislation with regard to implementation and raising public awareness on the rights and responsibilities in this area	Human Rights and Equality Institution of Turkey	2023
10.	19- Social Policy and Employment	Empowerment of Women through Cooperatives	Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union Communication from the Commission to the Council and the European Parliament, the	11th Development Plan	Carrying out scientific and technical studies on capacity building and awareness raising, increasing cooperation and cooperatives system	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of Regions on the promotion of co-operative societies in Europe (COM/2004/0018 final) Communication from The Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, "A Union of Equality: Gender Equality Strategy 2020-2025" (COM/2020/152 final)	Programme (2019-2021)	for women who have the potential to establish a cooperative/become a cooperative partner, men and women who are cooperative partners, central and provincial / district directorates of the beneficiary and cobeneficiary institutions, relevant public institutions, CSOs, professional organizations, trade unions and universities, within the framework of the Project on the Empowerment of Women through Cooperatives which aims at strengthening, ensuring sustainability, developing institutional capacity as well as increasing visibility and generality of women's cooperatives		

20- ENTERPRISE AND INDUSTRIAL POLICY

Chapter 20 on Enterprise and Industrial Policy was opened to accession negotiations on 29 March 2007 during the German Presidency. Regarding this chapter, there is 1 technical closing benchmark:

1. Turkey provides the Commission with a revised comprehensive industrial policy strategy aiming at strengthening Turkey's industrial competitiveness. This strategy addresses in some detail all key sectors of industry, including all those referred to in the 2003 Industrial Strategy, inter alia shipbuilding, railway- and food industry. It is built on a thorough evaluation of past policy performance and a solid analysis of the competitiveness of industries concerned. It enables an improved policy coordination and coherence and lead to better policy ownership and improved policy implementation. The strategy also takes account of the two sectoral strategy documents already under preparation (for the steel and the automotive supply industry) as well as of any future strategic sectoral documents, and the results of Turkey's sectoral technical committees including the ones on motor vehicles and textiles sectors. (The Strategy entered into force upon its publication in the Official Gazette No. 27828 (bis) of January 27, 2011. The translation of the document was submitted to the EU on 2 March 2011. In a letter dated 14 April 2011 by the European Commission, it was stated that the technical closing benchmark of the chapter was met, but the final decision would be made by the EU Council.)

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
INS	TITUTIONAL S	ET-UP AND OTHER W	ORK				
1.	20- Enterprise and Industrial Policy	Strengthening and restructuring the cooperative enterprise model	Communication from the Commission to the Council and the European Parliament, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of Regions on the promotion of cooperative societies in Europe (COM/2004/0018 final)	11th Development Plan 2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Trade	Ensuring transition to a structure in which cooperatives are qualified as productive, efficient and sustainable economic entrepreneurial initiatives and in line with the EU practices	Ministry of Trade	2023

22- REGIONAL POLICY AND COORDINATION OF STRUCTURAL INSTRUMENTS

Chapter on Regional Policy and Coordination of Structural Instruments was opened to accession negotiations on 5 November 2013 during the Lithuanian Presidency. Regarding this chapter, there are 6 technical closing benchmarks:

- 1. Turkey demonstrates a satisfactory performance of the indirect management system under Instrument for Pre-accession (IPA) in the regional development and human resources policy areas leading to the conferral of management of EU pre-accession funds without ex-ante controls.
- 2. Turkey adopts an institutional set-up for the implementation of EU Cohesion Policy (Managing Authorities, Audit Authorities and Intermediate Bodies etc.).
- 3. Turkey submits to the Commission a capacity building plan for EU Cohesion Policy (covering actions at national, regional and local levels and staff retainment policy).
- 4. Turkey designates and demonstrates the efficient functioning of its national policy leading to the strengthening of its economic, social and territorial cohesion.
- 5. Turkey submits to the Commission drafts of national strategic planning document and operational programmes under EU Cohesion Policy which complement Turkey's own policy including actions at the regional and local levels.
- 6. Turkey designs and completes the set-up of its Management Information System (MIS) based on a through needs assessment and an analysis of good practice across the European Union.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
LEG	AL ARRANGEMENTS						
1.	22- Regional Policy and Coordination of Structural Instruments	Amending the By-law on Establishment, Duties and Operation of Provincial Planning and Coordination Directorates (OG: 13.07.1988/1987 1)	Regulation (EU) No 1303/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 17 December 2013 laying down common provisions on the European Regional Development Fund, the European Social Fund, the Cohesion Fund, the European Agricultural Fund for Rural Development and the European Maritime and Fisheries Fund and laying down general provisions on the European Regional Development Fund, the European Social Fund, the European Social Fund, the Cohesion Fund and the European Maritime and Fisheries Fund and repealing Council Regulation (EC) No 1083/2006		Enhancing institutional capacity and increasing skilled staff, in charge of the local investment planning and implementation of plans and programmes in provinces	Ministry of Interior	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
INS	TITUTIONAL SET-U	JP AND OTHER WORK					
1.	22- Regional Policy and Coordination of Structural Instruments	Making necessary arrangements for the protection and strengthening of the institutional capacities of the institutions that will carry out the task of operating structure in the 3rd and 4th windows in the IPA III period	Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No 447/2014 of 2 May 2014 on the specific rules for implementing Regulation (EU) No 231/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council establishing an Instrument for Preaccession assistance (IPA II)		Within the scope of the first technical closing benchmark of Chapter 22, protecting and strengthening the institutional capacities of the institutions that will act as Program Authority within the scope of the 3rd and 4th Windows (Green Agenda and Sustainable Connectivity and Competitive and Inclusive Growth) of the IPA III period	Ministry of Treasury and Finance	2022
2.	22- Regional Policy and Coordination of Structural Instruments	Capacity Building on Smart Specialization Strategies	Regulation (EU) No 1303/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 17 December 2013 laying down common provisions on the European Regional Development Fund, the European Social Fund, the		Increasing the capacity of national and regional actors and thereby contributing to regional development and the preparatory studies for the use of cohesion policy funds in order to design and implement effective	Ministry of Industry and Technology	2022

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Cohesion Fund, the European Agricultural Fund for Rural Development and the European Maritime and Fisheries Fund and laying down general provisions on the European Regional Development Fund, the European Social Fund, the Cohesion Fund and the European Maritime and Fisheries Fund and repealing Council Regulation (EC) No 1083/2006		smart specialization strategies in Turkey		

23- JUDICIARY AND FUNDAMENTAL RIGHTS

Screening Report for Chapter 23 on Judiciary and Fundamental Rights has not been officially communicated to Turkey. Chapter is one of those chapters unilaterally blocked by the Southern Cypriot Greek Administration.

<u> JUDICIARY</u>

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
LEGA	L ARRANGEME	NTS					
1.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Making Legal Arrangements and Taking Measures to Improve the Independence and Impartiality of the Judiciary	European Convention on Human Rights (Article 6) Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union (Article 47) Treaty on European Union (Article 19) Rule of Law Checklist, Adopted by the Venice Commission (CDL-AD(2016)007) Report on Judicial Appointments, Adopted by the Venice Commission (CDL-AD(2007)028) Report on the Independence of the Judicial System Part I: The Independence of Judges, Adopted by the Venice	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 2: Improving Independence, Impartiality and Transparency of the Judiciary Objective 2.1	With a view to improving independence and impartiality of the judiciary, the improvement of the system for appointment, transfer and promotion of judges and public prosecutors through objective criteria based on merits will be ensured. In this framework: • Geographical guarantee will be introduced for the judges and public prosecutors with a certain professional seniority. • Promotion system of the judges and public prosecutors will be restructured taking account of qualifications and performance.	Ministry of Justice	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Commission (CDL-AD(2010)004) Report on European Standards as regards the Independence of the Judicial System: Part II - the Prosecution Service, Adopted by the Venice Commission (CDL-AD(2010)040) Recommendation CM/Rec(2010)12 of the Committee of Ministers to Member States on Judges: Independence, Efficiency and Responsibilities (CM/Rec(2010)12) Opinion No 1 (2001) of the Consultative Council of European Judges for the Attention of the Committee of Ministers of Council of Europe on Standards Concerning the Independence of the Judiciary and the Irremovability of Judges (CCJE(2001)OP No1)		 Appointment, transfer and permanent authorization system will be scheduled so as to ensure reasonability and predictability. The power of the Minister of Justice to assign judges to another jurisdiction in case of urgency will be revoked. Minimum professional seniority requirements will be redefined to be assigned to certain offices. 		

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			European Network of Councils for the Judiciary, Councils for the Judiciary Report 2010-2011, Development of Minimal Judicial Standards I, II, III (2011, 2012, 2013) European Network of Councils for the Judiciary, Dublin Declaration on Standards for the Recruitment and Appointment of Members of the Judiciary (2012)				
2.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Amending Law on Judges and Public Prosecutors No. 2802	Report on the Independence of the Judicial System Part I: The Independence of Judges, Adopted by the Venice Commission (CDL-AD(2010)004) Recommendation CM/Rec(2010)12 of the Committee of Ministers to Member States on Judges: Independence, Efficiency and Responsibilities (CM/Rec(2010)12)	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 2: Improving Independence, Impartiality and Transparency of the Judiciary Objective 2.2	With a view to improving independence and impartiality of the judiciary, the disciplinary procedures regarding judges and public prosecutors will be restructured. In this framework: • Disciplinary penalties set forth in the Law on Judges and Public Prosecutors will be redefined based on more objective criteria.	Council of Judges and Prosecutors Ministry of Justice	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Opinion No 1 (2001) of the Consultative Council of European Judges for the Attention of the Committee of Ministers of Council of Europe on Standards Concerning the Independence of the Judiciary and the Irremovability of Judges (CCJE(2001)OP No1)		 The rights of judges and public prosecutors during the disciplinary processes will be extended. Judicial control mechanism of the Council of Judges and Prosecutors regarding disciplinary decisions will be extended. 		
3.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Amending Criminal Procedure Code No. 5271	Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union (Article 47) Recommendation No. R (87) 18 of the Committee of Ministers to Member States concerning the Simplification of Criminal Justice	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 7: Enhancing the Efficiency of the Criminal Justice System Objective 7.3	Specialization of the criminal courts of peace with respect to objections to the decisions of administrative sanctions will be ensured and an effective legal remedy will be introduced accordingly.	Ministry of Justice	2021
4.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Amending the Administrative Procedure Code and the Civil Procedure Code	Report on the Effectiveness of National Remedies in Respect of Excessive Length of Proceedings, Adopted by the Venice Commission at its 69th Plenary Session on 15-16	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 6: Ensuring Access to Justice and Enhancing	The application deadlines to facilitate access to justice in civil and administrative courts will be rearranged and uncertainties will be eliminated in the	Ministry of Justice	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			December 2006 (CDL-AD(2006)036rev-e) European Commission for the Efficiency of Justice (CEPEJ) Revised SATURN Guidelines for Judicial Time Management (3rd Revision) CEPEJ (2018)20R/4 December 2018	Satisfaction from Service Objective 6.1	processes. In this framework: • Different deadlines for filing a case and application to legal remedies will be reviewed and provided to be as uniform as possible.		
5.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Adopting Secondary Legislation concerning Improvement of Conditions of the Witnesses	Directive 2012/29/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 25 October 2012 establishing minimum standards on the rights, support and protection of victims of crime, and replacing Council Framework Decision 2001/220/JHA Resolution of the Council of 23 November 1995 on the protection of witnesses in the fight against international organized crime (95/C 327/04)	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 4: Enhancing Performance and Productivity Objective 4.15 Aim 6: Ensuring Access to Justice and Enhancing Satisfaction from Service Objective 6.11	 The witness fee and the standards for approaching witnesses will be determined and a comprehensive witnessing guide will be prepared within this framework. Witness waiting rooms will be set up in the courthouses. Information text for witnesses will be included in the witness invitations. Efforts will be made to comply as much as possible with the trial 	Ministry of Justice	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Council Resolution of 20 December 1996 on individuals who cooperate with the judicial process in the fight against international organized crime (97/C 10/01) Recommendation Rec(2005)9 of the Committee of Ministers to Member States on the Protection of Witnesses and Collaborators of Justice Recommendation No. R (97) 13 of the Committee of Ministers to Member States concerning Intimidation of Witnesses and the Rights of the Defence Commission Working Document on the feasibility of EU legislation in the area of protection of witnesses and collaborators with justice (COM/2007/0693)		schedules stated in the invitations sent to witnesses New architectural designs will be made for the courthouses. In this context, applications which also meet needs of the witnesses will be developed during the designing of new buildings.		

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
INST	ITUTIONAL SE	T-UP AND OTHER W	VORK				
1.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Reorganisation of Justice Commissions' to Serve as Structures to Work on Overall Performance at the Local Level	European Commission for the Efficiency of Justice (CEPEJ) Revised SATURN Guidelines for Judicial Time Management (3rd Revision) CEPEJ (2018)20R/4 December 2018	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 4: Enhancing Performance and Productivity Objective 4.1	The authority and responsibility areas of justice commissions will be reorganized for improving the quality of service and concluding trials in a reasonable time.	Ministry of Justice	2021
2.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Strengthening the Regional Courts of Appeal	Political Criteria Peer Review Report prepared by Prof. Thomas Giegerich, "Independence, Impartiality and Administration of the Judiciary" (2011) Peer Review Report prepared by Luca Perilli, "Effectiveness of the Judiciary and Criminal Justice System" (2011) Peer Review Report prepared by Prof.	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 4: Enhancing Performance and Productivity Objective 4.4	 The Regional Courts of Appeal will be strengthened. In this framework: The number of chambers along with the number of judges, prosecutors and staff will be increased. Legal remedies will be reviewed in order to prevent lengthy proceedings by observing the principle of maintaining the legal safeguards of the individuals. 	Ministry of Justice	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Thomas Giegerich, "The Turkish High Council of Judges and Public Prosecutors" (2013)				
3.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Assigning Judges as Criminal or Civil Judges throughout their Professional Careers and Establishing Specialized Courts	Peer Review Report prepared by Luca Perilli, "Effectiveness of the Judiciary and Criminal Justice System" (2011)	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 4: Enhancing Performance and Productivity Objective 4.3 11th Development Plan 2.5.1.1. Justice Services, 759, 760	 The fact that judges are assigned as criminal or civil judges and specialize accordingly throughout their professional career will be ensured. Special courts in fields requiring expertise such as environment, development and energy will be established. Efforts will be made for certain cases to be heard by specialized courts located in city centres (such as commercial cases, cases on intellectual and industrial property rights). The judges serving in certain specialized courts will be provided with training before, or when necessary, during their service in these courts. 	Council of Judges and Prosecutors Ministry of Justice	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
4.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Spreading of Alternative Dispute Resolution Methods in Criminal and Civil Disputes	European Network of Councils for the Judiciary, Vilnius Declaration on Challenges and Opportunities for the Judiciary in the Current Economic Climate (8-10 June 2011) European Network of Councils for the Judiciary, Judicial Reform in Europe Report 2011-2012	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 9: Spreading of Alternative Dispute Resolution Methods 11th Development Plan 2.5.1.1. Justice Services, 762	It is aimed to reduce the workload of the judiciary and to resolve the disputes in a short time.	Ministry of Justice	2021
5.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Determining Target Times for Investigations, Prosecutions or Proceedings and Improving its Implementation	European Commission for the Efficiency of Justice (CEPEJ) Revised SATURN Guidelines for Judicial Time Management (3rd Revision) CEPEJ (2018)20R/4 December 2018	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 4: Enhancing Performance and Productivity Objective 4.2 11th Development Plan 2.5.1.1. Justice Services, 748.1	The transparency of the system will be strengthened and the right to trial in a reasonable time will be protected more efficiently through the practice of "Target Time in Judiciary". In this context, through secondary legislation: • Target time practice will be monitored and measures will be taken for the cases in which target time is exceeded.	Ministry of Justice	2022

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
				Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Justice Objective: 3 Enhancing Performance and Productivity 3.1	 Target times will be defined for regional courts of appeal and regional administrative courts. Public prosecution offices and courts will be enabled to define their own times by complying with the general target time. Measures will be introduced in order to ensure that institutions and organizations from which information and documents are requested during the legal proceedings fulfil the requests as soon as possible. 		
6.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Developing a New Model To Improve the Quality of Legal Education	Peer Review Report prepared by Prof. Thomas Giegerich, "Judicial Training Offered at Graduate and Post- Graduate Level"(2013)	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 3: Increasing the Quality and Quantity of Human Resources	It is aimed to increase the quality of the judicial system.	Ministry of Justice Council of Higher Education	2022
7.	23- Judiciary and	Improving the Quality of Pre- service and In-	European Judicial Training Network - Nine	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 3:	It is aimed to enhance efficient functioning of the judiciary and trust in judicial services	Justice Academy of Turkey	2021-2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
	Fundamental Rights	service Training in the Judiciary	principles of judicial training, 2016 Peer Review Report prepared by Luca Perilli, "Judicial Training in Turkey"(2013)	Increasing the Quality and Quantity of Human Resources Objective 3.4	through increased quality of education in the judicial field.		
8.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Increasing the Number of Judges, Public Prosecutors and Judicial Personnel in proportion to the Workload	Recommendation No. R (86) 12 of the Committee of Ministers to Member States concerning Measures To Prevent and Reduce the Excessive Workload in the Courts	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim: 3 Increasing the Quality and Quantity of Human Resources Objective 3.7	It is aimed to enhance efficient functioning of the judiciary.	Council of Judges and Prosecutors Ministry of Justice	2021-2023
9.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Developing the Management Capacities of Penal Institutions and Improving the System of Conditional Release	Peer Review Report prepared by Prof. J.J. McMANUS, "Policing and Penitentiaries" (2008) Peer Review Report prepared by Prof. J.J.	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 7: Enhancing the Efficiency of the Criminal Justice System	It is aimed to develop the management capacities of penal institutions, increase the rehabilitation measures for the social reintegration of the inmates and improve the system of conditional release. In this context: • Personnel shortage of penal institutions and probation department will be met and	Ministry of Justice	2021-2023

N	o CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			McMANUS, "Penitentiaries"(2011)	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Justice Aim 1: Enhancing the Efficiency of the Criminal Justice System Objective 1.6	personnel selection and promotion system will be strengthened. The means of inspection of the penal institutions and preventive mechanisms against rights violations will be strengthened, thus the transparency of the penal execution system will be increased. The cooperation with civil society organisations will be developed in the field of penal execution. It will be ensured that the conditional release will be implemented based on concrete criteria. Vocational training programmes for the convicts and detainees will be maintained.		

FUNDAMENTAL RIGHTS

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
LEGA	AL ARRANGEME	NTS					
1.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Publishing By- Law on Establishment and Operation of Directorates for Judicial Support and Victim Services	Council Directive 2004/80/EC of 29 April 2004 relating to compensation to crime victims Directive 2012/29/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 25 October 2012 establishing minimum standards on the rights, support and protection of victims of crime, and replacing Council Framework Decision 2001/220/JHA Directive 2011/99/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 13 December 2011 on the European protection order Regulation (EU) No 606/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 12 June 2013 on mutual recognition of protection measures in civil matters	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 7: Enhancing the Efficiency of the Criminal Justice, Objective 7.4 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Justice Aim 1, Objective 1.4.f: Enhancing the Efficiency of the Criminal Justice System 11th Development Plan 2.3.6 Children, 613	It is aimed to regulate the principles governing services and assistance provided for the victims of crime and those who need support in the judicial processes and to lay down the duties, powers and responsibilities for fulfilment of these services and related procedures and principles.	Ministry of Justice	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, "EU Strategy on Victims' Rights (2020-2025)" (COM/2020/258)				
2.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Introducing Legal Arrangements to Strengthen the Human Rights and Equality Institution of Turkey	and Protection of Human Rights (UN Paris Principles)	11th Development Plan 2.5. Rule of Law, Democratization and Good Governance Measure 737 The 2019 Presidential Annual Program Measure 51. Fundamental Rights and Freedoms	It is aimed to strengthen the institutional structure of the Human Rights and Equality Institution of Turkey in accordance with the UN Paris Principles, thus ensuring its accreditation with an A status by the Global Alliance of National Human Rights Institutions (GANHRI).	Human Rights and Equality Institution of Turkey	2022

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Directive 2006/54/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 5 July 2006 on the implementation of the principle of equal opportunities and equal treatment of men and women in matters of employment and occupation (recast) Council Directive 2004/113/EC of 13 December 2004 implementing the principle of equal treatment between men and women in the access to and supply of goods and services Directive 2010/41/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 7 July 2010 on the application of the principle of equal treatment between men and women engaged in an activity in a self-employed capacity and repealing Council Directive 86/613/EEC Council Directive 2000/78/EC of 27 November 2000 establishing				

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			a general framework for equal treatment in employment and occupation Commission Recommendation (EU) 2018/951 of 22 June 2018 on standards for equality bodies				
3.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Amending the Law No. 6216 on the Establishment and Rules of Procedure of the Constitutional Court	European Convention on Human Rights Case law of the ECtHR	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 1: Protection and Improvement of Rights and Freedom, Objective 1.1	It is aimed to take measures in order for the individual application system, which is a mechanism protecting fundamental rights and freedoms, to function more efficiently and to solve the practical problems such as workload.	Constitutional Court Ministry of Justice	2023
4.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Amending the Law No. 6328 on the Ombudsman Institution	European Convention on Human Rights Principles relating to the Status of National Institutions Established for the Promotion	11th Development Plan 2.5.1. Rule of Law and Democratization, 733, 737	It is aimed to enhance the efficiency of the Ombudsman Institution and to align the legislation and implementation in this field in line with the	Ombudsman Institution	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			and Protection of Human Rights (UN Paris Principles) Case-law of the European Court of Human Rights Political Criteria Recommendation 2163 (2019) Ombudsman institutions in Europe – The need for a set of common standards		international mechanisms for the protection of fundamental rights and freedoms.		
5.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Amending the Law No. 5253 on Associations and Turkish Civil Code No. 4721	European Convention on Human Rights (Article 11) Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union (Article 12) Case law of the ECtHR Political Criteria	11th Development Plan 2.5.1.3 Civil Society 776.	It is aimed to introduce legal arrangements to promote freedom of association specifically with regard to the associations and to carry out studies to encourage volunteering. Moreover, within the scope of digitalization it is targeted to make the services to be provided to the associations effective and efficient.	Ministry of Interior	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
6.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Reviewing the Related Legislation in order to Guarantee the Right to Hold Meetings and Demonstration Marches in the Broadest Way Possible in line with the National Jurisdiction and the Case Law of International Courts, the jurisdiction of which is recognised by Turkey	European Convention on Human Rights (Article 11) Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union (Article 12) Case law of the ECtHR Political Criteria	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 1: Protection and Improvement of Rights and Freedoms, Objective 1.1	It is aimed to review the Law on Meetings and Demonstration Marches.	Ministry of Interior	2023
7.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Reviewing the Legislation Related to the Freedom of Expression and Right to Hold Meetings and	Rights (Article 10)	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 1: Protection and Improvement of Rights and Freedoms, Objective 1.1.a, b, c.	It is aimed to review the legislation and make necessary amendments to raise the standards on rights and freedoms. By reviewing the legislation and practice related to freedom of expression, amendments will be made in the		2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
		Demonstration Marches	-Judgement of the European Court of Human Rights in the case of Güler and Uğur v. Turkey (31706/10 and 33088/10) -Judgement of the European Court of Human Rights in the case of Işıkırık v. Turkey (41226/09) -Judgements of the European Court of Human Rights in the cases of Gülcü v. Turkey and Şener v. Turkey Political Criteria Turkey-EU Visa Liberalization Dialogue	11th Development Plan 2.5.1. Rule of Law and Democratization, 731, 732, 733, 734, 735. Presidential Circular No. 2019/19 on "Turkey – EU Visa Liberalization Dialogue	direction of further improving the rights and freedoms of individuals. A governance approach based on the rule of law that embraces the respect for social order and individual rights as a principle, protects and strengthens the fundamental rights and freedoms enshrined in the Constitution and fights effectively and efficiently against violations of rights will be reinforced. Furthermore, the legislation and the practice regarding the custody, detention, and other protection measures affecting the right to freedom and security will be reviewed and the proportionate implementation of those measures will be ensured.		
8.	23- Judiciary and	Increasing the Efficiency of the	Peer Review Report prepared by Kirsten Roberts and Bruce	2.5. Rule of Law, Democratization and	It is aimed to introduce structural changes with a	Ministry of Interior	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
	Fundamental Rights	Provincial and Sub-Provincial Human Rights Boards by Reviewing Their Structure	Adamson, "Human Rights Institutions" (2011)	Good Governance, 737	view to rendering the provincial and sub-provincial human rights boards more effective and efficient.	Human Rights and Equality Institution of Turkey	
9.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Introducing Legal Arrangements and Measures to Strengthen the Legal Aid System for Access to Justice	Directive 2012/13/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 22 May 2012 on the right to information in criminal proceedings Directive (EU) 2016/343 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 9 March 2016 on the strengthening of certain aspects of the presumption of innocence and of the right to be present at the trial in criminal proceedings Directive (EU) 2016/800 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 11 May 2016 on procedural safeguards for children who are suspects or accused persons in criminal proceedings	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 6: Ensuring Access to Justice and Enhancing Satisfaction from Service, Objective 6.2	law, a legal aid system consisting of	Ministry of Justice Union of Turkish Bar Associations	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Commission Recommendation of 27 November 2013 on procedural safeguards for vulnerable persons suspected or accused in criminal proceedings (2013/C 378/02) Directive (EU) 2016/1919 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 October 2016 on legal aid for suspects and accused persons in criminal proceedings and for requested persons in European arrest warrant proceedings		Government will become possible. Fees paid to lawyers for legal aid services will be increased. A new legal arrangement will be introduced on the taxes accrued for legal aid service. Legal aid services will be strengthened in the mediation process. The lawyers rendering legal aid services will be provided with regular training on this subject and performance criteria will be developed for the lawyers rendering this service. The legal aid system will be ensured to have a structure which is sensitive to		

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
					the needs of vulnerable groups.		

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
INSTI	TUTIONAL SET	-UP AND OTHER W	ORK				
1.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Adoption of a New Human Rights Action Plan and Its Effective Implementation	European Convention on Human Rights Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 1: Protection and Improvement of Rights and Freedoms, Objective 1.2. 11th Development Plan 2.5.1 Rule of Law and Democratization 736	The Human Rights Action Plan will be prepared and implemented effectively to further raise our country's standards on human rights.	Ministry of Justice	2023
2.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Preparing the National Action Plan on Combating Violence Against Women (2021- 2025)	Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of Discrimination against Women (CEDAW) United Nations Declaration on the Elimination of Violence against Women Proclaimed by General	11th Development Plan, 2.3.5 Women, 602, 602.1, 602.2, 602.3 The 2020 Presidential Annual Program Measure 602.1, 602.2, 602.3	It is aimed to determine the targets and activities in combating violence against women for the 2021-25 period in line with the international conventions to which Turkey is a party.	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Assembly resolution 48/104 of 20 December 1993 Council of Europe, Recommendation Rec(2002)5 of the Committee of Ministers to Member States on the Protection of Women against Violence				
3.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Capacity of Bar	Rule of Law Checklist, Adopted by the Venice Commission; Study No. 711/2013 (CDL- AD(2016)007) (18 March 2016) United Nations Basic Principles on the Role of Lawyers (Havana Rules)	11th Development Plan 2.5. Rule of Law, Democratization and Good Governance, 733	Under the Project on "Strengthening the Capacity of Bar Associations and Lawyers on European Human Rights Standards", implemented within the scope of fundamental rights sub-field under IPA II, it is aimed to provide trainings for the members of the bar associations, to raise awareness and to strengthen the institutional capacity of the human rights centres of the bar	Union of Turkish Bar Associations	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
					associations in pilot provinces.		
4.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Developing Facility of Making a Statement or Declaration through SEGBIS in Large Airports	Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union (Article 47 to 50)	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 4:Enhancing Performance and Productivity Objective 4.7	It is aimed to provide citizen-oriented justice services through the use of technological opportunities.	Ministry of Justice	2021
5.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Introducing a New Trial Procedure for the Disputes Arising from the Family Law to Protect the Best Interest of the Child	Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union (Article 24) Guidelines of the Committee of Ministers of the Council of Europe on child-friendly justice (17 November 2010)	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 8: Simplification and enhancement of the efficiency of civil and administrative trials Objective 8.3	It is aimed to introduce a new trial procedure to allow the disputes to be resolved without delay while protecting the best interest of the child and rights of all family members.	Ministry of Justice	2021
6.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	The Project on "Strengthening Democratic Culture in Basic Education"	Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union (Article 14)	11th Development Plan 2.3.1., Education, 551, 551.5	Under the Project on "Strengthening Democratic Culture in Basic Education" within the scope of Fundamental Rights Sub- Field under IPA II, it is	Ministry of National Education	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Council of Europe, Reference Framework of Competences for Democratic Culture Council of Europe, Recommendation CM/Rec(2010)7 of the Committee of Ministers to member states on the Council of Europe Charter on Education for Democratic Citizenship and Human Rights Education and Explanatory Memorandum (2010)	The 2020 Presidential Annual Program, Qualified People, Strong Society, Education Measure 551	aimed to integrate a democratic school culture into the education system complying with the common values, fundamental rights and freedoms.		
7.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Continuing the implementation of the Project on "Strengthening the Civilian Oversight of Internal Security Forces"	Council of Europe, Parliamentary Assembly of the Council of Europe, Recommendation 1713 (2005) on Democratic oversight of the security sector in member states	11th Development Plan 2.5.1.2., Security Services 774.1, 774.2	Within the scope of Fundamental Rights Sub- Field under IPA II, the Project on "Strengthening the Civilian Oversight of Internal Security Forces" aims to support local crime prevention boards, strengthen the role of GNAT and to establish a National Crime Prevention Office	Ministry of Interior	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
					with regard to civilian oversight.		
8.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Project on "Supporting the Implementation of the Action Plan on Human Rights"	European Convention on Human Rights Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 1: Protection and Improvement of Rights and Freedoms Objective 1.2 11th Development Plan 2.5. Rule of Law, Democratization and Good Governance, 736	Under the Project on "Supporting the Implementation of the Action Plan on Human Rights" within the scope of Fundamental Rights Sub- Field under IPA II, it is aimed to support the implementation and monitoring of the Action Plan on Human Rights which is underway and will be a key document on fundamental rights.	Ministry of Justice	2022
9.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	The Project on "Strengthening Fundamental Rights Sector Coordination"	Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union European Convention on Human Rights	11th Development Plan 2.5., Rule of Law, Democratization and Good Governance, 737	Under the Project on "Strengthening Fundamental Rights Sector Coordination" within the scope of Fundamental Rights Sub-Field under IPA II, it is aimed to ensure that the Lead Institution on fundamental rights performs its functions more efficiently and that the	Ministry of Foreign Affairs- Directorate for EU Affairs	2022

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			IPA II Indicative Strategy Paper for Turkey (Revised)		interaction among sectoral bodies is supported.		
10.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	The Project on "Supporting Efficient Execution of Decisions on Individual Application by the Constitutional Court"	Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union European Convention on Human Rights Case law of the ECtHR	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 1: Protection and Improvement of Rights and Freedoms Objective 1.1.f	Under the Project on "Supporting the Effective Implementation of Turkish Constitutional Court Judgments in the field of Fundamental Rights" within the scope of Fundamental Rights Sub- Field under IPA II, it is aimed to execute decisions taken under individual application mechanism which is one of the key mechanisms for the protection of fundamental rights, and, to prevent repeated violations of rights. The Project will be launched in 2021 and will have a four years' period	Constitutional	2023
11.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Strengthening Administrative and Technical Infrastructure of the Personal Data	Regulation (EU) 2016/679 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 27 April 2016 on the protection of natural persons with regard to the processing of	Judicial Reform Strategy Objective 1.1 (g)	It is aimed to strengthen administrative and technical infrastructure of the Personal Data Protection Authority.	Personal Data Protection Authority	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
		Protection Authority	personal data and on the free movement of such data, and repealing Directive 95/46/EC (General Data Protection Regulation) Directive (EU) 2016/680 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 27 April 2016 on the protection of natural persons with regard to the processing of personal data by competent authorities for the purposes of the prevention, investigation, detection or prosecution of criminal offences or the execution of criminal penalties, and on the free movement of such data, and repealing Council Framework Decision 2008/977/JHA (Law Enforcement Directive)	11th Development Plan 2.2.3.5. Information and Communication Technologies, 479.1 The 2020 Presidential Annual Program Measure 479.1			

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
12.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	The Project on "Promoting Freedom of Expression and Freedom of Media in line with European Standards"	Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union (Article 11) European Convention on Human Rights Case law of the ECtHR Council Framework Decision 2008/913/JHA of 28 November 2008 on combating certain forms and expressions of racism and xenophobia by means of criminal law	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 1: Protection and Improvement of Rights and Freedoms Objective 1.1.a,b, 1.3.b	Under the Project on "Promoting Freedom of Expression and Freedom of Media in line with European Standards", within the scope of Fundamental Rights Sub-Field under IPA II, it is aimed to provide training programs on freedom of expression and freedom of media.	Radio and Television Supreme Council	2023
13.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Sustaining the Efficiency and Functionality of the Law Enforcement Surveillance Commission	United Nations Code of Conduct for Law Enforcement Officials (1979) United Nations Guidelines for the Effective Implementation of the Code of Conduct for Law Enforcement Officials (1989/61)	11th Development Plan 2.5.1 Rule of Law, Democratization 735	It is aimed to fight more efficiently against torture and ill- treatment.	Ministry of Interior	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Council of Europe, Recommendation Rec(2001)10 of the Committee of Ministers to Member States on the European Code of Police Ethics Council of Europe, Opinion of the Commissioner for Human Rights Concerning Independent and Effective Determination of Complaints against the Police ((CommDH(2009)4)				
14.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Strengthening Institutional Capacity of the Directorate General for Relations with Civil Society in line with its mandate in order to implement Policies, Programs, Activities and	Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union (Article 15)	11th Development Plan 2.5.1.3. Civil Society 778	It is aimed to strengthen the cooperation between civil society and the public.	Ministry of Interior	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
		Services for Civil Society Organizations in a holistic approach					
15.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Specialization of the Women's Shelters	Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of Discrimination against Women (CEDAW) United Nations Declaration on the Elimination of Violence against Women Proclaimed by General Assembly resolution 48/104 of 20 December 1993 Council of Europe, Recommendation Rec(2002)5 of the Committee of Ministers to Member States on the Protection of Women against Violence	11th Development Plan 2.3.5 Women, 602 The 2020 Presidential Annual Program Measure 602.3	A new structure is needed since the victims with different needs and priorities in the women's shelters benefit from the services in the same environment, which causes various challenges for both service users and service providers.	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
16.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Enhancing the Capacities of Women's Shelters and Violence Prevention and Monitoring Centres (ŞÖNİM)	Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of Discrimination against Women (CEDAW) United Nations Declaration on the Elimination of Violence against Women Proclaimed by General Assembly resolution 48/104 of 20 December 1993 Council of Europe, Recommendation Rec(2002)5 of the Committee of Ministers to Member States on the Protection of Women against Violence	11th Development Plan 2.3.5 Women, 602.2, 602.3	It is aimed to increase capacities and improve material conditions of women's shelters as well as violence prevention and monitoring centres which play a vital role in combating violence against women.	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2023
17.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Training of Law Enforcement Officials to Provide a More Professional and Efficient Service regarding	Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of Discrimination against Women (CEDAW)	11th Development Plan 2.3.5 Women, 602, 602.1, 602.2, 602.3 The 2020 Presidential Annual	It is aimed to raise institutional awareness of law enforcement units to adopt a more professional and efficient approach in	Ministry of Interior	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
		Combating Domestic Violence against Women	United Nations Declaration on the Elimination of Violence against Women Proclaimed by General Assembly resolution 48/104 of 20 December 1993 Council of Europe, Recommendation Rec(2002)5 of the Committee of Ministers to Member States on the Protection of Women against Violence	Program 602.1, 602.2, 602.3	combating violence against women.		
18.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	The Project on "Implementing a Gender Responsive Planning and Budgeting in Turkey"	Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union Council Directive 2004/113/EC of 13 December 2004 implementing the principle of equal treatment between men and women in the	11th Development Plan 2.3.5 Women, 599. Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services H 1.4 Strategy Paper and Action Plan on Women's	Under the Project on "Implementing a Gender Responsive Planning and Budgeting in Turkey" within the scope of IPA II Fundamental Rights Sub- Field, it is aimed to further strengthen women and equal opportunity for women and men in developing national and	Presidency of the Republic of Turkey, Directorate of Strategy and Budget Ministry of Family, Labour	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			access to and supply of goods and services Directive 2010/41/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 7 July 2010 on the application of the principle of equal treatment between men and women engaged in an activity in a self-employed capacity and repealing Council Directive 86/613/EEC	Empowerment (2020-2023), Economy, Strategy 3, Activity 3.1. The 2020 Presidential Annual Program Measure 600.1	local policies and budgeting processes. Under the Project, it is planned to carry out activities on awareness-raising, analyses, capacity building, developing models to monitor public policies, establishing mechanisms for dialogue among main partners and institutionalizing the approach responsive to equal opportunity for men and women on local and national level.	and Social Services	
19.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	The Project on "Support for Children's Rights in Turkey"	Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union (Article 24) Communication From The Commission To The European Parliament, The Council, The European Economic And Social Committee and the	11th Development Plan 2.3.6 Children, 606, 607, 609 and 611	Under the Project on "Support for Children's Rights in Turkey", within the scope of IPA II Fundamental Rights Sub- Field, it is planned to carry out activities in various thematic areas such as fight against child labour, improving child care	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Committee of the Regions, "An EU Agenda for the Rights of the Child" (COM/2011/60) Council Conclusions of 17 December 2014 on the promotion and protection of the rights of the child		services and fight against early marriages.		
20.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Training of Law Enforcement Officials to Provide a More Professional and Efficient Service in Fight against Juvenile Crimes and Protecting Children	Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union (Articles 24 and 32) The Council of Europe Convention on Protection of Children against Sexual Exploitation and Sexual Abuse (Lanzarote Convention) Directive 2011/92/EU of 13 December 2011 on combating the sexual abuse and sexual exploitation of children and child pornography, and replacing	11th Development Plan 2.3.6, Children 610.5., 613.4	It is aimed to enhance the capacity to provide better services for the protection of child victims, especially from crimes of sexual abuse by considering the best interest of the child.	Ministry of Interior	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Council Framework Decision 2004/68/JHA Council Conclusions of 17 December 2014 on the promotion and protection of the rights of the child Directive (EU) 2016/800 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 11 May 2016 on procedural safeguards for children who are suspects or accused persons in criminal proceedings				
21.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Introducing Programs for the Development of Children Living in Prisons with their Parents	Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union (Articles 24 and 32) Communication From The Commission To The European Parliament, The Council, The European Economic And Social Committee and the	11th Development Plan 2.3.6. Children, 613	It is aimed to develop educational, social and cultural programs for the utmost physical, mental and psychological development of the children living with their parents who are convicts or detainees.	Ministry of Justice	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Committee of the Regions, "An EU Agenda for the Rights of the Child" (COM/2011/60)				
22.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	The Project on "Supporting Capacities of Lawyers and Bar Associations on the Rights of Children"	Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union Council Conclusions of 17 December 2014 on the promotion and protection of the rights of the child Directive (EU) 2016/800 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 11 May 2016 on procedural safeguards for children who are suspects or accused persons in criminal proceedings Communication From The Commission To The European Parliament, The Council, The European Economic And Social	11th Development Plan 2.3.6. Children 610.3, 610.4, 610.5	Under the Project on "Enhancing Capacities of Lawyers and Bar Associations for the Protection, Monitoring and Promoting Rights of Children" within the scope of IPA II Fundamental Rights Sub-Field, it is aimed to support Centres for Children's Rights to be established within the Bar Associations in order to support the rights of children.	Union of Turkish Bar Associations	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Committee and the Committee of the Regions, "An EU Agenda for the Rights of the Child" (COM/2011/60)				
23.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Barrier-Free Vision Document and National Action Plan on Rights of the Persons with Disabilities 12	United Nations Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union Council Decision of 26 November 2009 concerning the conclusion, by the European Community, of the United Nations Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, European Disability Strategy	The 2020 Presidential Annual Program 2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	With regard to the implementation of the United Nations Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities, it is aimed to ensure and promote that persons with disabilities enjoy human rights and fundamental freedoms fully and equally.	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2023

¹² Barrier Free Vision Document and National Action Plan on Rights of the Persons with Disabilities is also included in the Chapter 19 on Social Policy and Employment

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			2010-2020, "A Renewed Commitment to a Barrier- Free Europe" (COM/2010/0636 final)				
			Commission Staff Working Document Accompanying Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, Establishing a European Pillar of Social Rights (COM/2017/0250 final)				
24.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Programme on Improving and Assessing Quality of Care Services for the Persons with Disabilities and Elderly People	United Nations Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union (Article 26)	11th Development Plan 2.3.8.Social Services, Social Assistance and Poverty Reduction, 628.1, 628.3, 594.2	It is aimed to improve qualified and accessible care services to help the persons with disabilities and elderly people in accessing to their rights.	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Council Decision of 26 November 2009 concerning the conclusion, by the European Community, of the United Nations Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities	The 2020 Presidential Annual Program 628.1			
			Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, European Disability Strategy 2010-2020, "A Renewed Commitment to a Barrier-Free Europe" (COM/2010/0636 final)				
25.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Integrating information, provided via Braille alphabets, sign languages, audio descriptions, web pages and mobile	United Nations Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities European Convention on Human Rights (Article 14)	11th Development Plan 2.3.8. Social Services, Social Assistance and Poverty Reduction, 594.2	Arrangements will be made to provide access through social media networks and web site in order to inform the disadvantaged persons about their rights as well as about the Human Rights	Human Rights and Equality Institution of Turkey	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
		applications, into all communication channels by the Human Rights and Equality Institution of Turkey in accordance with the accessibility standards			and Equality Institution of Turkey.		
26.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Raising Standards in All Detention Rooms and Other Places of Deprivation of Liberty in accordance with the European Committee for the Prevention of Torture and Inhuman or Degrading Treatment or Punishment (CPT)	Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union SPT Reports CPT Reports United Nations Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Optional Protocol to the UN Convention against Torture and other Cruel, Inhuman or Degrading Treatment or Punishment	Judicial Reform Strategy Objective 6.3	It is aimed to reinforce capacity and take specific measures for the persons with disabilities.	Ministry of Justice Ministry of Interior Human Rights and Equality Institution of Turkey	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
27.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Enhancing Professional Qualifications of the Judiciary Members on Human Rights in accordance with the Standards of the Council of Europe	European Convention on Human Rights Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union Case law of the ECtHR	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 1: Protection and Improvement of Rights and Freedoms, Objective 1.3. Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Justice, Objective 3.12 Enhancing Performance and Productivity	It is aimed to contribute to judiciary in rendering decisions in line with the international standards through regular training programs on the case-law of the ECtHR and international conventions on human rights which Turkey is a party to.	Justice Academy of Turkey	2021-2023
28.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Providing Regular Training Programs for the Staff Working in Places of Deprivation of Liberty (prisons, detention rooms, removal centres etc.) about Practices and Cases to be Regarded as Ill-treatment in line with the Standards Specified in the Case-law of the	Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union SPT Reports CPT Reports Optional Protocol to the UN Convention against Torture and other Cruel, Inhuman or Degrading Treatment or Punishment		It is aimed to enhance institutional capacity to fight against torture and ill-treatment in places where persons are deprived of their liberty.	Ministry of Justice Ministry of Interior Ministry of Health Human Rights and Equality Institution of Turkey	2021-2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
29.	23- Judiciary	Constitutional Court and European Court of Human Rights Providing Regular	Charter of Fundamental		The development of	Ministry of	2021-2023
	and Fundamental Rights	Training Programs for the Staff Working in Residential Social Services' Institutions for Children, Women, Persons with Disabilities and Elderly People about Practices and Cases to be Regarded as Ill- treatment in line with the Standards Specified in the Case-law of the Constitutional Court and European Court of Human Rights	Rights of the European Union SPT Reports CPT Reports Optional Protocol to the UN Convention against Torture and other Cruel, Inhuman or Degrading Treatment or Punishment		institutional capacity will be sustained in order to reinforce provision of services for children, women, persons with disabilities and elderly people in residential institutions.	Family, Labour and Social Services Human Rights and Equality Institution of Turkey	

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
30.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Including International Standards on Gender Equality and Prevention of Violence against Women, into In- service Training of Judiciary Members	Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of Discrimination against Women (CEDAW) United Nations Declaration on the Elimination of Violence against Women Proclaimed by General Assembly resolution 48/104 of 20 December 1993 Council of Europe, Recommendation Rec(2002)5 of the Committee of Ministers to member States on the protection of women against violence	2.3.5 Women, 602.2, 602.3 Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 1: Protection and Improvement of Rights and Freedom, Objective 1.3	It is aimed to provide trainings to the judiciary members on gender equality and prevention of violence against women, the case-law of the Constitutional Court and the European Court of Human Rights.	Justice Academy of Turkey	2021-2023
31.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Increasing Number and Capacity of Child Monitoring Centres	Charter of Fundamental Rights of the European Union (Articles 24 and 32) The Council of Europe Convention on Protection of Children against Sexual	11th Development Plan 2.3.6, Children 610.5., 613.4	It is aimed to expand Child Monitoring Centres which play a crucial role in avoiding re-victimization of the child victims during judicial proceedings in particular regarding crimes	Ministry of Health (Directorate General of Public Health, Directorate General of	2021-2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Exploitation and Sexual Abuse (Lanzarote Convention) Directive 2011/92/EU of 13 December 2011 on combating the sexual abuse and sexual exploitation of children and child pornography, and replacing Council Framework Decision 2004/68/JHA		of sexual abuse and to increase the capacities of the Child Monitoring Centres to provide better services, through protecting the best interest of the child.	Public Hospitals)	
32.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Introducing Programs and Practices to Prevent Negligence, Abuse and Violence against Children	The Council of Europe Convention on Protection of Children against Sexual Exploitation and Sexual Abuse (Lanzarote Convention) Directive 2011/92/EU of 13 December 2011 on combating the sexual abuse and sexual exploitation of children and child pornography, and replacing	11th Development Plan 2.3.6. Children, 613.1, 613.2 and 613.5	It is aimed to strengthen practices and policies for the prevention of negligence, abuse and violence against children, especially those under risk, through protecting the best interest of the child.	Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2021-2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Council Framework Decision 2004/68/JHA				
33.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Improving Access of Vulnerable Groups to Justice	United Nations Principles and Guidelines on Access to Legal Aid in Criminal Justice Systems, 2013 Recommendation of 27 November 2013 on procedural safeguards for vulnerable persons suspected or accused in criminal proceedings (2013/C 378/02)	Judicial Reform Strategy, Aim 6: Ensuring Access to Justice and Enhancing Satisfaction from Service, Objective 6.3, 6.4, 6,5	It is aimed to facilitate access to justice and to enhance satisfaction from judicial services.	Ministry of Justice Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2021-2023

INCREASING TRANSPARENCY

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure				
INST	INSTITUTIONAL SET-UP AND OTHER WORK										
1.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Continuing the implementation of the Project on "Increasing Ethical Awareness Among Elected and Non-Elected Local Government Officials"	Council Decision of 25 September 2008 on the conclusion, on behalf of the European Community, of the United Nations Convention against Corruption	11th Development Plan: 2.5.2 Good Governance 785, 2.5.2.4. Human Resources in the Public Sector 805.3	Ethical approach in local governments within the scope of IPA II 2014 programming will be introduced.	Ministry of Interior Board of Ethics for Civil Servants	2021				
2.	23- Judiciary and Fundamental Rights	Efficient Implementation of the Law No. 2531 on the Jobs Prohibited to those who have Left a Position in the Public Sector	UN Convention against Corruption, Article 12 Council Act of 26 May 1997 drawing up, on the basis of Article K.3 (2) (c) of the Treaty on EU The Convention on the fight against corruption involving officials of the European Communities or officials of Member States of the EU Political Criteria	11th Development Plan 2.5.2. Good Governance, 785.4	It is aimed to efficiently implement legal arrangements to prevent information, authority and expertise obtained during the civil service from being used against public interests and achieving special interests after resignation.	Ministry of Justice Board of Ethics for Civil Servants Ministry of Family, Labour and Social Services	2021-2023				

24- JUSTICE, FREEDOM AND SECURITY

Screening Report for Chapter 24 on Justice, Freedom and Security has not been officially communicated to Turkey. Chapter is one of those chapters unilaterally blocked by the Southern Cypriot Greek Administration.

TURKEY- EU VISA LIBERALIZATION DIALOGUE

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
LEGA	L ARRANGE	MENTS					
1.	24 - Justice, Freedom and Security	Legislative Arrangements to Finalize Turkey-EU Visa Liberalization Dialogue	Turkey-EU Visa Liberalization Dialogue Visa Liberalization Road Map (72 benchmarks)	11th Development Plan 2.5.6.2. Regional Cooperation, 833.2 Presidential Circular No. 2019/19 on "Turkey – EU Visa Liberalization Dialogue	remaining benchmarks in	J	2023

MIGRATION MANAGEMENT

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
LEGA	AL ARRANGEM	IENTS					
1.	Freedom	Publishing a By- Law on National Voluntary Return	Directive 2008/115/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 December 2008 on common standards and procedures in Member States for returning illegally staying third-country nationals	11th Development Plan 2.3.12 External Migration 661.6.	It is aimed to manage irregular migration more efficiently.	Ministry of Interior	2021
2.	24 - Justice, Freedom and Security	Publishing By- Law on Competent Intermediate Bodies	Council Regulation (EC) No 1030/2002 of 13 June 2002 laying down a uniform format for residence permits for third-country nationals Directive (EU) 2016/801 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 11 May 2016 on the conditions of entry and residence of third-country nationals for the purposes of research, studies, training, voluntary service, pupil exchange schemes or	11th Development Plan 2.3.12 External Migration	It is aimed to manage regular migration more efficiently.	Ministry of Interior	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			educational projects and au pairing				
3.	24 - Justice, Freedom and Security	Drafting and Efficiently Implementing a Secondary Legislation on Alternative Measures to Administrative Detention	European Convention on Human Rights (Article 5) Directive 2008/115/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 December 2008 on common standards and procedures in Member States for returning illegally staying third-country nationals Directive 2013/33/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 laying down standards for the reception of applicants for international protection Fact sheet of the European Committee for the Prevention of Torture and Inhuman or Degrading Treatment or Punishment on Immigration Detention (CPT/Inf(2017)3)	11th Development 2.3.12 External Migration 661.8	It is aimed to specify alternatives to administrative detention in accordance with the Article 5 of ECHR. Also promoting voluntary returns for foreign nationals is targeted.	Ministry of Interior	2022

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
INST	ITUTIONAL SI	ET-UP AND OTHER	R WORK				
1.	Freedom	Fully Implementing the Turkey-EU Readmission Agreement	Agreement between the Republic of Turkey and the European Union on the Readmission of Persons Residing without Authorisation	11th Development Plan 2.5.2. Regional Cooperation, 833.4	Turkey-EU Readmission Agreement is currently in force for Turkish citizens. This Agreement will be fully implemented with all its provisions simultaneously with granting of the Schengen visa liberalization for Turkish citizens.	Ministry of Foreign Affairs Ministry of Interior	This Agreement will be simultaneously implemented with granting of Schengen visa liberalisation for Turkish citizens.
2.	24 - Justice, Freedom and Security	Drafting Strategy Paper and National Action Plan on Fight Against Irregular Migration	Council Directive 2002/90/EC of 28 November 2002 defining the facilitation of unauthorised entry, transit and residence Council Framework Decision 2002/946/JHA of 28 November 2002 on the strengthening of the penal framework to prevent the facilitation of unauthorised entry, transit and residence. Council Directive 2004/81/EC of 29 April 2004 on the residence permit issued to	11th Development Plan 2.3.12 External Migration 661.8, 661.9 The 2020 Presidential Annual Program, 661.6 Qualified People, Strong Society, External Migration	It is aimed to ensure coordination among public institutions and developing efficient measures to fight against irregular migration more efficiently.	Ministry of Interior	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			third-country nationals who are victims of trafficking in human beings or who have been the subject of an action to facilitate illegal immigration, who cooperate with the competent authorities Council Decision of 24 July 2006 on the conclusion, on behalf of the European Community, of the Protocol Against the Smuggling of Migrants by Land, Sea and Air, supplementing the United Nations Convention Against Transnational Organised Crime concerning the provisions of the Protocol, in so far as the provisions of this Protocol fall within the scope of Articles 179 and 181a of the Treaty establishing the European Community and Council Decision of 24 July 2006 on the conclusion, on behalf of the European Community, of the Protocol Against the Smuggling	Action Plan on the Fight against Organised Crime (2019-2021) Measure 1.3 Ensuring an Efficient Institutional Cooperation and Coordination in Fight Against Organized Crime			

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			of Migrants by Land, Sea and Air, supplementing the United Nations Convention Against Transnational Organised Crime concerning the provisions of the Protocol, in so far as the provisions of the Protocol fall within the scope of Part III, Title IV of the Treaty establishing the European Community Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, EU Action Plan against migrant smuggling (2015 - 2020) (COM/2015/285) Directive 2008/115/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 December 2008 on common standards and procedures in Member States for returning illegally staying third-country nationals				

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Council Directive 2001/40/EC of 28 May 2001 on the mutual recognition of decisions on the expulsion of third country nationals Council Directive 2003/110/EC of 25 November 2003 on assistance in cases of transit for the purposes of removal by air Council Decision of 29 April 2004 on the organisation of joint flights for removals from the territory of two or more Member States, of third-country nationals who are subjects of individual removal orders (2004/573/EC) Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament and the Council on a more effective return policy in the European Union - A Renewed Action Plan (COM/2017/200)				the measure

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Commission Recommendation of 7 March 2017 on making returns more effective when implementing the Directive 2008/115/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council (2017/1600/EU) Commission Recommendation (EU) 2017/2338 of 16 November 2017 establishing a common 'Return Handbook' to be used by Member States' competent authorities when carrying out return-related tasks				
3.	24 - Justice, Freedom and Security	Organizing Coordination Meetings to Fight Against Irregular Migration, Trafficking in Human Beings and Migrant Smuggling	Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, EU Action Plan against migrant smuggling (2015 - 2020) (COM/2015/285)	Action Plan on the Fight against Organised Crime (2019-2021) Measure 1.5 Ensuring an Efficient Institutional Cooperation and Coordination in Fight	It is aimed to ensure an effective and efficient coordination and cooperation among the units involved in the fight against organized crime in order to increase the efficiency in this regard and to contribute to the	Ministry of Interior	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
				Against Organized Crime	fight against irregular migration.		
4.	24 - Justice, Freedom and Security	Drafting and Implementing Strategy Paper on Migration	Council Regulation (EC) No 1030/2002 of 13 June 2002 laying down a uniform format for residence permits for third-country nationals Council Directive 2003/86/EC of 22 September 2003 on the right to family reunification Council Directive 2003/109/EC of 25 November 2003 concerning the status of third-country nationals who are long-term residents Directive (EU) 2016/801 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 11 May 2016 on the conditions of entry and residence of third-country nationals for the purposes of research, studies, training, voluntary service, pupil	11th Development Plan 2.3.12 External Migration 661.1.	It is aimed to ensure a reliable, regular, datadriven and controllable external migration management compatible with human rights and human dignity.	Ministry of Interior	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			exchange schemes or educational projects and au pairing Directive 2008/115/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 December 2008 on common standards and procedures in Member States for returning illegally staying third-country nationals Directive 2011/95/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 13 December 2011 on standards for the qualification of third-country nationals or stateless persons as beneficiaries of international protection, for a uniform status for refugees or for persons eligible for subsidiary protection, and for the content of the protection granted				the Measure
			Directive 2013/32/EU of the European Parliament and of the				

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Council of 26 June 2013 on common procedures for granting and withdrawing international protection Directive 2013/33/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 laying down standards for the reception of applicants for international protection Council Framework Decision 2002/946/JHA of 28 November 2002 on the strengthening of the penal framework to prevent the facilitation of unauthorised entry, transit and residence Council Directive 2004/81/EC of 29 April 2004 on the residence permit issued to third-country nationals who are victims of trafficking in human			Institution	
			beings or who have been the subject of an action to facilitate illegal immigration, who				

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			cooperate with the competent authorities				
			Council Decision of 24 July 2006 on the conclusion, on behalf of the European Community, of the Protocol Against the Smuggling of Migrants by Land, Sea and Air, supplementing the United Nations Convention Against Transnational Organised Crime concerning the provisions of the Protocol, in so far as the provisions of this Protocol fall within the scope of Articles 179 and 181a of the Treaty establishing the European Community and Council Decision of 24 July 2006 on the conclusion, on behalf of the European Community, of the Protocol Against the Smuggling of Migrants by Land, Sea and Air, supplementing the United Nations Convention Against Transnational Organised Crime concerning the provisions of the				

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Protocol, in so far as the provisions of the Protocol fall within the scope of Part III, Title IV of the Treaty establishing the European Community Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, EU Action Plan against migrant smuggling (2015 - 2020) (COM/2015/285) (COM/2015/0285) Council Directive 2001/40/EC of 28 May 2001 on the mutual recognition of decisions on the expulsion of third country nationals Council Directive 2003/110/EC of 25 November 2003 on assistance in cases of transit for the purposes of removal by air				

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Council Decision of 29 April 2004 on the organisation of joint flights for removals from the territory of two or more Member States, of third-country nationals who are subjects of individual removal orders (2004/573/EC) Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament and the Council, EU Action Plan on return (COM/2015/0453) Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament and the Council on a more effective return policy in the European Union - A Renewed Action Plan (COM/2017/200) Commission Recommendation of 7 March 2017 on Making Returns More Effective when Implementing the Directive 2008/115/EC of the European				

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Parliament and of the Council (2017/1600/EU) Commission Recommendation (EU) 2017/2338 of 16 November 2017 establishing a common 'Return Handbook' to be used by Member States' competent authorities when carrying out return-related tasks Commission Recommendation (EU) 2017/432 of 7 March 2017 on making returns more effective when implementing the Directive 2008/115/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council				
5.	24 - Justice, Freedom and Security	Continuing Implementation of the Harmonisation Strategy	Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, "Action Plan on	11th Development Plan 2.3.1. Education 2.3.6.Children 2.3.12. External Migration 548.5, 616, 662	It is aimed to strengthen the institutional structure of migration management for the integration of foreigners in Turkey into economic and social life.	Ministry of Interior	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
		Document and the Action Plan	the Integration of Third Country Nationals" (COM/2016/0377)				
6.	24 - Justice, Freedom and Security	Increasing the Number of Qualified Personnel in the Removal Centers	Directive 2008/115/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 December 2008 on common standards and procedures in Member States for returning illegally staying third-country nationals	11th Development Plan 2.3.12 External Migration 661.8	It is aimed to manage irregular migration more efficiently.	Ministry of Interior	2023
7.	24 - Justice, Freedom and Security	Raising Awareness of Law Enforcement Officials on Fight against Irregular Immigration, Human Trafficking and Migrant Smuggling	Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, EU Action Plan against migrant smuggling (2015 - 2020) (COM/2015/285)	11th Development Plan 2.3.12 External Migration 661.8, 661.9 The 2020 Presidential Annual Program, 661.6 Qualified People, Strong Society, External Migration Action Plan on the Fight against Organised Crime (2019-2021)	It is aimed to increase the awareness of law enforcement personnel through trainings to be held in provinces by the personnel who received the training of the trainers on the Fight against irregular migration and human trafficking, thus contributing to the fight against irregular migration.	Ministry of Interior	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
				Measure 1.3 Ensuring an Efficient Institutional Cooperation and Coordination in Fight Against Organized Crime			

BORDER MANAGEMENT

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
INST	ITUTIONAL SI	ET-UP AND OTHER	R WORK				
1.	Freedom	Rendering the National Coordination and Joint Risk Analysis Center operational	Council Conclusions on Integrated Border Management (4-5 December 2006) Turkey-EU Visa Liberalization Dialogue	11th Development Plan 2.5.1.2. Security Services 773 Presidential Circular No. 2019/19 on "Turkey – EU Visa Liberalization Dialogue	It is aimed to ensure EU standards during the transition to the integrated border management system and risk analysis studies.	Ministry of Interior	2022
2.	Freedom	Updating the Action Plan on Integrated Border Management	Council Conclusions on Integrated Border Management (4-5 December 2006)	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program Measure 49. Qualified People, Strong Society, Security	It is aimed to implement the application of an integrated border management understanding based on inter-institutional cooperation.	Ministry of Interior	2023

FIGHT AGAINST ORGANIZED CRIME

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
LEG	AL ARRANGEM	IENTS					
1.	24- Justice, Freedom and Security	Updating the Relevant Legislation to Enable Profiling by the Criminal Department of the Turkish National Police	Regulation (EU) 2016/679 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 27 April 2016 on the protection of natural persons with regard to the processing of personal data and on the free movement of such data, and repealing Directive 95/46/EC (General Data Protection Regulation) Directive (EU) 2016/680 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 27 April 2016 on the protection of natural persons with regard to the processing of personal data by competent authorities for the purposes of the prevention, investigation, detection or prosecution of criminal offences or the execution of criminal penalties, and on the free movement of such data, and repealing Council Framework Decision	Action Plan on the Fight against Organised Crime (2019-2021) Guiding Principle 2: Fighting against Organized Crime on a scientific basis within the framework of statistical data analyses	It is aimed to carry out fight against Organized Crime on a scientific basis within the framework of statistical data analyses and profiling the organized crime organizations.	Ministry of Interior	2023

	2008/977/JHA (Law Enforcement Directive)		

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
INST	ITUTIONAL SI	ET-UP AND OTHER	WORK				
1.	24 - Justice, Freedom and Security	Implementing the Action Plan on Fight Against Organized Crime (2019-2021) Efficiently	Council Framework Decision 2008/841/JHA of 24 October 2008 on the fight against organised crime	11th Development Plan 2.5.1.2. Security Services	It is aimed to provide an overall framework in line with the guiding principles, in order to fight against organized crime efficiently.	Ministry of Interior	2021
2.	24- Justice, Freedom and Security	Putting into Force the "Target Time Practice" in the Council of Forensic Medicine	Council Framework Decision 2009/905/JHA of 30 November 2009 on accreditation of forensic service providers carrying out laboratory activities	11th Development Plan 2.5.1.1. Justice Services, 748. Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 4: Enhancing Performance and Productivity	It is aimed to increase the transparency of the judicial system and to protect the right to trial in a reasonable time more efficiently.	Ministry of Justice	2021
3.	24 - Justice, Freedom and Security	Implementing efficiently the 2020-2022 Action Plan against Illegal Trafficking of	Council Framework Decision 2008/841/JHA of 24 October 2008 on the fight against organised crime	Action Plan on the Fight against Organised Crime (2019-2021) Objective 1: Ensuring an effective and	It is aimed to provide an overall framework in line with the guiding principles, in order to efficiently fight against illegal trafficking of	Ministry of Interior	2021-2022

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
		Historical Artifacts		productive coordination and cooperation among the units involved in the fight against organized crime in order to increase the efficiency in this regard	historical artifacts, which is an organized crime.		
4.	24 - Justice, Freedom and Security	Implementing the Action Plan on Fight Against Smuggling of Alcoholic Beverages (2020- 2022)	Council Framework Decision 2008/841/JHA of 24 October 2008 on the fight against organised crime	Action Plan on the Fight against Organised Crime (2019-2021) Objective 1: Ensuring an effective and productive coordination and cooperation among the units involved in the fight against organized crime in order to increase the efficiency in this regard	<u> </u>	Ministry of Interior	2021-2022

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
5.	24 - Justice, Freedom and Security	Increasing the Efficiency of the Law Enforcement Bodies in Fight Against Cybercrime	Directive 2013/40/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 12 August 2013 on attacks against information systems and replacing Council Framework Decision 2005/222/JHA Directive (EU) 2016/1148 of the European Parliament And of The Council of 6 July 2016 concerning measures for a high common level of security of network and information systems across the Union Regulation (EC) No 460/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 10 March 2004 establishing the European Network and Information Security Agency Regulation (EU) 2019/881 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 17 April 2019 on ENISA (the European Union Agency for Cybersecurity) and on information and communications technology	11th Development Plan 2.2.3.5 Information and Communication Technologies, 474, 476 The 2020 Presidential Annual Program 2.2.1.1.8. Critical Technologies Action Plan on the Fight against Organised Crime (2019-2021) Guiding Principle 5: Enhancing the institutional capacity in the fight against organized crime and ensuring the required legal infrastructure	It is aimed to contribute to the strategical measures taken at the national level within the framework of fight against cyber threats which are rapidly expanding in terms of number and nature.	Ministry of Interior	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			cybersecurity certification and repealing Regulation (EU) No 526/2013 (Cybersecurity Act)				
6.	24 - Justice, Freedom and Security	The Project on Increasing the Efficiency of Law Enforcement's Capacity in the Fight Against the Financing of Terrorism and Money Laundering	Commission Communication to the Council, the European Parliament and the European Economic and Social Committee, the prevention of and fight against terrorist financing through enhanced national level coordination and greater transparency of the non-profit sector (COM/2005/620) Directive (EU) 2015/849 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 May 2015 on the prevention of the use of the financial system for the purposes of money laundering or terrorist financing, amending Regulation (EU) No 648/2012 of the European Parliament and of the Council, and repealing Directive	11th Development Plan 2.5.1.2 Security Services 771.1., 771.2. Action Plan on the Fight against Organised Crime (2019-2021) Activity 12.1: Preventing the financing of terrorist organizations from the activities of organized crime and laundering of the proceeds of organized crime	It is aimed to prevent the financing of terrorist organizations from the activities of organized crime and laundering of the proceeds of organized crime.	Ministry of Interior	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			2005/60/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council and Commission Directive 2006/70/EC				
7.	24 - Justice, Freedom and Security	Organization of National and International Seminars on Topics such as Prevention of Financing of Terrorism Terrorist Recruiting and Foreign Terrorist Fighters and Fight against Radicalism.	Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, Preventing Radicalisation to Terrorism and Violent Extremism: Strengthening the EU's Response (COM(2013) 941) Revised EU Strategy for Combating Radicalisation and Recruitment to Terrorism, 19 May 2014 (9956/14) Directive (EU) 2017/541 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 15 March 2017 on combating terrorism and replacing Council Framework Decision 2002/475/JHA and amending	11th Development Plan 2.5.1.2 Security Services 771.1., 771.2. Action Plan on the Fight against Organised Crime (2019-2021) Activity 12.1: Preventing the financing of terrorist organizations from the activities of organized crime and laundering of the proceeds of organized crime	It is aimed to prevent financing of terrorist organizations through activities of organized crime and laundering of proceeds of organized crime.	Ministry of Interior	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Council Decision 2005/671/JHA Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions supporting the prevention of radicalisation leading to violent extremism (COM/2016/0379) Commission Communication to the Council, the European Parliament and the European Parliament and the European Economic and Social Committee, the Prevention of and Fight against Terrorist Financing through enhanced national level coordination and greater transparency of the non-profit sector (COM/2005/620)				

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
8.	24 - Justice, Freedom and Security	Increasing Cash Control Inspections at Border Gates and Airports to Prevent Laundering of the Proceeds of Crime and the Financing of Terrorism, and Organizing Trainings concerning Current Legislation and Practice for the Personnel in Charge	Council Conclusions on Integrated Border Management (4-5 December 2006) Directive (EU) 2015/849 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 May 2015 on the prevention of the use of the financial system for the purposes of money laundering or terrorist financing, amending Regulation (EU) No 648/2012 of the European Parliament and of the Council, and repealing Directive 2005/60/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council and Commission Directive 2006/70/EC	11th Development Plan 2.5.1.2 Security Services 771.1. Action Plan on the Fight against Organised Crime (2019-2021) Objective 12.2.: Increasing cash control inspections at border gates and airports to prevent laundering of the proceeds of crime and the financing of terrorism, and organizing trainings concerning the practice and the current legislation for the personnel in charge	It is aimed to prevent financing of terrorist organizations through activities of organized crime and laundering of proceeds of organized crime.	Ministry of Interior Ministry of Trade	2023

POLICE AND JUDICIAL COOPERATION

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure					
INST	NSTITUTIONAL SET-UP AND OTHER WORK											
1.	Freedom	Enhancing International Legal Assistance and Judicial Cooperation	Council Framework Decision No 584/2002/ JHA of 13 June 2002 on the European arrest warrant and the surrender procedures between Member States Regulation (EU) No 606/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 12 June 2013 on mutual recognition of protection measures in civil matters Council Regulation (EC) No 1206/2001 of 28 May 2001 on cooperation between the courts of the Member States in the taking of evidence in civil or commercial matters Council Decision No 2001/470/EC of 28 May 2001 establishing a European	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 4: Enhancing Performance and Productivity Objective 4.13 Objective 4.14 (f)	It is aimed to enhance international cooperation in the field of cross-border organized crime, terrorism, financing of terrorism, cybercrime, human trafficking, migrant smuggling, laundering of the proceeds of crime and drug trafficking. In this framework, contact points for mutual legal assistance will be designated in courthouses and trainings will be organized.	Ministry of Justice	2022					

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Judicial Network in civil and commercial matters Lugano Convention				
2.	24 - Justice, Freedom and Security	Increasing the Number of Europol Liaison Officers	Regulation (EU) 2016/794 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 11 May 2016 on the European Union Agency for Law Enforcement Cooperation (Europol) and replacing and repealing Council Decisions 2009/371/JHA, 2009/934/JHA, 2009/935/JHA, 2009/936/JHA and 2009/968/JHA	11th Development Plan 2.5.1.2. Security Services, 770.1 2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Interior, 0.1.4, 0.5.3	It is aimed to increase the number of liaison officer working within Europol premises since 21 March 2016 in order to strengthen cooperation with the Europol at technical and strategic level.	Ministry of Interior Ministry of Foreign Affairs	2023
3.	24 - Justice, Freedom and Security	Enhancing Cooperation with the Eurojust	Regulation (EU) 2018/1727 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 14 November 2018 on the European Union Agency for Criminal Justice Cooperation (Eurojust), and replacing and repealing	Judicial Reform Strategy Aim 4, Objective 4.1.4 Enhancing Performance and Productivity	It is aimed to increase the administrative capacity to enhance cooperation with the Eurojust.	Ministry of Justice	2021-2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Council Decision 2002/187/JHA				

26-EDUCATION AND CULTURE

With regard to Chapter on Education and Culture, Turkey submitted the Negotiation Position Paper to the European Commission on 25 May 2006. Regarding this chapter, there are no technical opening benchmarks. This Chapter is one of those unilaterally blocked by the Greek Cypriot Administration of Southern Cyprus.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
LEG	AL ARRANGEME	NTS					
1.	26- Education and Culture	By-law on the Establishment and Working Principles and Procedures of Turkey's National Youth Council	Resolution of the Council of the European Union and the Representatives of the Governments of the Member States meeting within the Council on 26 November 2018 on a framework for European cooperation in the youth field: The European Union Youth Strategy 2019-2027 (2018/C 456/01)	11th Development Plan	Ensuring active participation of young people in society in social, economic and political areas and enabling their personal development, enabling their contribution to policies to be developed in the area of youth, implementing national and international work and projects, assisting the coordination among organisations operating in the field of the youth and in relation with the young people, and increasing participation of the young people in decision making and implementation processes	Ministry of Youth and Sports	2021
2.	26- Education and Culture	Draft Law on the Intangible Cultural Heritage	Regulation (EU) No 1295/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 11 December 2013	11th Development Plan	Efficiently enforcing the legislation on safeguarding of intangible cultural heritage in line with the fundamental principles of	Ministry of Culture and Tourism	2022

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			establishing the Creative Europe Programme (2014 to 2020) and repealing Decisions No 1718/2006/EC, No 1855/2006/EC and No 1041/2009/EC	Action Plan on Cultural Policies (2017-2022)	the EU on encouragement of cultural development and cultural diversity and safeguarding of the cultural heritage, and safeguarding, maintaining and handing down of intangible cultural heritage in Turkey to future generations in line with the 2003 UNESCO Convention for the Safeguarding of Intangible Cultural Heritage		

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure			
INST	NSTITUTIONAL SET-UP AND OTHER WORK									
1.	26- Education and Culture	Directing Children to Sports, Artistic, Cultural and Scientific Activities	Commission Recommendation of 20 February 2013 Investing in children: breaking the cycle of disadvantage (2013/112/EU)	Cooperation protocol signed between the Ministry of Youth and Sports and the Ministry of National Education on 18.04.2019	Encouraging cultural, artistic, scientific and sportive activities that support the physical, social and mental development of children	Ministry of Youth and Sports Ministry of National Education Sports Federations	2021			
2.	26- Education and Culture	Drafting Professional Development Programs to Develop Digital Skills	Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions on the Digital Education Action Plan (COM/2018/022)	11th Development Plan Education Vision: 2023 Economic Reform Programme 2020-22	Improving teachers' digital skills to strengthen online learning opportunities and support face-to-face education	Ministry of National Education	2021			
3.	26- Education and Culture	Providing all teachers, especially computer technologies	Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European	11th Development Plan Education Vision: 2023	Improving teachers' digital skills to strengthen online learning opportunities	Ministry of National Education	2021			

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
		teachers, with international software-coding trainings under the European Framework for the Digital Competence of Educators	Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions on the Digital Education Action Plan (COM/2018/022)	Economic Reform Programme 2020-22	and support face-to-face education		
4.	26- Education and Culture	Supporting the Participation of Turkish Art and Artists in International Artistic Mobility	Regulation (EU) No 1295/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 11 December 2013 establishing the Creative Europe Programme (2014 to 2020) and repealing Decisions No 1718/2006/EC, No 1855/2006/EC and No 1041/2009/EC	11th Development Plan Action Plan on Cultural Policies (2017-2022)	Handing down cultural richness and diversity to future generations preserving and improving them, popularizing cultural and artistic activities, and increasing the multidimensional effect of culture on development	Ministry of Culture and Tourism	2021
5.	26- Education and Culture	Extending Sports Education	Commission Recommendation of 20 February 2013 Investing in children: breaking the	Cooperation protocol signed between the Ministry of Youth and Sports and the Ministry	Extending sports education from pre- school to primary and secondary education levels and directing	Ministry of Youth and Sports	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			cycle of disadvantage (2013/112/EU)	of National Education on 18.04.2019	children to various sports branches	Ministry of National Education Sports Federations	
6.	26- Education and Culture	Popularizing Cultural, Artistic, Scientific and Sports Activities among Children	Commission Recommendation of 20 February 2013 Investing in children: breaking the cycle of disadvantage (2013/112/EU)	Cooperation protocol signed between the Ministry of Youth and Sports and the Ministry of National Education on 18.04.2019	Encouraging cultural, artistic, scientific and sportive activities that support the physical, social and mental development of children	Ministry of Youth and Sports Ministry of National Education Sports Federations	2021
7.	26- Education and Culture	Improving the Practice of Vocational Guidance by Athletes following their Sports Career	EU Guidelines of 16 November 2012 on Dual Careers of Athletes - Recommended Policy Actions in Support of Dual Careers in High- Performance Sport		Ensuring the contribution of professional athletes to sports or other fields following their sports career as active and productive individuals	-	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
8.	26- Education and Culture	Completing TUYEP VOC-Test Centres – III Grant Scheme	European Qualifications Framework Recommendation of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23 April 2008 on the establishment of the European Qualifications Framework for lifelong learning (2008/C 111/01)		Improving vocational education in order to increase the quality of the labour force	Vocational Qualifications Authority	2023
9.	26- Education and Culture	Applying Turkey Qualifications Framework in compliance with the European Qualifications Framework ¹³	Recommendation of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23 April 2008 on the establishment of the European Qualifications Framework for lifelong learning (2008/C 111/01)		Revising Referencing Report of Turkey in line with current international developments, associating Turkey's Competency Database (TYVT) with the Europass portal and promoting transparency of qualifications and their recognition among different countries and enabling a comparison	Vocational Qualifications Authority Council of Higher Education	2023

¹³ Applying Turkey Qualifications Framework in compliance with the European Qualifications Framework is also referred to in Chapter 3 on Right of Establishment and Freedom to Provide Services.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
					with other National Qualifications Frameworks by drafting Turkey's Report on the Validation of Non-formal and Informal Learning	Ministry of National Education	
10.	26- Education and Culture	Applying and extending Europass ¹⁴	Decision (EU) 2018/646 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 18 April 2018 on a common framework for the provision of better services for skills and qualifications (Europass) and repealing Decision No 2241/2004/EC		Providing services in 29 languages free of charge for individuals on how to store all their learning histories and experiences in a secure online environment, how to prepare e-portfolios and CVs and on how to share these with third parties; and facilitating individuals' access to information, data, tools and services as well as to the relevant national authorities and organizations with regard to establishment, working, education and	Vocational Qualifications Authority Council of Higher Education Ministry of National Education	2023

_

 $^{^{14}}$ Applying and extending Europass is also referred to in Chapter 3 on Right of Establishment and Freedom to Provide Services.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
					living in Europe through the Europass Portal and promoting the mobility		
11.	26- Education and Culture	Ensuring Quality Assurance of Higher Education Programs	European Qualifications Framework Recommendation of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23 April 2008 on the establishment of the European Qualifications Framework for lifelong learning (2008/C 111/01)	11th Development Plan Economic Reform Programme (2020-22)	Ensuring the quality assurance of formal, open and distance education diploma programs in higher education, defining and applying quality assurance criteria	Higher Education Quality Council	2023

27- ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE CHANGE

Chapter 27 on the Environment and Climate Change was opened to accession negotiations on 21 December 2009 during the Swedish Presidency. Regarding this chapter, there are 5 technical closing benchmarks:

- 1. Turkey adopts legislation aimed at transposing the EU's horizontal and framework environmental legislation, including its transboundary aspects.
- 2. Turkey adopts legislation aimed at transposing the acquis in the field of water quality, notably its Framework Water Protection Law; establishes River Basin Protection Action Plans; and makes further significant progress in legislative alignment in this sector by adopting implementing legislation.
- 3. Turkey adopts legislation aimed at transposing the acquis in the field of industrial pollution control and risk management.
- 4. Turkey continues its alignment with the acquis in the remaining sectors of this Chapter, including nature protection and waste management, in line with the Plan for Setting up Necessary Administrative Capacities at National, Regional and Local Level and Required Financial Resources for Implementing the Environmental Acquis and demonstrates that it will be fully prepared to ensure the implementation and enforcement of the EU requirements at the date of accession.
- 5. Turkey continues capacity building of the administrative bodies at all levels, including inspection services, in line with the Plan for Setting up Necessary Administrative Capacities at National, Regional and Local Level and Required Financial Resources for Implementing the Environmental Acquis, further improves coordination of work and demonstrates that all appropriate administrative structures will be in place in good time before accession to enable implementation and enforcement of the acquis in all sectors of this Chapter.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure			
LEGA	GAL ARRANGEMENTS									
1.	27- Environment and Climate Change	By-law on the Export and Import of Hazardous Chemicals	Regulation (EU) No 649/2012 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 4 July 2012 concerning the export and import of hazardous chemicals	EU Integrated Environmental Approximation Strategy (2016-2023) 2018-2022 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Environment and Urbanization	Establishing national decision making processes concerning the import and export of chemicals and preventing possible negative effects of some dangerous chemicals on human health and the environment	Ministry of Environment and Urbanization	2021			
2.	27- Environment and Climate Change	Amending the Bylaw on Environmental Monitoring (OG: 21.11.2008/ 27061)	Directive 2010/75/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 24 November 2010 on industrial emissions Recommendation of the European Parliament and of the Council of 4 April 2001 providing for minimum criteria for environmental inspections in the	EU Integrated Environmental Approximation Strategy (2016- 2023) 2018-2022 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Environment and Urbanization	Regulating the procedures and principles of environmental monitoring, qualifications of the monitoring personnel, obligation of the industrial enterprise to recruit environment officer / have an environmental management unit in the process beginning with the operation of the facility or start of the activity to the end, with the aim of protecting the environment	Ministry of Environment and Urbanization	2021			

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Member States (2001/331/EC)				
3.	27- Environment and Climate Change	Establishing the infrastructure in Turkey for "Europe Pollutant Release and Transfer Registration (E-PRTR)" and drafting of the related national legislation	Regulation (EC) No 166/2006 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 18 January 2006 concerning the establishment of a European Pollutant Release and Transfer Register and amending Council Directives 91/689/EEC and 96/61/EC	EU Integrated Environmental Approximation Strategy (2016- 2023) 2018-2022 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Environment and Urbanization	Establishing the infrastructure in Turkey for "Europe Pollutant Release and Transfer Registration (E-PRTR)" and drafting of the related national legislation	Ministry of Environment and Urbanization	2021
4.	27- Environment and Climate Change	Amending the By- law on the Control of Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (OG: 22.5.2012/28300)	Directive 2011/65/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 8 June 2011 on the restriction of the use of certain hazardous substances in electrical and electronic equipment Directive (EU) 2017/2102 of the	EU Integrated Environmental Approximation Strategy (2016 2023) 2023 Targets	Reducing the quantities of hazardous substances in the manufacturing of electrical and electronic equipment, ensuring separate collection of them, apart from domestic waste and other type of waste, and regulating their shipment and disposal by revising the By-law on the Control of Waste Electrical and Electronic	Ministry of Environment and Urbanization Ministry of Trade Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			European Parliament and of the Council of 15 November 2017 amending Directive 2011/65/EU on the restriction of the use of certain hazardous substances in electrical and electronic equipment Directive 2012/19/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 4 July 2012 on waste electrical and electronic equipment	National Waste Management and Action Plan 11th Development Plan	Equipment (OG: 22.5.2012/28300)		
5.	27- Environment and Climate Change	Amending the By- law on the Control of Waste Batteries and Accumulators (OG:31.08.2004/25 569)	Directive 2006/66/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 6 September 2006 on batteries and accumulators and waste batteries and accumulators and repealing Directive 91/157/EEC	EU Integrated Environmental Approximation Strategy (2016 2023) 2023 Targets National Waste Management and Action Plan	Reducing the quantities of hazardous substances in the manufacturing of batteries and accumulators, ensuring separate collection of them, apart from domestic waste and other type of waste, and regulating their shipment and disposal by revising the By-law on the Control of Waste Batteries and Accumulators (OG:31.08.2004/25569)	Ministry of Environment and Urbanization Ministry of Trade Ministry of Industry and Technology	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
				11th Development Plan Development Plan			
6.	27- Environment and Climate Change	Communiqué on Hydromorphologic al Monitoring	Directive 2000/60/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23 October 2000 establishing a framework for Community action in the field of water policy (Water Framework Directive)	National Water Plan (2019-2023) 11th Development Plan 2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry Articles 410 and 421 of the Presidential Decree No. 1 on the Organization of the Presidency, published in the Official Gazette No. 30474 dated 10.07.2018	Determining the procedures and principles for national hydromorphological monitoring studies	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
				National Basin Management Strategy (2014- 2023)			
7.	27- Environment and Climate Change	Law on Conservation of Biodiversity	Council Directive 92/43/EEC of 21 May 1992 on the conservation of natural habitats and of wild fauna and flora Directive 2009/147/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 30 November 2009 on the conservation of wild birds Regulation (EU) No 511/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 April 2014 on compliance measures for users from the Nagoya Protocol on Access to Genetic	2023 Targets 11th Development Plan	Regulating the procedures and principles on the conservation and sustainable use of nature, natural habitats and biological diversity, raising people's awareness of the nature and supporting activities to increase public contribution to environment protection Introducing legal arrangements to ensure efficient conservation of the nature and biodiversity and also inter-institutional coordination for the elimination of gaps and uncertainties in the protected area management Complying with the EU Regulation published in 2014 to implement the Nagoya Protocol on Access to Genetic Resources and Benefit Sharing	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			Resources and the Fair and Equitable Sharing of Benefits Arising from their Utilization in the Union Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) 2015/1866 of 13 October 2015 laying down detailed rules for the implementation of Regulation (EU) No 511/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council as regards the register of collections, monitoring user compliance and best practices				
8.	27- Environment and Climate Change	Water Law	Directive 2000/60/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23 October 2000 establishing a framework for Community action in the field of water policy	National Water Plan (2019-2023) EU Integrated Environmental Approximation	Making plans at the basin level for the protection, improvement, and sustainable utilisation of water resources; determining and monitoring the priorities with regard to usage and allocation of water	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			(Water Framework Directive)	Strategy (2016-2023) National Basin Management Strategy (2015-2023) Agriculture and Forestry Council (2019)	resources and ensuring integrity in water management		
9.	27- Environment and Climate Change	Environmental Liability Law	Directive 2004/35/CE of the European Parliament and of the Council of 21 April 2004 on environmental liability with regard to the prevention and remedying of environmental damage	EU Integrated Environmental Approximation Strategy (2016- 2023)	Preventing and eliminating the environmental damage; and ensuring the financial compensation of the damage by the enterprises whose activities led to environmental damage	Ministry of Environment and Urbanization	2023
10.	27- Environment and Climate Change	Law on Flood Management	Directive 2007/60/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23 October 2007 on the assessment and management of flood risks		Making necessary arrangements to control or mitigate the negative effects of floods on safety of life and property, public health, environment, soil, cultural	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
					heritage and social and economic activities		
11.	27- Environment and Climate Change	By-laws to be issued for the implementation of the Law on Conservation of Biodiversity	Council Directive 92/43/EEC of 21 May 1992 on the conservation of natural habitats and of wild fauna and flora Directive 2009/147/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 30 November 2009 on the conservation of wild birds	2023 Targets 11th Development Plan	Clarifying certain articles of the Law on the Conservation of Biodiversity; and ensuring their effective implementation	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023
12.	27- Environment and Climate Change	By-law on the Definition, Identification, Prevention and Management of Threats Caused by Invasive Alien Species	Regulation (EU) No 1143/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 22 October 2014 on the prevention and management of the introduction and spread of invasive alien species		Identifying the invasive alien species which give damage to the indigenous species of sea, coastal and inland waters ecosystems, nature, economy and human health; and preventing and controlling of their introduction to ecosystems; and minimizing the adverse effects of and managing these species	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
13.	27- Environment and Climate Change	By-law on Ship Recycling	Regulation (EU) No 1257/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 November 2013 on ship recycling and amending Regulation (EC) No 1013/2006 and Directive 2009/16/EC	EU Integrated Environmental Approximation Strategy (2016- 2023)	Complying with the EU standards in the practices on the safety, security and protection of environment in ship recycling activities, and in requirements for authorisation of plants	Ministry of Transport and Infrastructure Ministry of Environment and Urbanization	2023
14.	27- Environment and Climate Change	By-law on Integrated Pollution Prevention and Control	Directive 2010/75/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 24 November 2010 on industrial emissions (Chapter I and II)	EU Integrated Environmental Approximation Strategy (2016- 2023) 2018-2022 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Environment and Urbanization	Determining the procedures and principles for the implementation of the legislation on integrated pollution prevention and control	Ministry of Environment and Urbanization	2023
15.	27- Environment and Climate Change	By-law on Making Available on the Market and Use of Biocidal Products	Regulation (EU) No 528/2012 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 22 May 2012 concerning the making available on	National Action Plan (2016-2019)	Ensuring high level protection of environment, animal and human health; and improving the market functioning by regulating the rules concerning the making available on the	Ministry of Health Directorate General of Public Health	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			the market and use of biocidal products		market and use of biocidal products		
16.	27- Environment and Climate Change	By-law on Limitation of Emissions of Volatile Organic Compounds due to the Use of Organic Solvents in Certain Activities and Installations	Council Directive 1999/13/EC of 11 March 1999 on the limitation of emissions of volatile organic compounds due to the use of organic solvents in certain activities and installations (Latest Version of the Directive)	EU Integrated Environmental Approximation Strategy (2016- 2023) 2018-2022 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Environment and Urbanization	Determining the procedures and principles for the limitation of emissions of volatile organic compounds due to the use of organic solvents in certain activities and installations	Ministry of Environment and Urbanization	2023
17.	27- Environment and Climate Change	By-law on Limitation of Emissions of Volatile Organic Compounds due to the Use of Organic Solvents in Certain Paints and Varnishes and Vehicle Refinishing Products	Directive 2004/42/CE of the European Parliament and of the Council of 21 April 2004 on the limitation of emissions of volatile organic compounds due to the use of organic solvents in certain paints and varnishes and vehicle refinishing	EU Integrated Environmental Approximation Strategy (2016- 2023) 2018-2022 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of	Determining the procedures and principles for the limitation of emissions of volatile organic compounds due to the use of organic solvents in certain paints and varnishes and vehicle refinishing products	Ministry of Environment and Urbanization	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			products and amending Directive 1999/13/EC	Environment and Urbanization			
18.	27- Environment and Climate Change	Amending the Bylaw on Air Quality Assessment and Management (OG: 06.06.2008/26898)	Directive 2008/50/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 21 May 2008 on ambient air quality and cleaner air for Europe	EU Integrated Environmental Approximation Strategy (2016- 2023) 2018-2022 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Environment and Urbanization	Aligning with the Directive which is amended following the publication of the current bylaw, and which includes ambient air quality parameters and limit values	Ministry of Environment and Urbanization	2023
19.	27- Environment and Climate Change	Amending the By- law on the Control of Air Pollution Caused by Industry (O.G. 20.12.2014/29211)	Directive 2010/75/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 24 November 2010 on industrial emissions	EU Integrated Environmental Approximation Strategy (2016- 2023) 2018-2022 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Environment and Urbanization	Aligning the By-law amending the By-law on the Control of Air Pollution Caused by Industry with the Industrial Emissions Directive Chapter III	Ministry of Environment and Urbanization	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
20.	27- Environment and Climate Change	By-law on National Emission Ceilings	Directive 2001/81/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23 October 2001 on national emission ceilings for certain atmospheric pollutants	EU Integrated Environmental Approximation Strategy (2016- 2023) 2018-2022 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Environment and Urbanization	Determining the national emission ceilings for atmospheric pollutants laid down in Directive 2001/81/EC	Ministry of Environment and Urbanization	2023
21.	27- Environment and Climate Change	By-law on the Quality of Irrigation Water and Reuse of Waste Water	Directive 2000/60/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23 October 2000 establishing a framework for Community action in the field of water policy (Water Framework Directive) Regulation (EU) 2020/741 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 25 May 2020 on minimum	National Water Plan (2019-2023)	Determining the principles and procedures for monitoring the quality of water resources used in irrigation, preserving the water resources in good state, identifying the measures to be taken to improve the quality of water resources which are of poor quality, protecting the waste water from the receiving environments, improving the quality of waste water, reusing the waste water particularly for the purpose of irrigation	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			requirements for water reuse				
22.	27- Environment and Climate Change	By-law amending the By-law on Surface Water Quality Management	Directive 2000/60/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23 October 2000 establishing a framework for Community action in the field of water policy (Water Framework Directive) Directive 2008/105/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 December 2008 on environmental quality standards in the field of water policy, amending and subsequently repealing Council Directives 82/176/EEC, 83/513/EEC, 84/491/EEC, 84/491/EEC, 86/280/EEC and	11th Development Plan National Water Plan (2019-2023) National Basin Management Strategy (NBMS) (2014-2023)	Having regard to the situation of the country, updating the specific pollutants laid down in the By-law, and transposing into the national legislation the amendments to be made to the priority list of the EU	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			amending Directive 2000/60/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council Directive 2013/39/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 12 August 2013 amending Directives 2000/60/EC and 2008/105/EC as regards priority substances in the field of water policy				
23.	27- Environment and Climate Change	By-law on Monitoring Greenhouse Gas Emissions	Directive 2003/87/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 13 October 2003 establishing a scheme for greenhouse gas emission allowance trading within the Community and amending Council Directive 96/61/EC	EU Integrated Environmental Approximation Strategy (2016- 2023)	Determining the procedures and principles for monitoring greenhouse gases in order to prepare a national greenhouse inventory	Ministry of Environment and Urbanization Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources Ministry of Transport and Infrastructure	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
						Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	
						Ministry of Industry and Technology	
						Ministry of Trade	
						Turkish Statistical Institute	

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementatio n of the Measure
	INSTITUTIONAL S	ET-UP AND OTHER W	ORK				
1.	27- Environment and Climate Change	Preparing the Green Deal Action Plan	Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the European Council, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions, the European Green Deal COM/2019/640 final	11th Development Plan 2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Trade	The Green Deal, introduced in line with EU's objective to become the first climateneutral continent, constitutes a new growth strategy that requires the transformation of the EU industry. Drafting an Action Plan to support green transition of Turkish industry, and to ensure the development of cooperation opportunities with the EU and EU sectors in line with Turkey's close economic integration with the EU which is ensured by the customs union	Ministry of Trade Relevant institutions	2021
2.	27- Environment and Climate Change	Completion of Flood Management Plans	Directive 2007/60/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23 October 2007 on the assessment and management of flood risks	National Water Plan (2019-2023) National Basin Management Strategy (NBMS) (2014-2023)	Completing Flood Management Plans for all basins of Turkey in line with the Directive 2007/60/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23 October 2007 on the assessment and management of flood risks	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementatio n of the Measure
3.	27- Environment and Climate Change	Sewage Sludge Management	Council Directive 86/278/EEC of 12 June 1986 on the protection of the environment, and in particular of the soil, when sewage sludge is used in agriculture	National Waste Management and Action Plan	Establishing a roadmap for detecting, processing, reuse/recycling and disposing of the sewage sludge amount that occurs or expected occur in wastewater treatment plants, in order to ensure a sustainable and effective sewage sludge management in Turkey.	Ministry of Environment and Urbanization	2023
4.	27- Environment and Climate Change	Emissions Control Strategy Document	Directive 2001/81/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23 October 2001 on national emission ceilings for certain atmospheric pollutants	EU Integrated Environmental Approximation Strategy (2016-2023)	Establishing a roadmap to be followed in the determination and implementation process of emission ceilings, and determining the steps that should be taken by the relevant institutions	Ministry of Environment and Urbanization	2023
5.	27- Environment and Climate Change	Regulatory Impact Assessment on Biocidal Products	Regulation (EU) No 528/2012 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 22 May 2012 concerning the making available on the market and use of biocidal products	EU Integrated Environmental Approximation Strategy (2016- 2023)	Identifying the effects of the changes on the market and relevant parties, following the alignment with the Regulation (EU) No 528/2012 concerning biocidal products	Ministry of Health	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementatio n of the Measure
6.	27- Environment and Climate Change	National Flood Management Strategy Document and Action Plan	Directive 2007/60/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23 October 2007 on the assessment and management of flood risks		Determining a result-oriented policy on sustainable flood management supported by concrete objectives; defining the objectives in cooperation with responsible institutions; determining the strategy and activities required for ensuring a coordinated and participatory approach of the public sector, private sector, civil society organisations and scientific institutions	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023
7.	27- Environment and Climate Change	Developing and Widely Using a National Decision Support System Software for Sustainable Management of Water Resources	Directive 2000/60/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23 October 2000 establishing a framework for Community action in the field of water policy (Water Framework Directive)	National Water Plan (2019-2023)	Developing and extending the usage of HIDROTURK model which is created for Turkey through a national software infrastructure, and designed for the management of water resources in Turkey at level of basins with regard to quantity and quality, in accordance with the Water Framework Directive 2000/60/EC	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementatio n of the Measure
8.	27- Environment and Climate Change	Completion of Sectoral Water Allocation Plans	Directive 2000/60/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23 October 2000 establishing a framework for Community action in the field of water policy (Water Framework Directive)	National Water Plan (2019-2023) National Basin Management Strategy (NBMS) (2014-2023) 3. Agriculture and Forestry Council (2019-2024) 11th Development Plan	Completing Sectoral Water Allocation Plans for all basins, in accordance with Water Framework Directive 2000/60/EC and other related directives	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023
9.	27- Environment and Climate Change	Completion of Agricultural Action Plans for Nitrate Vulnerable Zones which will be determined pursuant to By-law on the Protection of Waters Against Pollution Caused by Nitrates from Agricultural Sources	Council Directive 91/676/EEC of 12 December 1991 concerning the protection of waters against pollution caused by nitrates from agricultural sources	11th Development Plan 2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry Agriculture and Forestry Council Action Plan	Establishing action plans for the implementation of the By- law on the Protection of Waters Against Pollution Caused by Nitrates from Agricultural Sources in Turkey, and extending their implementation	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementatio n of the Measure
		Completion of Drought Management Plans	Directive 2000/60/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23 October 2000 establishing a framework for Community action in the field of water policy (Water Framework Directive)	(2019-2023)	Completing Drought Management Plans for all basins, in accordance with the Water Framework Directive 2000/60/EC and other related directives	Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry	2023

28- CONSUMER AND HEALTH PROTECTION

Chapter 28 on Consumer and Health Protection was opened to accession negotiations on 19 December 2007 during the Portuguese Presidency. Regarding this chapter, there are 5 technical closing benchmarks:

- 1. Turkey revises its current legislation on general product safety and further amends its legislation on consumer protection in order to align with the acquis (including on consumer sales, unfair contract terms, distance selling, doorstep selling, price indication, package travel, timeshare, consumer credit, injunctions, distance marketing of financial services and unfair commercial practices) and demonstrates that adequate administrative structures and enforcement capacity, such as the necessary means to participate in the Community's Rapid Alert System (RAPEX), will be in place to implement them correctly by the time of accession.
- 2. Turkey adopts the legislation aiming at transposing the Commission implementing directives in the area of technical requirements for blood and blood components, traceability requirements and notification of serious adverse reactions and events and of a quality system for blood establishments. Turkey demonstrates that it will have the adequate administrative capacity to properly implement and enforce this legislation by the time of accession.
- 3. Turkey adopts the legislation aiming at transposing the acquis on tissues and cells, especially with regard to record keeping for 30 years, reproductive cells, reporting of serious adverse events and reactions, data protection and standard operating procedures for processing and testing of cells and tissues. Turkey demonstrates that it will have the adequate administrative capacity to properly implement and enforce this legislation by the time of accession.
- 4. Turkey achieves substantive progress in transposing tobacco products regulation acquis, especially by focusing on high tar yields and oral tobacco, as well as in transposing the tobacco advertising acquis.
- 5. Turkey demonstrates that adequate institutional and administrative capacity will be in place to fulfil by the time of accession, EU reporting and coordination obligations including participation in the Early Warning Response System (EWRS) in the field of communicable diseases.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure				
LEGA	LEGAL ARRANGEMENTS										
1.	28 - Consumer and Health Protection	By-law on General Product Safety ¹⁵	Directive 2001/95/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 3 December 2001 on general product safety	The 2019 Presidential Annual Program Measure 272. The legislation on product safety and technical regulations will be updated.	Effectively enforcing the Law No. 7223 on Product Safety and Technical Regulations with the expansion of the protection shield over the consumer products and the harmonization with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Trade	2021				
2.	28 - Consumer and Health Protection	By-law on Market Surveillance ¹⁶	Regulation (EC) No 765/2008 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 9 July 2008 setting out the requirements for accreditation and market surveillance relating to the marketing of products	11th Development Plan 313.11. In the field of Market Surveillance and Inspection (MSI), the duties and responsibilities of the relevant institutions will be clarified, and the effectiveness and efficiency of the MSI activities will be improved by enhancing the cooperation of	implementation by taking the relevant EU legislation into account. The Law No. 7223 on Product Safety and	Ministry of Trade	2021				

 $^{^{15}}$ By-law on General Product Safety is also referred to in Chapter 1 on Free Movement of Goods. 16 By-law on Market Surveillance is also referred to in Chapter 1 on Free Movement of Goods.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			2019/1020 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 June 2019 on market surveillance and compliance of products and	the private sector and NGOs with authorized bodies 313.12. The efficient use of national and international databases will be ensured to increase efficiency in MSI activities for the products that do not comply with technical legislation. The 2019 Presidential Annual Program Measure 272. The legislation on product safety and technical regulations will be updated.	published by the EU in 2008 and the Goods Package published in 2019, was published in the Official Gazette No. 31066 of 5 March 2020.		
3.	28 - Consumer and Health Protection	Amending the Bylaw on Organ and Tissue Transplantation Services (OG: 01.02.2012/28191)	Directive 2010/53/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 7 July 2010 on standards of quality and safety of human organs intended for transplantation	11th Development Plan (2019-2023) 583. The capacity of specialized health services such as emergency health, intensive care, oncology, organ transplantation services will be increased and	Making arrangements in a number of areas including basic principles for organ quality and safety, organ and donor characterization, informed consent, organ transport procedures, storing data for 30 years	Ministry of Health	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
				their speed and quality will be improved.	for traceability, serious adverse event and reporting and protection of personal data		
4.	28 - Consumer and Health Protection	Amending the Bylaw on Quality and Safety of Human Tissues and Cells and Related Centres (OG: 27.10.2010/27742)	Commission Directive 2012/39/EU of 26 November 2012 amending Directive 2006/17/EC as regards certain technical requirements for the testing of human tissues and cells Commission Decision of 3 August 2010 establishing guidelines concerning the conditions of inspections and control measures, and on the training and qualification of officials, in the field of human tissues and		Setting standards for the technical materials to be used in testing of human tissues and cells and identifying inspection and control measures thereof	Ministry of Health	2021

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			cells provided for in Directive 2004/23/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council (notified under document C(2010) 5278)				
5.	28 - Consumer and Health Protection	Making appropriate legal arrangements with regard to serious cross-border threats to health	Decision No 1082/2013/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 22 October 2013 on serious cross-border threats to health and repealing Decision No 2119/98/EC		Epidemiological monitoring of cross-border threats to health, ensuring early warning and contributing to the responses to such threats	Ministry of Health Ministry of Environment and Urbanization Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry Disaster and Emergency Management Presidency	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
6.	28 - Consumer and Health Protection	By-law on Package Travel Contracts	Directive (EU) 2015/2302 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 25 November 2015 on package travel and linked travel arrangements, amending Regulation (EC) No 2006/2004 and Directive 2011/83/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council and repealing Council Directive 90/314/EEC		Complying with the relevant EU legislation	Ministry of Trade	2023

29- CUSTOMS UNION

Screening Report for Chapter 29 on Customs Union was communicated to Turkey on 11 May 2007 by the German Presidency. The Chapter is one of the 8 chapters that are blocked due to the Council Decision requiring full implementation of the Additional Protocol. Regarding this chapter, there is 1 technical opening benchmark:

1. Elimination of the customs duty relief by Turkey for those goods covered by Decision 1/95 of the EC-Turkey Association Council sold in duty-free shops to travellers entering into its customs territory.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
LEG	AL ARRANGEN	MENTS					
1.	29 - Customs Union	Amending Customs Law No.4458 (OG: 04.11.1999/23 866)	Regulation (EU) No 952/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 9 October 2013 laying down the Union Customs Code	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Trade The Strategic Plan includes the risk of decrease in the competitiveness of the tradesman in the EU market and in the countries where the EU has signed an FTA in case the EU Customs Legislation is not undertaken. 2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Trade Objective 5.3. Smooth and effective functioning of the preferential regime on agricultural products and the existing Customs Union between Turkey and the EU will be ensured and efforts to update the Customs Union will continue. Performance Indicator 5.3.3: Alignment with the Union Customs Code will be ensured. Alignment with the implementing regulations of	Complying with the EU legislation on Union Customs Code, through the adoption of new Customs Law of Turkey	Ministry of Trade	2023

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
2.	29 - Customs Union	Amending the By-law on Customs (OG: 07.10.2009/27 369-bis)	Delegated and Implementing Acts of the European Commission related to the Union Customs Code Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/2446 of 28 July 2015 supplementing Regulation (EU) No 952/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council as regards detailed rules concerning certain provisions of the Union Customs Code Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) 2015/2447 of 24 November 2015 laying down detailed rules for implementing certain	the Union Customs Code will be ensured. 2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Trade The Strategic Plan includes the risk of decrease in the competitiveness of the tradesman in the EU market and in the countries where the EU has signed an FTA in case the EU Customs Legislation is not undertaken. 2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Trade Objective 5.3. Smooth and effective functioning of the preferential regime on agricultural products and the existing Customs Union between Turkey and the EU will be ensured and efforts to	implementation procedures through secondary legislation following the adoption of the new Customs Law	Ministry of Trade	2023
			provisions of Regulation (EU) No 952/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council	update the Customs Union will continue.			

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
			laying down the Union Customs Code Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2016/341 of 17 December 2015 supplementing Regulation (EU) No 952/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council as regards transitional rules for certain provisions of the Union Customs Code where the relevant electronic systems are not yet operational and amending Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/2446	Performance Indicator 5.3.3: Alignment with the Union Customs Code will be ensured. Alignment with the implementing regulations of the Union Customs Code will be ensured.			

N	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
3.	29 - Customs Union	2006/10895 on the Procedures	Decision No. 1/2006 of the EC-Turkey Customs Cooperation Committee of 26 September 2006 laying down detailed rules for the application of Decision No 1/95 of the EC-Turkey Association Council		Revision and simplification of the legislation in question	Ministry of Trade	2023

30-EXTERNAL RELATIONS

Screening Report for Chapter 30 on External Relations has not been officially communicated to Turkey. The Chapter is one of the 8 chapters that are blocked due to the Council Decision requiring full implementation of the Additional Protocol.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
LEG	AL ARRANGEN	MENTS					
1.	30- External Relations	By-laws on Association Council Decisions on amending the Protocols of Origin Annexed to the Free Trade Agreements between EFTA, Bosnia- Herzegovina, Georgia, Montenegro, Albania and Kosovo, as referring to the Regional Convention on Pan- Euro-Mediterranean Preferential Rules of Origin	countries		Undertaking preferential trade regime within the context of the EU Common Commercial Policy	Ministry of Trade	2021

32- FINANCIAL CONTROL

Chapter 32 on Financial Control was opened to accession negotiations on 26 June 2007 during the German Presidency, and had no opening benchmarks. Regarding this chapter, there are 6 technical closing benchmarks:

- 1. Adoption and implementation of PIFC legislation and of the relevant policies in accordance with the comprehensive PIFC policy paper to be adopted, supported by adequate implementation capacities.
- 2. Adoption and implementation of policies and legislation to guarantee the functioning of the Turkish Court of Accounts in line with the INTOSAI standards and guidelines.
- 3. Alignment of the Turkish Criminal Code with the protection of the EU's financial interests (PIF) Convention and its protocols (fulfilled, however it requires a revision, as the acquis on this area has been updated).
- 4. Setting up an effective and efficient coordination service to guarantee the fulfilment of obligations arising from article 280 (3) of the treaty establishing the European community and application of the provisions of Regulation (EC) No. 2185/96 concerning the on-the-spot checks and inspections carried out by the Commission, in particular the obligations of assistance to Commission inspectors from the day of accession at the latest (fulfilled).
- 5. Legislative and administrative alignment with Council Regulation 1338/2001 laying down measures necessary for the protection of the Euro against counterfeiting, applicable from the day of accession at the latest (fulfilled).
- 6. Legislative and administrative alignment with Council Regulation (EC) No. 2182/2004 concerning medals and tokens similar to euro coins, applicable from the day of accession at the latest.

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
LEC	GAL ARRANGEN	MENTS					
1.	32- Financial Control	The Law Amending the Decree Law No. 234 on the Establishment and Duties of General Directorate of Mint and Printing Office (OG: 18.06.1984/18435)	Council Regulation (EC) No 2182/2004 of 6 December 2004 concerning medals and tokens similar to euro coins		Introducing legal arrangements, for the protection of the euro against counterfeiting, with regard to medals and tokens similar to euro coins, produced by the private sector	Ministry of Treasury and Finance	2021
2.	32- Financial Control	Amending the Law No. 1264 on the Production Of Coins And Commemorative Coins (OG: 06.06.1970/ 13512)	Council Regulation (EC) No 2182/2004 of 6 December 2004 concerning medals and tokens similar to euro coins		Introducing legal arrangements, for the protection of the euro against counterfeiting, with regard to medals and tokens similar to euro coins, produced by the private sector	Ministry of Treasury and Finance	2021
3.	32- Financial Control	Amending the By-law on the Production and Sale of Commemorative Coins and Commemorative Medals	Council Regulation (EC) No 2182/2004 of 6 December 2004 concerning medals and tokens similar to euro coins		Introducing legal arrangements, for the protection of the euro against counterfeiting, with regard to medals and tokens similar to	Ministry of Treasury and Finance	2021

		(OG: 26.09.1996/22769)			euro coins, produced by the private sector		
4.	32- Financial Control	Amending the procedures and principles on internal control and ex-ante financial control (OG:31.12.2005/26040-3rd bis)	Regulation (EU, Euratom) 2018/1046 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 18 July 2018 on the financial rules applicable to the general budget of the Union, amending Regulations (EU) No 1296/2013, (EU) No 1301/2013, (EU) No 1304/2013, (EU) No 1309/2013, (EU) No 1316/2013, (EU) No 223/2014, (EU) No 283/2014, and Decision No 541/2014/EU and repealing Regulation (EU, Euratom) No 966/2012		Consolidating and simplifying the secondary legislation on internal control system established for aligning with the EU	Ministry of Treasury and Finance	2023
5.	32- Financial Control	Amending the Communiqué on Public Internal Control Standards (OG: 26.12.2007/26738)	Regulation (EU, Euratom) 2018/1046 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 18 July 2018 on the financial rules applicable to the general budget of the Union, amending	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Treasury and Finance		Ministry of Treasury and Finance	2023

	Regulations (EU) No 1296/2013, (EU) No 1301/2013, (EU) No 1303/2013, (EU) No 1304/2013, (EU) No 1309/2013, (EU) No 1316/2013, (EU) No 223/2014, (EU) No 283/2014, and Decision No 541/2014/EU and repealing Regulation (EU, Euratom) No 966/2012	which was updated by COSO in 2013		
--	--	-----------------------------------	--	--

No	CHAPTER	Measure envisaged	Related EU Acquis	Related National Policy Document	Objective	Responsible/ Related Institution	Date Estimated for the Implementation of the Measure
INS	TITUTIONAL S	ET-UP AND OTHER WOR	RK				
1.	32- Financial Control	Aligning the Counterfeit Coins Monitoring System (SMPSIS) with EU practices	Council Regulation (EC) No 2182/2004 of 6 December 2004 concerning medals and tokens similar to euro coins		Developing inquiry and reporting modules and thus enhancing the efficiency of SMPSIS which is used for the protection of the Euro against counterfeiting and aligning SMPSIS with EU practices	Ministry of Treasury and Finance	2021
2.	32- Financial Control	Strengthening the reporting system of Turkish Court of Accounts, updating the monitoring and evaluation mechanism in line with international standards and up to date auditing practices	Regulation (EU, Euratom) 2018/1046 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 18 July 2018 on the financial rules applicable to the general budget of the Union, amending Regulations (EU) No 1296/2013, (EU) No 1301/2013, (EU) No 1304/2013, (EU) No 1309/2013, (EU) No 1316/2013, (EU) No 223/2014, (EU) No	2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Turkish Court of Accounts	Strengthening the implementation infrastructure of Turkish Court of Accounts through enhancing the efficiency of audits by improving its auditing perspective and capacity	Turkish Court of Accounts	2023

			283/2014, and Decision No 541/2014/EU and repealing Regulation (EU, Euratom) No 966/2012			
3.	32- Financial Control	Publishing Public Internal Financial Control Policy Paper	Regulation (EU, Euratom) 2018/1046 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 18 July 2018 on the financial rules applicable to the general budget of the Union, amending Regulations (EU) No 1296/2013, (EU) No 1301/2013, (EU) No 1304/2013, (EU) No 1309/2013, (EU) No 1316/2013, (EU) No 223/2014, (EU) No 283/2014, and Decision No 541/2014/EU and repealing Regulation (EU, Euratom) No 966/2012	Introducing a roadmap in public internal financial control established in line with EU, and meeting relevant closing benchmark	Treasury and	2023

4.	32- Financial Control	Enhancing Integrated Public Financial Management Information System	Regulation (EU, Euratom) 2018/1046 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 18 July 2018 on the financial rules applicable to the general budget of the Union, amending Regulations (EU) No 1296/2013, (EU) No 1301/2013, (EU) No 1304/2013, (EU) No 1309/2013, (EU) No 1316/2013, (EU) No 223/2014, (EU) No 283/2014, and Decision No 541/2014/EU and repealing Regulation (EU, Euratom) No 966/2012	11th Development Plan (2019-2023) Medium Term Fiscal Plan 2021-2023 2019-2023 Strategic Plan of the Ministry of Treasury and Finance	In line with the principle of interoperability, integrating the central systems developed for financial transactions with the management information systems of other institutions; ensuring a faster accession of the policy makers and decision makers of financial management to the current data; conducting public expenditures and accounting more effectively in an electronic environment and process-oriented manner; preparing and submitting the financial reports and financial statistics in line with international standards	Ministry of Treasury and Finance	2023
----	-----------------------	---	---	--	---	--	------



Mustafa Kemal Mahallesi 2082. Cadde No: 5 06530 Çankaya/ANKARA Tel : 0 (312) 218 13 00 Faks: 0 (312) 218 14 64 www.ab.gov.tr